
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
MONDAY, APRIL 5, 2021 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval ofMinutes of the Regular Common Council Meeting ofMarch 16, 2021.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational Business:

The following Mayoral appointments have been submitted for Council confirmation:
1. Eric Heinritz, 7906 S. 68th St., Aid. Dist. 4 - Architectural Board for a 3 year term

expiring 04/30/24.
2. Linda Hom, 9451 W. Puetz Rd., Aid. Dist. 1 - Environmental Commission for a

3 year term expiring 04/30/24.
3. Teri Hammond, 11459 W. St. Martins Rd., Aid. Dist. 6 - Fair Commission for a

3 year term expiring 04/30/24.
4. Dennis Ciche, 8128 S. 43rd St., Aid. Dist. 5 - Finance Committee for a 1 year term

expiring 04/30/22.
5. John Howard, 6658 W. Robinwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 5 - Finance Committee for a

1 year term expiring 04/30/22.
6. Ray Lenz, 4021 W. Heatheridge Dr., Aid. Dist. 3 - Fire and Police Commission for

a 5 year term expiring 04/30/26.
7. Dr. Henry Wengelewski, 3643 W. Sharon Ln., Aid. Dist. 5 - Board of Health for a

2 year term expiring 04/30/23.
8. Patricia Nissen, 8010 W. Coventry Dr., Aid. Dist. 2 - Board of Health for a 2 year

term expiring 04/30/23.
9. Wayne Hustad, 10320 W. St. Martins Rd., Aid. Dist. 2 - Board of Health for a

2 year term expiring 04/30/23.
10. Michael Wrench, 3824 W. Forest Hill Ave., Aid. Dist. 5 - Parks Commission for a 3

year term expiring 04/30/24.
11. Ken Skowronski II, 7960 S. 116th St., Aid. Dist. 6- Board of Public Works for a

3 year term expiring 04/3 0/24.
12. Rebecca Specht, 3185 W. Yorkshire Cir., Ald. Dist. 4-Board of Public Works for a

3 year term expiring 04/30/24.
13. Jaspreet Kaur, 6874 S. Dory Dr., Aid. Dist. 3 - Technology Commission for a 3 year

term expiring 04/30/24.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
April 5, 2021
Page 2

14. Laura Galusha, 3922 W. Heatheridge Dr., Ald. Dist. 3- Technology Commission
for a 3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

15. John Farney, 8014 S. 59th St., Ald. Dist. 5 - Technology Commission for a 3 year
term expiring 04/30/24.

16. Bob Knackert, 9049 S. 83rd St., Ald. Dist. 1- Board ofZoning and Building
Appeals for a 3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

17. Donald Adams, 3211 W. Acre Ave., Ald. Dist. 4- Board of Zoning and Building
Appeals for a 3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

Environmental Commission
18. Alderman Daniel Mayer, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
Finance Committee
19. Alderwoman Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
20. Alderman Mark Dandrea, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
21. Alderman John Nelson, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
License Committee
22. Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
23. Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
24. Alderman John Nelson, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
Parks Commission
25. Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
Plan Commission
26. Alderman Mark Dandrea, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Project Updates for Ballpark Commons.
2. Concept Review for "Ryan Road Duplexes", a Condominium Development with 26 Units

in 13 Two-Family Attached Dwellings (12000 and 12204 West Loomis Road) (Boomtown,
LLC, Applicant).

3. A Resolution for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement for Strauss Investments, LLC at
Approximately 12000 Block ofW. Loomis Road (Tax Key No. 891-1083-000).

4. A Resolution to Authorize Acceptance of Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreements
from Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC; Oakes Estates, LLC, Oakwood at Ryan Creek, LLC, and
TI Investors of Franklin Apartments LLC.

5. Results of Survey for 10570-10961 W. St. Martins Road for Potential Sanitary Sewer
Service.

6. An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code Chapter 80 Animals, to Create Article V
Possession of Wild Animals.

7. Award Pleasant View Park Improvements to Western Contractors for $424,527.
8. A Resolution to Execute Change Order No. 1 to DF Tomasini Contractors, Inc. for the

Construction of2020 Marquette Avenue Road Project in the Amount of $103,348.82.
9. Common Council Administrative Policies and Procedures (Alderwoman Wilhelm).
10. Application for Bloomberg Philanthropies Asphalt Art Initiative.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
April 5, 2021
Page 3

11. A Resolution to Sign an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with Village of Hales
Corners to Reconstruct a Portion of W. College Avenue Between S. 108th Street
(USH45\WI-100) and S. 92nd Street for $24,000.

12. Transfer of Ownership of the Tess Corners Creek Bridge from WE Energies to City of
Franklin (Located Approximately 100 Feet West of W. Forest Home Avenue and
Approximately 500 Feet South ofW. Sunnybrook Road).

13. A Resolution Authorizing Approval of the Revisions to the City of Franklin Design
Standards and Construction Specifications, July 2017.

14. Request to Participate in State Contract for Purchase of2,400 Tons of Salt and an Additional
480 Tons in Reserve.

H. Licenses and Permits.
Miscellaneous Licenses - License Committee Meeting ofApril 5, 2021.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supportmg documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are available m the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
webs1te www.franklinw1 gov

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wIll be made to accommodate the needs of d1sabled mndrvduals through appropriate ands and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

April 6
April 8
April 19
April 20
April 22

Spring Election
Plan Commission Meeting
Committee of the Whole
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting

7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
7:00p.m.
6:30p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.



blank page



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
MARCH 2, 2021

ORGANIZATIONAL E.
BUSINESS

RES. 2021-7714 G.1.
FENCE
INSTALLATION AT
6072 W. ALLWOOD

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

MARCH 16, 2021
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on March 16,
2021 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance:
Alderman Mark Dandrea, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman Kristen
Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber and
Alderman John R. Nelson. Also present were Dir. of Administration
Peggy Steeno, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk
Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:33 p.m. and closed at
6:47 p.m.

A moment of silence was held in memory of COVID-19 Pandemic
Victims.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of March 2, 2021 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the following:

1. The following are Mayoral appointments:

(a) Balinda Kostuch, 10750 S. 92nd Street, Ald. Dist. 4, Waste
Facilities Monitoring Committee.

(b) Sudarshan Sharma, 6845 S. 68th Street, Unit 104, Ald. Dist. 2,
Waste Facilities Monitoring Committee.

Seconded by Alderman Mayer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

2. No action was taken on the introduction of Cari Grieving, Director
of Tourism for Engage Franklin.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7714, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
FENCE WITHIN THE 10 FOOT WATER MAIN EASEMENT, 5
FOOT UTILITY EASEMENT, AND 10 FOOT SCREENING



Common Council Meeting
March 16, 2021
Page 2

DR.

RES. 2021-7715 G.2.
FENCE
INSTALLATION AT
4108 W. PEBBLE
BEACH CT.

RES 2021-7716 G.3.
PRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR PLEASANT
VIEW PRESERVE
SUBDIVISION

BUCKTHORN AS A G.4.
NOXIOUS WEED

JOB DESCRIPTION G.5.
FOR INSPECTIONS
PERMIT
COORDINATOR

CERTIFICATION G.6.
PAY FOR PERMIT
POSITIONS

MOUNTED G.7.
MESSAGE SIGN

EASEMENT UPON LOT 5 IN BLOCK 2 OF HAWTHORN GLEN
SUBDIVISION (6072 W. ALLWOOD DRIVE) (TAX KEY NO. 805-
0021-000) (JAMES A. & DIANE L. WITTENBERG, APPLICANTS).
Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7715, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
FENCE WITHIN THE 10 FOOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT UPON
LOT 46 OF PLAT OF OUTLOTS 1 THRU 5 OF TUMBLECREEK
SUBDIVISION (4108 W. PEBBLE BEACH COURT) (TAX KEY
NO. 739-0046-001) (RICHARD & PAT WALLRATH,
APPLICANTS), subject to technical corrections to include the history
of the previous permit. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7716, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION (AT 7475 SOUTH 49TH STREET AND 7501
SOUTH 49TH STREET) (VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC, APPLICANT),
with technical corrections as discussed. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. All voted, Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm to direct the Environmental Commission to
develop standards and guidelines in coordination with City of Franklin
staff for buckthorn removal plans subject to their review and return to
the Common Council, with the understanding that it would not be
complaint-based. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the new job description for the
Inspections Permit Coordinator Position; and authorize Human
Resources to update the Employee Handbook as needed. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve certification pay for the Permit
Technician and Permit Coordinator Positions; and authorize Human
Resources to update the Civil Service Manual as needed. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize Department of Public Work
staff to purchase one (1) Matrix Trailer Mounted Message Board Sign
from Sherwin Industries. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All
voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
March 16, 2021
Page 3

ERNIE LAKE G.8.

LETTER OF CREDIT G.9.
PARK CIRCLE
CONDOS

Alderman Mayer moved to direct Staff to make purchases and order
services necessary to install electric and aeration for Ernie Lake (8000
S. Chapel Hill Drive) for a budget of $15,000. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to authorize the release of Letter of Credit
No. 0412842277 from Citizens Bank for Park Circle Condos (also
known as "The Glen at Park Circle") located west of S. 76th Street at
7613-7963 W. Park Circle Way as recommended by the Engineering
Department. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

I.

Alderwoman Wilhelm to direct Staff to solicit contractors per
compliance with applicable public works bidding requirements for the
2021 Local Road Program. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve the tentative agreement between
the City of Franklin and the Franklin Professional Firefighters, I.A.F.F.
Local 2760, and authorization for the Mayor, Director of Clerk
Services, Fire Chief and Director of Administration to execute a labor
agreement incorporating the tentative agreement. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following:

Grant 2020-2021 Operator licenses to: Bradley M Bautch, 851 E.
Forest Hill Ave., Oak Creek; Eric J Cottman, 2355 W. Birchwood
Ave., Milwaukee; Andrea M Lopez, 516 Menomonee Ave., South
Milwaukee; Alberta E Mendiola, 7700 S. 51st St. #350; Eva N
Rodriguez, 5028 W. Layton Ave., Greenfield; Ryan M Scheffler, 730
N Rochester St., #11, Mukwonago; Jennifer E Teske, 16150 W.
Melody Dr., New Berlin.

Grant the PUBLIC (People Uniting for the Betterment of Life and
Investment in the Community) Grant to the following: Franklin Civic
Celebration, Franklin City Hall and Lions Legend Park 1, Operator's
Licenses, Temporary Class B Beer and Wine License, Temporary
Entertainment & Amusement License, Non-intoxicating Beverage
License and Park Permits, July 2, 3 and 4, 2021.

Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the following: City vouchers with
an ending date of March 11, 2021 in the amount of $1,220,863.67;

LICENSES AND H.1.
PERMITS

2021 LOCAL ROAD G.10.
PROGRAM

FRANKLIN G.11.
PROFESSIONAL
FIREFIGHTERS



Common Council Meeting
March 16, 2021
Page 4

ORVILLE SEYMER
V. CITY OF
FRANKLIN

ADJOURNMENT

G.12.

J.

Payroll dated March 12, 2021 in the amount of $392,772.24 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$220,096.77 plus City matching payments; Estimated payroll dated
March 26, 2021 in the amount of $395,000 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $431,000, plus City
matching payments; Property Tax disbursements with an ending date
of March 11, 2021 in the amount of $5,861.85 and Approval to release
Library vouchers not to exceed $25,000. Seconded by Alderman
Dandrea. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to enter closed session at 7:55 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for
the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to
be adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman
Dandrea. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

The Common Council reentered open session at 8:24 p.m.

Alderman Dandrea moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.



APPROVAL

Sh»
ORGANIZATIONAL

BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral Board and Commission
Appointments

MEETING
DATE

04-05-21

ITEM NUMBER

6
The following Mayoral appointments have been submitted for Council confirmation:

1. Eric Heinritz, 7906 S. 68th St., Aid. Dist. 4 - Architectural Board for a 3 year term expiring
04/30/24.

2. Linda Hom, 9451 W. Puetz Rd., Aid. Dist. 1 - Environmental Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

3. Teri Hammond, 11459 W. St. Martins Rd., Aid. Dist. 6 - Fair Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

4. Dennis Ciche, 8128 S. 43rd St., Aid. Dist. 5 - Finance Committee for a 1 year term expiring
04/30/22).

5. John Howard, 6658 W. Robinwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 5 - Finance Committee for a 1 year term
expiring 04/30/22.

6. Ray Lenz, 4021 W. Heatheridge Dr., Aid. Dist. 3 - Fire and Police Commission for a 5 year term
expiring 04/30/26.

7. Dr. Henry Wengelewski, 3643 W. Sharon Ln., Aid. Dist. 5 - Board ofHealth for a 2 year term
expiring 04/30/23.

8. Patricia Nissen, 8010 W. Coventry Dr., Aid. Dist. 2 - Board ofHealth for a 2 year term expiring
04/30/23.

9. Wayne Hustad, 10320 W. St. Martins Rd., Aid. Dist. 2 - Board ofHealth for a 2 year term
expiring 04/30/23.

10. Michael Wrench, 3824 W. Forest Hill Ave., Aid. Dist. 5 - Parks Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

11. Ken Skowronski II, 7960 S. 116th St., Aid. Dist. 6 - Board of Public Works for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

12. Rebecca Specht, 3185 W. Yorkshire Cir., Aid. Dist. 4 - Board of Public Works for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

13. Jaspreet Kaur, 6874 S. Dory Dr., Aid. Dist. 3 - Technology Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

14. Laura Galusha, 3922 W. Heatheridge Dr., Aid. Dist. 3 - Technology Commission for a 3 year
term expiring 04/30/24.

15. John Farney, 8014 S. 59th St., Aid. Dist. 5 -Technology Commission for a 3 year term expiring
04/30/24.

16. Bob Knackert, 9049 S. 83rd St., Aid. Dist. 1 - Board ofZoning and Building Appeals for a
3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

17. Donald Adams, 3211 W. Acre Ave., Aid. Dist. 4 - Board of Zoning and Building Appeals for a
3 year term expiring 04/30/24.



Environmental Commission
18. Alderman Daniel Mayer, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
Finance Committee
19. Alderwoman Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
20. Alderman Mark Dandrea, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
21. Alderman John Nelson, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
License Committee
22. Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
23. Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
24. Alderman John Nelson, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
Parks Commission
25. Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 4/21/22.
Plan Commission
26. Alderman Mark Dandrea, 1 year term expiring 4/21/22.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral appointments:

1. Eric Heinritz, 7906 S. 68th St., Aid. Dist. 4- Architectural Board for a 3 year term expiring
04/30/24.

2. Linda Hom, 9451 W. Puetz Rd., Aid. Dist. 1 - Environmental Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

3. Teri Hammond, 11459 W. St. Martins Rd., Aid. Dist. 6- Fair Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

4. Dennis Ciche, 8128 S. 43rd St., Aid. Dist. 5 - Finance Committee for a 1 year term expiring
04/30/22.

5. John Howard, 6658 W. Robinwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 5 - Finance Committee for a 1 year term
expiring 04/30/22.

6. Ray Lenz, 4021 W. Heatheridge Dr., Aid. Dist. 3 - Fire and Police Commission for a 5 year term
expiring 04/30/26.

7. Dr. Henry Wengelewski, 3643 W. Sharon Ln., Aid. Dist. 5 - Board ofHealth for a 2 year term
expiring 04/30/23.

8. Patricia Nissen, 8010 W. Coventry Dr., Aid. Dist. 2- Board of Health for a 2 year term expiring
04/30/23.

9. Wayne Hustad, 10320 W. St. Martins Rd., Aid. Dist. 2- Board ofHealth for a 2 year term
expiring 04/30/23.

10. Michael Wrench, 3824 W. Forest Hill Ave., Aid. Dist. 5- Parks Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

11. Ken Skowronski II, 7960 S. 116th St., Aid. Dist. 6- Board of Public Works for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

12. Rebecca Specht, 3185 W. Yorkshire Cir., Aid. Dist. 4- Board of Public Works for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.

13. Jaspreet Kaur, 6874 S. Dory Dr., Aid. Dist. 3- Technology Commission for a 3 year term
expiring 04/30/24.



14. Laura Galusha, 3922 W. Heatheridge Dr., Ald. Dist. 3 - Technology Commission for a 3 year
term expiring 04/30/24.

15. John Farney, 8014 S. 59th St., Aid. Dist. 5 -Technology Commission for a 3 year term expiring
04/30/24.

16. Bob Knackert, 9049 S. 83rd St., Aid. Dist. 1- Board of Zoning and Building Appeals for a
3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

17. Donald Adams, 3211 W. Acre Ave., Aid. Dist. 4- Board ofZoning and Building Appeals for a
3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

Environmental Commission
18. Alderman Daniel Mayer, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
Finance Committee
19. Alderwoman Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
20. Alderman Mark Dandrea, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
21. Alderman John Nelson, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
License Committee
22. Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
23. Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
24. Alderman John Nelson, 1 year term expiring 04/21/22.
Parks Commission
25. Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, 1 year term expiring 4/21/22.
Plan Commission
26. Alderman Mark Dandrea, 1 year term expiring 4/21/22.

CITY CLERK



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

3h» COUNCIL ACTION April 5, 2021

REPORTS & Project Updates for Ballpark Commons ITEM NUMBER

RECOMMENDATIONS t>,

Representatives from Ballpark Commons will present an update on the development.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

No action requested. This presentation is only for providing updates on the Ballpark Commons project.

Economic Development Department - CB



BLANK PAGE



«rro"""

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

CONCEPT REVIEW FOR "RYAN ROAD
DUPLEXES", A CONDOMINIUM

DEVELOPMENT WITH 26 UNITS IN 13 TWO
FAMILY ATTACHED DWELLINGS

(12000 AND 12204 WEST LOOMIS ROAD)

(BOOMTOWN, LLC, APPLICANT)

MEETING DATE

04/05/2021

ITEM NUMBER

On February 16, 2021, the applicant submitted a Concept Review to obtain input from city
staff and the Common Council about the "Ryan Road Duplexes", a two-family residential
condominium development with 26 units on an 18-acre site. This development would have
a cul-de-sac street connecting to Ryan Road and the units would be served by public sanitary
sewer and pubhc water to be extended along Loomis Road (STH 36).

The proposed two-family condominium may be allowed in the R-8 zoning district by a
Special Use permit as long as the development meets the standards set forth in the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO)

It is noted that proposed use is not consistent with the future land use designations of the
Comprehensive Master Plan (Residential multi-family, commercial and areas of natural
resource features) However, per Wisconsin Statutes §66.1001(2m)(b), a condit10nal use
permit does not need to be consistent with the comprehensive plan. A conditional use perm1t,
as defined mn the Wisconsin Statutes §62.23(7)(de), means also a Special Use

Staff sent review comments to the applicant on March 8 The attached report contains a
summary ofthe project and staff recommendations

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Provide direction to the applicant regarding the proposed "Ryan Road Duplexes", a two
family condommium development with 26 umts to be located at (12000 and 12204 West
Loomis Road) (Boomtown, LLC, applicant).

Department ofCity Development: RMM



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE COMMON COUNCIL

Meeting of April 5, 2021

Concept Review

RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to the applicant regarding the proposed condominium
development with 26 units to be located at 12000-12204 W. Loomis Road.

Project Name:

Applicant:
Agent:
Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:
Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Action Requested:

Staff:

Ryan Road Duplexes

S.R. Mills. Boomtown, LLC.
Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC.

12000-12204 W. Loomis Road.
Boomtown, LLC
R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District and C-1
Conservancy District

Residential multi-family, commercial and areas of natural
resource features

No action requested

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Principal Planner

Introduction
Before you is this Concept Review application to provide direction and input to the applicant
about this proposed condominium development with 13 two-unit buildings and cul-de-sac street
connecting to Ryan Road. This development would be served by public sanitary sewer and
public water to be extended along Loomis Road (STH 36).

According to the applicant, this development with 26 units in approximately 18 acres is designed
to meet the R-8 Multiple-Family Residence district standards. This development would also
include stormwater management areas, landscape screening along Loomis Road, a pedestrian
connection to the planned S. 116th Street recreational trail and common elements.

This site is now within the Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) district No. 6 as a result of the last
year amendment of this TIF district. The developer anticipates a value of $330,000 per unit, the
estimated overall project value is $8.5 million (approximately $476,000 per acre). The applicant
estimates site improvements costs to be approximately $50,000 per unit, not including vertical
building costs.

Project Description/Analysis

The 18-acre site as depicted in the conceptual plan does not exist yet as a single property, it is
currently divided between three properties. Two of these properties extend across West Loomis
Road to the south. A Certified Survey Map will be required to create the site as presented,



subject to review and approval of the Common Council and recommendation of the Plan
Commission.

The Conceptual Plan illustrates an 800-ft long cul-de-sac street connecting to West Ryan Road, it
is noted that this is the maximum length permitted for cul-de-sac streets. A landscape screening
berm is proposed along W. Loomis Road, which is consistent with the requirements of the UDO
for developments abutting arterial roads.

The proposed two-family condominium may be allowed in the R-8 zoning district by a Special
Use permit as long as the development meets the standards set forth in the Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO), such as compliance with the UDO dimensional requirements, no adverse
impact, adequate public facilities, etc.

It is noted that the proposed use is not consistent with the future land use designations of the
Comprehensive Master Plan (Residential multi-family, commercial and areas of natural resource
features). However, per Wisconsin Statutes §66.1001(2m)(b), a conditional use permit does not
need to be consistent with the comprehensive plan. A conditional use permit, as defined in the
Wisconsin Statutes §62.23(7)(de), means also a Special Use.

The areas of natural resource features will be reviewed as part of the Natural Resource Protection
Plan (NRPP) required for the Certified Survey Map or Condominium Plat. Two wetlands are
present on this site, as well as shore buffers from a pond located in an adjacent property to the
east.

It is important to note the presence of the West Shore Pipeline and overhead powerlines along
the eastern property line and gas transmission pipelines north of W. Loomis Road. It is
recommended that the developer coordinates with utility operators early in the development
process.

The developer submitted conceptual renderings, floor plans and building elevations of a similar
condominium project this developer is building in the City ofKenosha. As this is only a concept
plan, full compliance with UDO standards will be reviewed upon a detailed project plan
submittal.

Staff Recommendation:

It is recommended that sufficient feedback be provided to allow the applicant to determine
whether to proceed or not with detailed plans for the proposed "Ryan Road Duplexes"
condominium development.

2



Date:

To:

From:

RE:

MEMORANDUM

March 8, 2021

Daniel Szczap. Bear Development, LLC.

Department of City Development
Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Principal Planner

Ryan Road Duplexes Concept Review - 12000-12204 W. Loomis Road.

Please be advised that city staff has reviewed this Concept Review application received on
February 16, 2021. Department comments are as follows:

City_Deyelopment Department comments

1. It is recommended to add the estimated project value and site improvement costs per Concept
Review application form.

2. Please submit conceptual renderings of the typical duplex and slides for presentation before the
Common Council. (Optional, as it is not required in the application form).

3. With regards to required approvals for this proposal, please note:
a. A certified survey map (CSM) would be required to create the approximately 18.8-acre site.

See Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Division 15-7.0700 for submittal
requirements.

b. Per table 15-3.0602 of the UDO, a special use permit is required for two-family residential
projects in the R-8 district. See UDO Division 15-3.0700 for information about special use
standards.

c. Approval of a Condominium Plat by Common Council will be required, see submittal
requirements in attached in application form available on-line. Condominium Plat recording
will be likely be required prior to issuance of building permits.

https://www.franklinwi.gov/Files/Planning/PermitApplications/Condominium Plats 2015
FormfillerApp.pdf

d. Natural Resource Protection Plan NRPP (UDO Division 15-7 .0200), site intensity and
capacity calculations for residential uses (UDO§ 15-3.0504), Landscape Plan (UDO
Division 15-7.0300) and Lighting Plan (UDO 15-5.0402) will be required as part of the
Condominium Plat/Special Use submittal.

e. Any condominium monument sign will require a separate application as well as review and
approval by the Plan Commission.

f. Stormwater management, grading, utility and erosion control plans must be submitted
separately to the Engineering Department (414-425-7510).

4. Upon preparation of the Natural Resource Protection Plan for the Certified Survey Map or
Condominium Plat, conservation easements will be required for protected natural resources
(wetlands, wetland buffers, wetland setbacks, etc.) per UDO§ 15-7.0603. Additionally, a rezoning
to remove the C-1 zoning district will be required as well.

5. Have the wetland delineations been confirmed by the Department of Natural Resources (DNR)?



6. Pursuant to UDO $ 15-5.0102, a landscape bufferyard easement with a minimum width of 30 feet
will be required along Loomis Rd (STH 36) for the Certified Survey Map, excluding any areas
required for utility easements or other type of easement. The proposed landscape screening berm
appears to be consistent with this requirement.

7. A minimum side setback of 5 feet will be required between buildings per UDO Table 15-3.0209A.
(revised).

8. Note that the maximum height for two-family dwellings is 2.5 stories or 30 feet, whichever is
greater. Per UDO definition, A halfstory is that portion ofa building under a gable, hip, or
mansard roof, the wallplates ofwhich on at least two opposite exterior walls are not more than 4.5
feet above thefinishedfloor ofeach story.

9. Pursuant to the city's parking schedule (UDO Table 15-5.0203), 2 car attached garage per dwelling
unit will be required.

10. Please be aware of City impact fees. The impact fee schedule can be found on the City's website at:
https ://www.franklinwi.gov/Departments/Inspection-Services/Impact-Fees .htm

11. Proposed street trees shall comply with Section 15-8.0117 of the UDO. One street tree is required
for each 85-feet of lot frontage on each side of all streets. Note that separate Engineering
Department standards conflicts and requires 75-feet. It is recommended to conform to the more
restrictive requirement. See Section 15-8.0115 of the UDO for street lights requirements.

12. It is recommended to contact the operator of the West Shore Pipeline early in the development
process for input regarding setbacks from pipelines, utility conflicts, etc.

13. According to the project summary, "The subjectproperty is vacant and was recently used as a
WDOTFill site. The property wasfilled, graded and compacted in compliance with the WDOTand
City ofFranklin permits", evidence supporting this statement will be required as part of the Special
Use submittal.

Fire Department comments

14. Development must include satisfactory water supply infrastructure for firefighting operations.

15. Road constructed to accepted standards for fire department access.

16. Area not well served by existing fire station locations and staffing. Response times for Effective
Response Force for fire and EMS calls-for-service, and emergency incident types will likely
exceed accepted industry standards.

Inspection Services Department comments

17. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time.

Engineering Department comments

18. No comments. However, a full submittal of the plat must be reviewed and approved.

Police Department comments

19. The Franklin Police Department has no issues or concerns with this project.

2



Planning Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email: generalplanning@franklinwi.gov

City ofFranklin Phone: (414) 425-4024
Fax: (414) 427-7691

Web Site: www.frankllnwi.gov

CONCEPT REVIEW APPLICATION
Complete, accurate andspecific informationmustbe entered. Please Print.

Date of Application: _

Applicant (FullLegal Name[s]):
Name: S.R. Mills

Company: Boomtown, LLC
Malling Address: 4011 80th Street
City I state: Kenosha, WI
Phone: (262) 949-3788
Email Address: dan@beardevelopment.com

Mailing Address: 4011 80th Street
City/ state: Kenosha, WI
Email Address: dan@beardevelopment.com

Zip: 53142

Zip: 53142

Applicantls Representedby: (contactperson)(Full LegalName[s))
Name: Daniel Szczap

company: Bear Development, LLC
Mailing Address; 4011 80th Street
city /sate: Kenosha, WI zup: 5·1A?
Phone: (262) 949-3788
Email Address: dan@beardevelopment.com

Tax Key Nos: 891-9993-000, 891-9996-000 & 891-9997-000

Existing Zoning:[@andGd
Existing Use: _V_a_ca_n_t _
Proposed use: [es]dental
CMP Land Use Identification urResue&erst,cammrd», reaw et NaturalRe«ure 4tan«st+ten

Project Property Information:
Property Address: _

Propery owner(s):boomtown.LL

+The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future land Use Map is available at: http://wwy.franklinwi.gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps._htm

Concept Review submlttals for review must Include and be accompanied by the following:
Z1 mt Application form accurately completed with original signature(s). Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted.
[Z Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Frankin: []$250
[] Three (3) complete collated sets of Application materials to Include:

.£1 One (1) original and two (2) copies of a written Project Summary, including description ofany new building construction andsite work,
interior/exteriorbuildingmodifications oradditions to be mode toproperty, site improvementcosts, estimate ofproject value andany other
Information thatisavailable.

[] Three (3)8.5x11 inch or 11x17 inch copies of the Preliminary Site/Development Plan of the subject property(les) and Immediate surroundings
(i.e., a scaledmap identifying the subjectproperty and immediate environs, Including existing andproposedparcels, existing andproposed
structures, existing andproposed land uses, existing andproposedzoning, existing andproposed Infrastructure and utilities[approximate locations
only), and existing andproposedsite conditions/site constraints [i.e. approximate locations of public road access, rights-of-way, natural
resources/green space and drainage issues/concerns, etc.))

D Three colored copies (11"17") of the building elevations, If applicable.
D Email (or CD ROM) with all plans/submittal materials. Plansmustbe submittedin bothAdobe PDF andAutoCAD compatibleformat(where applicable).

•Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within five business days.
•Concept Review requests are reviewed by the Committee of the Whole. Meetings are held the first Monday of every month.

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other Information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information In this application; and (3)
the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them In this Application and Its submittal, and any subsequently
Issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice If there Is a breach of such representatlon(s) or any condltlon(s) of approval. By
execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or Its agents to enter upon the subject property(les) between the hours of 7:00
a.m. and 7:00 p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application Is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even If the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. $943.13.

(The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member If the business Is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President If the business Is a corporation. A
signed applicant' ization ay be provided In lieu of the applicant's signature b low, and a signed property owner's authorization Jetter may be
provided I the pr er's lgnature[s} below. Ifmore than one, all ofthe owner ofthe property must sign this Application).

Name & Title (PRINT)

Signature - Property Owner

Name & Title (PRINT)
Date: _

Signature - Applicant's Representative

Name & Title (PRINT)
Date: _



DEVELOPMENT
4011 80street, Kenosha, WI 53142

Phone: (262) 842-0556 Fax: (262) 842-0557

February 15, 2021

Mr. Regulo Martinez-Montilva
Principal Planner
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Conceptual Review- Ryan Road Duplexes

Dear Mr. Martinez-Montilva:

Bear Development is pleased to submit this letter and the enclosed submittal materials as formal
application for Conceptual Review. Bear Development is acting onbehalf of the owner of record,
Boomtown, LLC.

Project Summary

Boomtown, LLC is the owner of record of approximately 18.80 acres of land in the City of Franklin.
The land is located on the north side of STH 36 and lies south of Ryan Road. The property is
included in the area commonly known as Planning Area G. The subject property includes the
following Tax Key Numbers:

891-9993-000:
891-9996-000:
891-9997-000:

8.58 acres
6.68 acres
3.54 acres

The existing zoning of the property is primarily R-8 Multiple Family Residence District. A small
portion appears to be designated C-1 on City of Franklin Maps. - (The C-1 Zoning District
definition/description is not included in the Unified Development ordinance).

The subject property is vacant and was recently used as a WDOT Fll site. The property was filled,
graded and compacted in compliance with the WDOT and City of Franklin permits. The property
includes frontage on W. Ryan Road to the north and STH 36 to the south. The subject property
includes delineated wetlands to the east and west and a recorded ATC easement along its eastern
boundary.



Adjacent Zoning Classifications
Subject Property: R- Multiple Family Residence District andC-1
North: R-3Suburban/Estate Residence District
South: STH 36 andR-2 Estate Single Family Residence District
East: R-8Multiple Family Residence District
West: R-2Estate Single Family Residence District

Adjacent Land Use
Subject Property:
North:
South:
East:
West:

Vacant
Vacant
STH 36 and Vacant
Vacant andSingle-Family Residential
Vacant andProposedPedestrian Trail

Proposed Concept Plan

In accordance with the existing R-8 Multi-Family Residence District Standards, the applicant
proposes a residential condominium neighborhood consisting of ranch-style duplex condominium
units. The Concept Plan includes a cul-des-sac street from Ryan Road serving thirteen (13)
condominium buildings. The project will be served with public sanitary sewer located within Ryan
Road and public water main, which has been extended along STH 36. The proposed street and
right-of-way are compliant with City of Franklin Standards

The R-8 District Development Standardswere applied including the following bulk regulations:

Minimum Front Yard Setback: 25 feet
Minimum Side yard Setback: 5 feet
Minimum Rear Yard: 25 feet
Minimum Wetland Buffer: 30 feet
Minimum Wetland Setback: 50 feet
Gross Density: 5.00 dwelling units/base area
Net Density: 5.00 dwelling units/buildable area

(5 * 18.80 = 94 dwelling units)
(5 * 15.00 = 45 dwelling units)

The Concept Plan includes a total of twenty-six (26) dwelling units for a gross density of 1.4
d.u.'s/acre and a net density of 1.7 d.u.'s/acre. The Concept Plan also includes stormwater
management areas, landscape screening along STH 36, pedestrian connection to the proposed City
Trail System and significant common green space. The project is envisioned as an owner-occupied
condominium neighborhood.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardevelopment.com

Thankyou for your time and consideration.

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC



~
8o
NNo
»

O

"c3g\Jw
ll.

ii::
~
:::i
w
Cl
z
\J
iiiw
Cl
z
<I'.
...J
ll.

ll.::,
0e:::
lJ
lJzzwwz
Gzw
w
...Ju
<I'.zz
ii::





X

I

\ ......
','



DD

II



DD
DD

»
«

II
II
---i-

i

DD1 II
I
l
I iii

I I II II
1
I
I
I =1

,1 I Ill
II
II I

I
1
I



I 1N3V'l3SV9 l
I 8 37A1S)

NVld Alln90Vll9 / V37VZV
SV'lnlNIV'I00N0:> 31NI0d Nns

SN0ll VA373 ll0 11131X3
I N0ll d0 11070:)

gagg-rzL O!l!II!) -.,,..J
rnsa i!-£ i!L {i!~J ,.,.,,,a
i! £iiNISNO::JSWI "NNQH:,17~

tr» o g Ot tangf o» tip 3 L

61¥f"a.un:5 •..,,.,,..,,_Ar .,._•..,....3

II
IE ('
II II
II 111
II II
II 111
II II
II 111
II II
II 111
II II
u M

- Jl JI >-
II 111 ;
II II w

II 111 ; ~
II II ;5
II 111 < li;j
II II ::J,
II _ ~I

- -u- rl
i 111
l II

111
II
III
111
II

111
II
I I

-u

---------17

h
IllII
IllII
Il lII
IllII
IllII
IllII
Ill! II

- - - ~~

IllII
IllII
I'- - - '1--1

IllII
IllII
IllII
IllII
Il lII

- l= - - lLJ

--fl
II
II
---U

II
II

- - -\i
III
111
II

1:: >-;
111
11 >-

1
11 "i
3II

II 1
11

II II
II 1

11
II II
II 111
II II
tII

111
II

111
II

-n-=~

:: 111 ,.;11 11 ::,
IllII II;

II 111 <
II II

" AII II

"- -u-

\



( 1N311'113SVll l
18 :nus>

NVld ,UJnllOVHll / V37VZV
SV'JnlNIV'JO0NO~ 31NIOd Nns

SNOll VA373 ~Ol'd31X3

91111<,-£1!L. (1!91!) -,, ,,J
IUS0&-£1!L. {1!9e) ·•"110

ll!II:'!; NISNO:JSW. ·r,,IJOH,,13
Lt"• •08 -O"J JnQ:) ,<°""tJp,H L.

o...-r-.- ...,,.,,,,.,!_,,, -a..,..,.,.,u;_,0.,.;r

"OH i 'S3J_ VJOOSSV 311' N3SNYH "Sit/UV,:;/

---il --- --fl

111

IllII
Ill I-
II z:::,

IllII u'i

Ill :a!
N

II <

IllII
Ill

I- II
2

Ill:::,

II
1.: w

-- - ~~::, !il2l
i t Ill £I! II ll'l9;

IllII
I I'--- 'H

IllI
ll

II 5II
Ill

::,

I
ll
II II ;

IllI
ll 2lII <(II

Ill
iii

I II-n---U
Ill-u II

Ii ===~l

---~

111
II

111
--n II

:: 1:: ~~- u I
II II 1.:
II 111::,
II II~

Ill"'II
II II
II 111
II II
II 1

11
II II
-~

111
II

111
II

n = ~
"II II~
II 111
II u'i
II II-'
II 111 ~II"II II
It- - ,-

- -u- - 'lJ

\

II
le - I'7
II II
II 111
II II
II 111
II II
II 111
II II
II 111
II II
II 111

_Jl_JI >-
u M
II II
II 111 u'i ~
u u3
II 111 < !i;l
II II -'l
II _ ~I. t -u- - 1-1

i 111
' II
l 111

II
III
111
II
III
111



( 1N311113SVIJ l
( E 37A1S I

NVld Al:lnllOVllll / V37VZV
SllllnlNI\IIIOONO:J 31NIOd Nns

NVld l:lOOl:l lSl:ll:l

991Hi-,ZL {i!9I!) '"<>J
f/60Z-C-ZL (Z9Z) ·• ::t1 10

Z n•; NISNO:JSIIIII "NlKJI-/N13
LC-• MOB "O"d ,~no:, ,<a .. o,,,,,, L

d ......avn:; -..,,,,_,_.,,, -(Juµ,n,u,tJ,u

"::JN/ '5'3'VDOSSV .. N3SNVH 'SRl~J

"'to ;

i&+ r

<

I-

00 A 1 z

] I
::)

36 Ii -<;.g w~~ t < _J

• I -<s# \!I .<1!-.'f: N
•' ! -<..O<
¥

I~

-¥

a:
0
0
_J
LL

I-e
0:::











rRo""'sf
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A resolution for acceptance of a Water Main Easement for
Strauss Investments, LLC at approximately
12000 block ofW. Loomis Road. Tax Key

No.891-1083-000

MTG.DATE
4/5/21
ITEM NO.

G.3.

Pursuant to the development of Strauss Facilities, it is necessary to install a Water Main
Easement on the property at approximately 12000 block ofW. Loomis Road, Tax Key Number
891-1083-000.

It is recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said
easement, and have recorded with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2021- .A resolution for acceptance of a Water Main
Easement for Strauss Investments, LLC at approximately 12000 block of W. Loomis Road.
Tax Key No.891-1083-000.

Department ofEngmeermg GEM

ca\ease Water mam for Strauss approx 12000 block of 2021



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -----

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF AWATER MAIN EASEMENT
FOR STRAUSS INVESTMENTS, LLC

AT APPROXIMATELY 12000BLOCKOFW. LOOMIS ROAD.
TAX KEY NO.891-1083-000

WHEREAS, easements are required to construct, maintain and operate a water main for
Strauss Investments, LLC.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept such easement, and, therefore
the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the easements accepting
it on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to record said easements
with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2021, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

resolutions\ easement for water mamn for Strauss at approx 12000 blk of W Loom1s Road 2021



WATER MAIN EASEMENT

STRAUSS INVESTMENTS, LLC
ADDRESS: TBD

TAXKEY: 8911083000

THIS INDENTURE, made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal corporation of
the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "City," and Strauss Investments, LLC, a Wisconsin
limited liability, owner, (including heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of above
owner(s) as may be or may become applicable), hereinafter called "Grantor," (Ifmore than one grantor is
listed above, said language herein referring thereto shall be interpreted in the plural and refer jointly and
severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner and holder of record Title to certain real property described on
Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto and incorporated herein (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a permanent easement with the right of entry in and across
the property hereinafter described with the right to build and construct and/or operate, maintain, repair,
enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be or may become applicable the following facilities and
appurtenances thereto, hereinafter called "Facilities," in, upon and across said portion of the property; a
water main and associated fire hydrants, all as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B"; and

WHEREAS, the initial construction and installation of the Facilities shall be made by Grantor at
Grantor's expense and the Facilities shall be the property of the city and be deemed dedicated to the City
upon the City's inspection and approval of the Facilities as installed, subject to the terms and conditions
set forth below:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described and the
payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable considerations to the Grantor, receipt whereof is
hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and person interested in the land hereinafter
described does hereby grant unto the City a permanent easement in that part of the Lot 83 of Ryan
Meadows, located in the Northeast ¼ and the Southeast ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 30, Township
Five (5) North, Range Twenty-one (21) East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin,
more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement Area").

UPON CONDITION

1. That said Facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by the City.
Responsibility for maintaining the ground cover and landscaping within the easement area shall
be that of the Grantor (including heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns).

2. That in and during' whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work is or
becomes necessary in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or
subsurface of the property as may be disturbed, will at the expense of the City be replaced in
substantially the same condition as it was prior to such disturbance; except that the City will in no
case be responsible for replacing or paying for replacing any aesthetic plantings or improvements
other than ordinary lawns or standard walks, roadways, driveways and parking lot surfacing
which were required to be removed in the course of doing the above work. However, the City
shall save harmless the Grantor from any loss, damage, injury or liability resulting from
negligence on the part of the City in connection with said work involved in constructing and/or
maintaining of said Facilities; provided that if above loss, damage, injury or liability results from
the joint negligence of parties hereto, then the liability therefore shall be borne by them in
proportion to their respective degree of negligence; provided further, however, that these
provisions are subject to the legal defenses which under law the City is entitled to raise excepting
the defense of so-called "sovereign immunity."



G-1
3. That no structure may be placed within the limits of the easement by the Grantor except that

improvements such as walks, pavements for driveways and parking lot surfacing may be
constructed or placed within the Easement Area.

4. That, in connection with the construction by the grantor of any structure or building abutting said
easement defined limits, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facilities in
the above described property. The Grantor will also save and keep the City clear and harmless
from any claims for personal injuries or property damage caused by any negligence of the Grantor
or person other than the Grantor, arising out of the construction by the Grantor of any structure or
building abutting the said easement defined limits, and shall reimburse the City for the full
amount of such loss or damage.

5. That no charges will be made against said lands for the cost of maintenance or operation of said
Facilities in the afore-described property. Whenever the Grantor makes application for a service
connection, the regular and customary service connection charge in effect at the time of the
application shall be charged and paid. The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine
maintenance of land on which the easement is located.

6. All conditions pertaining to the "Maintenance of Water Service Piping" as set forth in Chapter
5.12 of the "City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications dated 2017 and
subsequent amendments thereto shall apply to all water services which are within the easement
defined limits and also within the limits of any adjoining easements; except that the City of
Franklin Water Works, a utility owned by the City of Franklin shall in no case be responsible for
maintaining at its expense any portion of said water services outside of the easement defined
limits and outside the limits of any adjoining easements regardless of any statement to the
contrary in said "Rules and Regulations Governing Water Service."

7. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the City at all times. The Grantor shall
submit plans for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation within the
easement area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

8. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or minus 1 foot or greater
within the limits of said easement. Said alterations shall be made only with the approval of the
City Engineer of the City of Franklin, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.

9. The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees,
officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area in a reasonable
manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would
unreasonably interfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or its employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

10. The City and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogation that either has or may hereafter
have against the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or personal property
or to persons covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent of the waiving party's
insurance coverage; provided, however, that the foregoing waivers shall not invalidate any policy
of insurance now or hereafter issued, it being hereby agreed that such a waiver shall not apply in
any case which would result in the invalidation of any such policy of insurance and that each
party shall notify the other if such party's insurance would be so invalidated.

11. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail in such
litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees.

12. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by
the City and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

G-2



13. No waiver of: acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condition
hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any other,
further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition.

14. If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable under
applicable law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not be affected
thereby, and each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law.

15. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the
State of Wisconsin.

16. It is understood that in the event the above described Real Estate may become portions of public
streets; in which event, in the proceedings for the acquisition of the property needed for such
streets by purchase, dedication or by condemnation, said lands shall be considered the same as
though this easement had not been executed or any rights granted thereby exercised.

17. That the Grantor shall submit as-built drawings of the installed facilities on mylar for approval to
the City Engineer, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

G-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Gran.tor has hereunto set its hands and seals

ONTHISDATEOF: Jc,il\vv':f 21,Jill
Shass lwsh«oh LL

Company Name

Company Name Printed

» ggre;
Mkre and Tau.JG. &ss, P«««L

-:E:t2..AL.o f>tzSSQu .fi-2.ESL~T
Name & Title Printed

STATE OF MISC1M>

COUNTY OF VY)L\,., ,,~ 4,&L
ss

CITY OF FRANKLIN

t / ) "J-- J 2-02-4

Before me_personally appeared on the ::2 \ day of ~LUX2¥ , 202.,j., the above
named fE=AD 8urn> f<al2=>T of ST2AAS} 91»V5174-75 C

(Name printed) (Title (Development) 1

to me known to b~,U..pjirson(s) who execute egoing EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as
de vones.@#jig.g@id sororiio

$ :.° • :O' «ARY ±
~ (,lj I O ' : N~~~~::::::=';7"--------------
±uu{ - 'z: o
: -, l ~ ,-." ,. II : - :

; I ~,i:I'):
Z • ue ;5?·, ,,.' r, ..I,, (,))..,__...... _,, ----\"'~II'.-, l' .:.tJ ........ - - .s°'?,, •Tr " w s»,,,,,,, c::: r __ ,.,..,,,.,-.

nu4uwsw""

By: _
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

By: _
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE

On this__ day of , 20_ before me personally appeared Stephen R. Olson and
Sandra L. Wesolowski who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are respectively the Mayor and City
Clerk of Frankl in, and that the seal affixed to said instrument is the corporate seal of said municipal
corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing assignment as such officers as the deed
of said municipal corporation by its authority, and pursuant to Resolution File No. adopted
by its Common Council on , 20__.

Notary Public _

My commission expires _
G-4



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, Compeer Financial, PCA, a federally chartered instrumentality ("Mortgagee"), as
Mortgagee under that certain Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded in the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on July 12, 2019, as Document No. 10887996 and
its addition as an encumbrance against title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly authorized
officers and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above written.

Compee · cial, PCA a federally chartered instrumentality
N 11 charte · · ed or printed

aert Vice President
e & Title

STATE OF MINNESOTA )
S.S.

COUNTY OF DAKOTA )
TAMMIE MAYTA PAN
NOTARY PUBLIC· MINNESOTA

MYCOMMISSION EXPIRES 01/31/2024

On this, the 19day of January 2021, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Troy
Mostaert, the Vice President of Compeer Financial PCA, a federally chartered instrumentality, and
acknowledged that he executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said instrumentality, by its authority
and for the purposes therein contained.

1
~

- /11 22
-+ De#°
cos»so« le.id
My commission espires one. <n o1,2o2/

This instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin.

Approved as to contents
Date: --------

Approved as to form only
Date: --------

Glen Morrow, Manager of Franklin Municipal Water Utility

Jesse Wesolowski, City Attorney

G-5



Exhibit A
(Description of the Property)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Lot 83 of Ryan Meadows, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 Section 30, Town 5 North, Range 21 East. in the City of Franklin, County
of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin.

G-6



Exhibit B

LOT84
RYAN

MEADOWS

LOT82
RYAN

MEADOWS

L29

a52
'Ls4

20'

a,L48 ~
i
%

t0 L44
'II" co
..1L46 :;;

8

L58

SHEET 1 OF 2 05/05/2020
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

WWW.FNNACE-ENRCOM PEGJOB#809.200

LOT83
RYAN

MEADOWS

TIE UNE
N21"48'1rE 21.63'

L37

L35
L64

-

I. 3
a,... ll'lI ... 0...

L11 ?0
::i L9 N

5I 83 z

500'

---r
I
I

N44°53'25"E
28.30'

1" • 250'

WATER MAIN EASEMENT
75,610 SO. FT,--+--t+--20'
1.7358ACRES.

0

GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

I I I

L62
SW CORNER SWCORNER I :3 co ~ lo L56
NW 1/4 sec. 30 OT4 _, ..J L60 ..J ..J
T5N,R2 1E t--

/A sasssz 134678 9 9"25'48W _53197.
V SOUTH UNE OF THE NW 1/4 ' - '39'32"E 662.99' L1OF SECTION 30

.i. EXHIBIT
.. 1111 PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP

15850W.BLUEMOUNDROADISUITE2IOIIIR00ICFIELD, N SlOCK

G-7



Exhibit C
.. .

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE

LINE NO. BEARING DISTANCE LINENO. BEARING DISTANCE LINENO. BEARING DISTANCE
L1 N36"15'31"W 32.66' L23 NT74S1TE 1471' L45 S00"34'12"E 20.00'

L2 N80'34'3W'W 15.05' l24 N31"30'36"E 107.4T l46 N89"25'48"E 7.00'

L3 N45"49'13"W 66.53' L25 S59"07'0S'E 20.00' L47 S00"34'12'E 223.00'

LA N00'34'12"W 183.34' L28 S31"30'38'W 116.23' l48 S89"25'48"W 7,01)'

Ls S89'25'48"W 47.00' L27 $774s17w 25.29' L4D S00-34'12"1: 20.00'

L6 N00'34'12"W 20.00' L28 8892648w 117.811' l50 H8D"25'48"E 7.00'

L7 N89"25'48"E 47.00' L29 N89"25'4B"E 15.517 L51 S00-34'12"e 178.00'

L8 N00"34'12"W 280.00' L30 S00"34'12"E 5.50' l52 S89'25'4B"W 7.00'

L9 5892548"w 47.00' L31 NA9"254SE 38.26' L53 S00"34'12'E 20.00'

L10 N0"342wW 2000' l32 S80"34'38'1; 24 94 L54 N8925'48"E 7.00'

L11 N89"25'48"E 47.00' l33 S38'15'31"E 40.81' l55 S00"34'12"E 275.92'

L12 M003412W 280.01' l34 S53"44'29'W 20.00' L56 S89"25'48"W 142.58'

L13 S89'25'48"W 47.00' L35 N45"49'13'W 49.911' l57 N00"34'12"W 5.50'

1.14 N00'34'12"W 20.00' L36 N8925'48E 21.00' l58 $89"2.5'48"W 20.00
L15 N89"25'48"E 47,00' L37 N00"34'12'W 15.00' L5D S00"34'12"E 5.50'

L16 N00"34'12."W 15.00' L38 $45410€ 74.22' L60 S89"25'48"W 232 72

L17 N89"25'48"E 20.00' L39 S00"34'12'E 58.75' l61 N00"34'12"W 5.50'

L18 S00"34'12"E 15.00' uo 589248w 7.00' l62 S892548W 20.00'

L19 N89'25'48"E 144.48' L41 S00"34'12"1; 20.00' L63 S00"34'12"E 5.50'

L2D S45"41'06"E 9078' l42 N8924E 7.00' l64 S89".25'4B"W 38.43'

L21 S00'34'12"E 1416' L,43 S00"34'12"E 241.4¢

L22 N89"2548E 115115' L44 S89"2&'48'W 700'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
Beings pert ofLot 83 of RyanMeadows, located in the Northeast 1M4 end the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 14ofSeclon 30, Townshl6 North, Range 21 East, In
the Clty ol Frankl, Mllwraukge County, Wkonshin, deasalb ed as fallows:

Commendng at the gout/west cnamerolhe Nthwas! 1/4 ofsald Sack6n30; thence SouthB93g32East along lhe south llreolslNorthweel 1/4, 1345.74 feel to
the southwest comerof sald tot 83; thence condnlngSuh893932Est along the south ine ofsol} Lot 3, 862.99 fest tothe westerly right ol way lbeof Monarch
Drva; thence North 53"44"2" East along sald wet line, 32.45 feet to thePolntofDainnlng;

ThenaNorth 36"15'31" Waa1, 32.88 lest; thence North 80"34"38"WIIIII, 15.0Sfeal; thence South9"2$'48West, 531.97 feat to a de line; thence North21"46'17" East
along sald be lhe, 21.63 feet; hence North 45"4913West, 40.96feet; hence Noth003412" wegt, 1059 34 fest;thence North 89"25'48 Egel,21.00 feet; thence
North00'34'12" Weal, 15.00 root: thenoaNorth892548'Eest, 415.82 feet;theno South4541'08 Eat, 74.22 feet; thence Buth00"3412 East, 68.75 feel; thenoe
South 8925'48" West, 7.00 fool: lhencoSouth 00"34'12" East. 20.0 foot; thonoo Norh 89"2548 East, t00 fool; 1honooSouth 00'34'12" East, 241.46 fooclhollC0
Suth 892548" Wet , 7.00 test; thenceSouth00"34"12" Eaa1, 20.0 fest; thence Nar1h 89'25'48" East, 7 OD faal; thenceSouth00'34'12" East, 223.00 feet: lhenoe
South 89'25'48" Wosl. 7.00 foot: llloACO South 00'34'12" East. 20.00 foct lhencoNor1h 89"25'48" East. 7 00 foot:1honooSouth 0034'12Est, 178.00 fool: lhenco
Soolh 89'25'48'West. 7.00feel : thenceSouth00"34'12" East. 20.00 feel: thenceNCJrlh 89"25"48" East, 7 00 feel;1henoe South 0034'12East, 276.92 feel' thence
South892548" Weal, 142.58feet; thence NorthOJ3412west, 5.50 feet; thenceSouth89"25'48 Waat,20.DOfeet; thence South QU3¢' 12" Et, 5.50 feel; thence
South 8925'48" West, 232.n feel: thence North00"3412West, 5 50 feet: theraceSoulh89"25'48" West. 20.00feel: thence Sou1h00'34'12' EBSI. 5 50 feet; thence
South8925'48" Wet, 38.43 lest lo the afores ald le llnea; thence South 2148'1rwest along sald la ire, 21.63 teat; thence North 4549'13" West, &6.53 fee t; thence
North0034'12" West, 183,34 feet; thence South 89"25'48"Wnt, 47,00fe&I; thenceNorth 00"34'12"Wesl, 20.00feel:1henceNcflh89'25'48" E11$1. 47.00 feel:lhence
North00"34'12" West. 280.00faat: thenceSouth 89"25'48" Wnt, 47.00feet lhanceNorth 00"34'12"Waal,20.00 featlhancaNllllh89'25'48"&sl.47.00 feet: thence
North00'34'12" West 280.01 feet; h0nc South 89"2548 Wost, 47.00foot; thencsNorth00"34'12"W0st.20.00foetlhunoeNC111189'25 '48"fllil. 47.00 feol: lhllncc
North003'12Wast, 279.47feet;tanca North 44"63'25Esg t, 28.39 faal; thenaa North89"25'48East, 280.23 fest; thenca North0034'12West, 15.00 feet; thens
North89'2S'48"Eut, 20.00 foot: lhonco South 00'34'12" Eaat, 15.00 leal: thonooNorlh89"25'48"Eas~ 144.48 foot: 1honoo South 45"-411()6" East, 90.76fool; thonco
South 0034'12" Est, 14 16feet; thence North892548" Eest, 115.85 feet;thenegNorth7745'7 Est, 14,71 feet thence North313r38" Eas4, 107.47 feet to the
southwostorly right o way lleofMonarch Dtwo; then South 5907'08" East long sald right ofway lo,20,00 foot; thencoSouth3130/36" Wst, 116.23 foot: thono
Su4h774547Wel, 25.29 teet' thence South 89258west, 117.89eat; thenaeSouth O034'12'Es! , 1025.78 feet thence North 892548Eest, 15.50feet
thence Sulh 00'34'12" East, 5.50 feet; thencos North89"2548° East , 36.26 feet; thenceSuh8034'38 " East,24.94 feet; thence South 38 15'31 £asl, 40.1 feet to
the aforesalkd westerly right ofwa y lie of Monarch DOdver; thence South $34429 Westtong saldght ofwey line, 20 00 fee to he Painl Beginning

.ai.EXHIBIT
PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP
\S8SOW.OLUEMOUNDROADl5Ul1E2IOIIIROOKFIELD.WJ!a0Cll5

SHEET 2 OF 2 01/26/2021
PLAN IDESIGN I DELIVER

WWW.ANNACLE-l !NCR.COM PEG J00#809.20l3

G-8
L ENGDOCS\Design Standards (7-2017)\Design Standards July 2017\Design Standards finalized for July 2017\2019 Updated Design Standards Appendix G

Easement for Water #5 doc



APPROVAL

Shor
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF STORM
WATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS

FROM MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC; OAKES ESTATES,
LLC; OAKWOOD AT RYAN CREEK, LLC; AND TI
INVESTORS OF FRANKLIN APARTMENTS LLC

MTG.DATE
04/05/2021

ITEM NO.

BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), and Wisconsin
Department of Natural resources (WDNR) require storm water management facilities for any
developments which meet thresholds as defined in their individual ordinances and rules. These
facilities as designed may be for quantity and/or quality control. In the City of Franklin these are
typically wet ponds, biofiltration basins, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available. As a MMSD customer and designated by the
WDNR as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City's Ordinance is written to not only
include City quantity requirements, but also MMSD quantity requirements, and WDNR quantity
and quality requirements. The facilities within private developments are involved in those credits.
Therefore, ongoing maintenance ofprivate facilities is imperative.

It is the responsibility of the development owner, or a subdivision homeowners association, to
maintain the storm water facilities in perpetuity per a prescribed Maintenance Agreement. The
current agreements include the Loomis Business Park/Ryan Meadows Subdivision development
at S. 112" Street and W. Ryan Road (by Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC), Oakes Estates development
on S. 92' Street (by Oakes Estates, LLC), Ryanwood Manor at S. 76" Street and W. Oakwood
Road (by Oakwood at Ryan Creek, LLC), and the multi-use development on Statesman Way
between S. 31" Street and S. 27th Street (by TI Investors of Franklin Apartments LLC). The
Ryanwood Manor and Statesman Way documents are Addenda to the original Agreements, as
modifications have taken place since the original Agreements that required additional and/or
revised documentation.

ANALYSIS
The DNR offers standard Operation and Maintenance templates for amultitude ofBMPs, and most
engineers use those to develop site-specific Maintenance Agreements. The attached Agreements
were prepared by the developers and their engineers and revised as necessary per Staff comments.

OPTIONS
A. Sign Maintenance Agreements.

FISCAL NOTE
All costs associated with storm water facility maintenance are to be paid by the developer, owner,
or homeowners association as stated in the individual agreement.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Resolution 2021- .a resolution to authorize acceptance of Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreements from Oakes Estates, LLC; Oakwood at Ryan Creek, LLC; and TI
Investors of Franklin Apartments LLC.

Engineering Department: SAA

L \ENGDOCS\CA\CA Storm Water Management Agreements Apnl 2021 docx



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2021 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS FROMMILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC; OAKES
ESTATES, LLC; OAKWOOD AT RYAN CREEK, LLC; AND TI INVESTMENTS OF

FRANKLIN LLC

WHEREAS, storm water facilities are required to meet quantity and quality standards;
and

WHEREAS, a Maintenance Agreement is developed and executed to ensure effective
maintenance and operation ofprivate storm water facilities in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, developers have executed and submitted to the City of Franklin Storm
Water Facilities Maintenance Agreements for the following developments:

Loomis Business Park/RyanMeadows Subdivision by Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC
SW Quadrant of S. 112" Street and W. Ryan Road

Oakes Estates by Oakes Estates, LLC
East of S. 92"" Street and W. Grandview Court

Ryanwood Manor by Oakwood at Ryan Creek, LLC
NW Quadrant of S. 76% Street and W. Oakwood Road

Multi-Use Development by TI Investors of Franklin Apartments LLC
Statesman Way between S. 31" Street and S. 27" Street

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept such Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreements, and, therefore, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and
directed to execute them on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2021, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor



ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES

SAA

NOES ABSENT--



STORM WATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT

Oakes Estates Subdivision
AtApproximately 92nd St, Warwick Way, and Cambridge Drive

Tax Key 754-9998-000 (Before Land Division)

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this /0 day of ¾"~ ,20~
by and between Oakes states LLC , hereinafter called e "Owner", and
the City of Franklin, hereinafter called the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following described lands situated in the City
of Franklin, County ofMilwaukee, State ofWisconsin, to-wt:

Part of the Southwest I/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 9, Town S North, Range 21 East of the
Fourth Principal Meridian, in the City of Franklin, County ofMilwaukee County and State of
Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: Beginning at the Southwest comer of the
Northwest 1/4 of said Section S; run thenceN0003'00W, 659.57 feet along the West line of the
Northwest 1/4 of said Section 9; thenceN8834'18"E, 1325.64 feet to the West line of Stone
Hedge Subdivision Addition No. I, recorded in the Office of the Register ofDeeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on June 14, 2005 as Document No, 09028234; thence S00°
08'32"E, 659.95 feet along the West line of Stone Hedge Subdivision Addition No. 1 to the
South line ofthe Northwest 1/4 of said Section 9; thence S83521"W, 1326.69 feet along the
South line of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 9 to the point of beginning ofthis description,
Containing 874,719 square feet or 20.081 acres. Hereinafter called the "Property".

WHEREAS, the Owner is developing the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Site Plan/Subdivision (Site Plan, Special Use, PD.D., CSM or Subdivision)
known as OakesEstatesSubdhlon (Nameof Plan/Development)
herei nafter called the "Plan", which is expressly made a part bereof, as approved or to be
approved by the city , provides for on-site Storm Water Facilities within the confines of the
Property us shown on theplan attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and more particularly described on
Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, its successors and assigns ("successors and assigns"
meaning to include any homeowners' association and all owners of the property or any portion
thereof), including any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Franklin, require that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined in Section
15-8.0600 Uified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin be constructed and
maintained on the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City requires that on-site storm water management practices as shown on
the Plan be constru cted and adequately maintained by the Owner, its successors and assigns.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
contained herein, and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows.

l. The on-site storm water facilities shall be constructed by Owner in accordance with the
plans and specifications which are identified as part of the stor water system plan and
erosion control plan approved by the City Engineer and submitted as part of the as-built
drawings approved by the City Engineer. Fountains and/or aerators shall not be installed
in any ponds without priorwritten approval from the City Engineer.

2. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
which require that the Stonn Water Facilities shall be regularly inspected and maintained
as often as conditions may require, but in any event, at least once each year. The
Standard Operation and Maintenance Report attached to th is agreement as Exhibit "A"
and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular
inspections of the Stonn Water Facilities. The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall
keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past inspec tions, as well as a log of
mamtenance activity indicating the date and type of maintenance completed of the Stonn
Water Facilities. The purpose of the inspecti ons is to assure safe and proper functioning
of the facilities. The inspections shall cover all stonn water facilities, including but not
limited to open swales (ditches), storm sewers, manh oles, inlets, berms, outlet structures,
pond areas and access roads. Deficienc ies shall be noted in the Oper ation and
Maintenance Report. The Reports and maintenance log shall be made available to the
City fur review.

Q-1



3 The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant penm1sson to the City, its authorized
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to 1DSpect the Storm Water
Facihties, whenever the City deems necessary The purpose of 1Dspect1on is to provide
penodic review by City staff, to mvestgate reported deficiencies and/or to respond to
citizen complaints The Caty shall provide the Owner, 1ts successors and ass1gns, cop1es
of the IDSpection find1Dgs and a directive to commence with the repairs if necessary
Corrective actions shall be taken within a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer

4 The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately mamtain the Storm Water
Facihties, mcludmg but not limited to all pipes and channels bmlt to convey storm water
to the facility, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetatJon provided to control
the quantity and quahty of the storm water. Adequate maintenance 1s herein defined as
keeping the Storm Water Fac1ht1es m good working condition so that these storm water
facilities are performing ther design functons and are m accordance wth the Stormwater
Basin Maintenance Standards as detailed in Section 15 8.0600 of the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordmance, and Section 13 12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District (MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a part hereof

5 If the Owner, its successors and assigns fails to mamtam the Storm Water Facilities m
good workmng condrtion acceptable to the Cty and does not perform the required
corrective actions ID a time as established by the City Engineer in wntten notice, the City
may

a) Issue a citation to the Owner, 1ts successors and assigns Such fa1lure constitutes a
volat1on of Section 15 8.0600 of the Umfied Development Ordinance of the City of
Frankl1n The penalty for such violation of Section 15 8.0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution
Each day that the v10Iat1on exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the correctrve actions 1dent1fied m the inspect1on report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns, for the cost of such work. The cost of such work
shall be specially charged agamst the Property pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.0627 If the facilities are located on an outlot owned collectlvely by a
homeowners association, the City may specially charge each member of the
homeowners assocat1on according to the ownership interest mn the faclites located
on the property This provision shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any
structure of permanent nature on the land of the Owner outside of the easement for
the Storm Water Faciht1es. It is expressly understood and agreed that the City is
under no obligation to routmely maintain or repair said storm water management
practices and m no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
obligation on the City

6 In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and apphcable easements performs work
of an emergency nature, or expends any funds mn performance of said work for labor, use
of equipment, supphes, matenals, and the hke, the Owner, its successors and assigns,
shall reimburse the City upon demand, withn thirty (30) days of receipt thereof for all
actual costs IDCUrred by the City hereunder

7 This Agreement imposes no hability of any kind whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to mndemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability in the event the Storm
Water Facilities fail to operate properly

8 This Agreement shall be attached as an exh1b1t to any document which creates a
homeowners assoc1aton that 1s responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water Facilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, and shall constitute a
covenant runnmg with the land, and shall be bmdmg on the Owner, its adm1D1strators,
executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors ID interest, IDClud1Dg any homeowners
association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof The owner shall
provide the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeowners assoc1atton
that is responsible for the Storm Water Faciht1es

9 The owner, 1ts successors and assigns, 1s prohibited from building structures, installing
play equipment, mstallmg plants, changing grades or performmg any function that
inhibits care and ma1Dtenance of any Storm Water Facilities

10 The owner, ts successor and assigns shall mantamn, at all times, an mndrvdual(s) who will
serve as a contact person(s)

Q-2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the City and Owner have set forth their hands and seals, effective the
date first above written.

-mzrr5..}-¥-¥ }yner

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss.
Racina COUNTY)

Personally came before me this [ day or Hvyk ,20z, the above
named Maxwell J Oakes Inc., to me known to be the person who executed
the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in th papacity indicated .

. CARO. A. csAz kl \yyo
NOTARY PUBLIC Notary

STATE OF WISCONSINMy co

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Name: Stephen R. Olson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED:
By:
Name: Sandra L. Wesolowski
Title: City Clerk

STATE OFWISCONSIN)ss.
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came beforeme thisdayof20, the
above named Stephen R. Olson, Mayor and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named
municipal corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said
municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing instrument as such
officers as the Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to the Resolution
File No. __, adopted by its Common Council on thisday of _
20

Notary Public, MilwaukeeCounty, WI
Mycommission expires: _

This instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City of Franklin.

Form approved:

Jesse A.Wesolowski, CityAttorney

0-3

___________(Seal)

___________(Seal)



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSPECTION REPORT
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PONDS

City of Franklin

Name ofDevelopment Oakes Estates Subdivision

Responsible Party Name _ Address _

Telephone No _ Fax No E-mail _

Inspector Name _ Address _

Telephone No _ Fax No _ E-matl _

Basm Locatmn General Address Sectmn No _

Nonna) Pool D Yes D No

Items mspected Checked Mamtenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

(Yes/No/NA)
I Embankment and Emergency spillway

I Vegctaton and oround cover adeouate
2 Embankment erosmn
3 Amrnal burrows
4 Unauthonzed plantmgs
5 Cracking, bulgmg, or shdmg ofdam

I Uostream face
2 Downstream face
3 At or beyond toe

Upstream
Downstream

4 Emergencv spillway
6 Pond, toe & chney drams functoning
7 Seens/leaks on downstream face
8 Slope protection or rprap failures
9 Emergency spillway clear ofdebns
IO Othedsoecifv)

2 Riser and principal spillway
Type Remforced concrete --

Corrugated metal pipe --
PVC/HOPE --
Masonrv

l Low flow onfice obstructed
2 Primary outlet structure

I Debns removal necessary
2 Corrosion control

3 Trash rack mamtenance
I Debns removal necessary
2 Corrosion control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debris bmldup in low flow
Pilot channel or bottom (estimate depth)

Q-4



EXHIBIT "A-1"

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
PLAN STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

City of Franklin

Thus operation and maintenance plan prescribes the minimummaintenance requirements the Owner(s), tts successors
and assigns, must meet to remain. complant with thus /Agreement. The maintenance activities listed below are aimed to
ensure the storm water best management practices continue serving their intended functions 1n perpetuity. The list of
activities 1s not all inclusrve, but rather mndcates the minimum type ofmaintenance that can be expected for th1s
particular stte. Access to the storm water practices for maintenance vehicles shall be from the public road right of
ways over the drainage easements to the top ofberm and to the pond structures. Any failureofa stormwater practice
that ts caused by a lack ofmaintenance will subject the Owner(s), 1ts successors and assigns, to enforcement ofthe
provisions listed in this Agreement by theCatyofFranklin.

System Description:
The wet detention ponds are des1gned to trap a rmrumum of 80% of sediment in runoffand maintain pre
development downstream peak flows, Stormpipes convey runoff. In addition to runoffconveyance, thegrass
swales also allow for infiltration and filtering ofpollutants especially during smaller storm events. The wet ponds
will trap the smaller and finer suspended solids For thewet ponds to be effective, the pond size, water level and
outlet structure must bemaintained

Minimum Maintenance Requirements:
To ensure the proper long-term function of the stormwater best management practices, the followmg activities must
be completed:

1. Inspect inlets,manholes, pipes, and end sections at least twice a year andafter heavy rainfall. Repair any
deter1oration threatening structural integrityimmediately, replaceworn orcracked frames and lids, re-set any
shifted frames, repatr spalled or cracked mortar, repair or replacecracked nngs, repair leaking Jomts, clean
manholes, pipes and storm inlet inverts ofdeposited mater1al, remove potential sources of contamination
away frominlets andmanholes.Removeanyobstructions fromend sections,resetend sections that have
separated fromstormpipe, repair scourareas immediately. Replacemissing soilwith clean fill and
replace/install end treatment Missingarmoringwill require additional stone, typically one class larger

2. AII pond inlet and outlet pipes must be checked sem1-annually to ensure there ts no blockage from
floating debris or ice, espectally m front ofthe dewatering holes and the trash rack on the risers Any
blockage must be removed immediately

3. Grass swales and dramage easements shall be preserved to allow free flowing of surface runoffm
accordance with approved grading plans, no buildings or other structures are allowed in these areas. No
grading or filling ts allowed that may mterrupt flows m any way.

4. Grass swales, inlets and outlets must be checked after heavy rains (nuntmum of annually) for signs of
erosion. Any eroding areas must be repaired mmmediately to prevent premature sediment butld-up m the
downstream ponds Erosion matting s recommended for repairing grassed areas

5 No trees are to be planted or allowed to grow on the earthen berms. Tree root systems can reduce sml
compaction and cause berm failure. The berms must be inspected annually, and any woody vegetation
removed

6. Invasive plant and arumal spectes shall be managed in compliance with Wisconsin Administrative Code
Chapter NR 4). Thus may require eradication ofinvasive spec1es in some eases

7. If the permanent pool falls below the safety shelf, a review shall be performed to determine whether. the cause
is hner leakage or an 1nsuffic1ent water budget If the cause 1s leakage, the liner shall be repatred



Leakage due to muskrat burrows may require removal of the arumals, repair of the hoer with clay, and
embedding wire mesh in the hoer to deter further burrowing. If the permanent pool cannot be sustamed at
the design elevauon, benchmg of the safety shelfmay be necessary

8 If floating algae or weed growth becomes a musance (decay odors, etc.), tt must be removed from the ponds
and deposited where tt cannot dram back into the ponds. Removal of the vegetat1on from the water reduces
regrowth the following season (by harvesting the nutrients) Wetland vegetation must be maintained along
the waters' edge for safety and pollutant removal purposes

9 Ifmosquitoes become a nuisance, the use of mosquito larvicidc, containing naturally occurring BTI soul
bacteria, 1s recommended.

10 When sediment in the pond has accumulated to an elevation of 3 5 feet below the outlet elevat10n, It must
be removed. Measurements to check the depth of sediment can be completed by starting at the elevation
of the lowest dewatering hole and measuring down to the sediment level wtthtn the ponds. It anticipated
that sediment may need to be removed in approximate 20-year cycles All sediment must be removed from
the site or placed in an appropriate upland disposal site and stabilized (grass cover) to prevent sediment
from washing back into the pond. Meet Wtsconstn Admtrustrattve Code NR 500 for disposal
regmrements A two-foot clay liner has been mstalled mall the ponds When performing sedtment
removal, the contractors must review the approved construction plans for the stte to determine the or1ginal
shape of the pond and the ongmal design depth of the pond so that the excavation does not disturb the
clay liner. An engineer and/ or surveyor wt th expenence in storm water ponds can provide techrucal
assistance in reviewing the plans and providing staking and elevation guidance during excavaton.
Excavation below the orgnal design depth ts prohibited unless a geotechntcal analysts 1s completed per
Wisconsin DNR Techntcal Standard No 1001 and any changes in the design are reviewed and approved by
the City ofFrankhn.

11. No grading or filling of the ponds or berms other than for sediment removal ts allowed, unless otherwise
approved by the Caty of Franklin.

12. Periodicmowmg ofthe grass Swales will encourage vigorous grass cover and allow better inspections for
eroston Watung untl after August 1 will avoid disturbing nesting wildlife. Mowing around the ponds
may attract nmsance populat10ns of geese to the property and 1s not necessary or recommended

13 Any other repair or maintenance needed to ensure the continued function of the storm water practices or as
ordered by the CIty of Franklin under the prov1stons listed in thus Agreement.

14. Aerators/Fountains - If an aerator or fountain 1s desired for visual and other aesthetic effects (aerators
designed to mtx the contents of the pond are prohtb1ted) they must meet all the items below

Use an aerator/ fountain that does not have a depth ofmfluence that extends mto the sediment
storage depth (1 e more than three feet below the normal water surface)

ii. If the water surface drops due to drought or leakage, the aerator/fountam may not be operated
until the water rises enough for the depth of influence to be above the sediment storage layer.
Therefore, 1f the depth of influence of the aerator / fountain 1s two feet, the water surface must be
within one foot or less of the lowest pond outlet

iii. Provde an automatic shut-off of the aerator/ fountain as the pond starts to rise during a storm
event. The aerator/ fountain must remain offwhle the pond depth returns to the permanent pool
elevation and, farther, shall remam off for an additional 48 hours, as required for the design
mtcron particle size to settle to below the draw depth of thepump.

1v. Configure the pump mtake to draw water pr1manly from a horizontal plane so as to nurunuze the
creation of a circulatory pattern from bottom to top throughout the pond



Exhibit B-1

1
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

__ J

7
I

z

W Warwick Way

· '36' E

$ 88'35'21" w 137.60

/
/

VJ

) ---) -

TEDI AAIDS



ExhibitB-2

LOJ'NO 16

~ ,,. .. . .so6 w2zig4... "' ,,.. .. ., ~ .

I
I

tr>Ien.
3l
NI

, La.I I
• I81
'31
3' I
vi I

I
I
I

· · · : : . : . : oun.or 3
. 6038'09" E 89.94..

... .... ... ... . ....... .. . . .... .. .. .



EXHIBIT "C"

Drainage Easement Legal Description for Outlot 1:

Part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 9, Town 5 North, Range 21
East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee
County and State of Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:

Begin at the Southwest corner of Outlot 1 of the Oakes Estates Subdivision, recorded in
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on ]1> , 2020
as Document No. ((oo772 ;thence N00"08'32"W, 292.93 feet along the West line
of said Outlot 1 to the Northwest corner of said Outlet 1 and the South right of way line
of Warwick Way; thence N89°48'23"E, 137.57 feet along said South right of way line to
the Northeast corner of said Outlot 1 and the East line of said Subdivision; thence
S00°08'32"E, 290.00 feet along the East line of said Subdivision and Outlot 1 to the
Southeast corner of said Subdivision and said Outlot 1; thence S88°35'21 "W, 137.60
feet along the South line of said Subdivision and said Outlot 1 to the Point of Beginning.
Containing 40,097 square feet or 0.921 acres.

Drainage Easement Legal Description for Outlot 4·

Part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 9, Town 5 North, Range 21
East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee
County and State of Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:

Begin at the Southwest corner of Outlot 4 of the Oakes Estates Subdivision, recorded in
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on [o , 2020
as Document No. {tole2l ; thence N00"03'00"W, 367.42 feet along the West line
of said Outlot 4 and the East right of way line of South 924 Street to the Northwest
corner of said Outlot 4 and the South right of way of West Warwick Way; thence
N89°57'00"E, 150.00 feet along the North line of said Outlot 4 and South right of way
line of Warwick Way to the Northeast corner of said Outlot 4; thence S00°03'00"E,
258.87 feet along the East line of said Outlot 4; thence S60°38'09"W, 89.94 feet along
the Southerly line of said Outlot 4; thence 2118'59"E, 68.08 feet along the Southerly
line of said Outlot 4; thence S88°35'21 "W, 46.78 feet along the South line of said Outlot
4 the East right of way of South 924 Street and to the Point of Beginning. Containing
47,486 square feet or 1.090 acres.



,,
ls11·,,
,\'E1

L- RI I / \ \@ ,. ,.
«Er 9 \

3
--4 ---------- l- '

,, ,, ''
,, ,, i'
,, ,,

'
,, ,,

! !
,, ,,

El EI
,, ·: :t:J ,,

l
,,

' I,, :: ,.... , I,, .I'-· ,,
'·'! f - . LJ ! ",.
I' I CIz-' :
I

ii
•l
J.__ ~!.2::.!:!.J



Document No.
ADDENDUM TO THE STORM WATER

FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

This Addendum to the Storm Water Fac1ht1es Mamtenance Agreement is hereby made
and entered mto thus day of2021, by and between Oakwood at
Ryan Creek, LLC, the property owner, and the City ofFranklm, 1t bemg intended that
this Addendum be recorded as an addendum to the Storm Water Facihties
Mamntenance Agreement recorded on September 23, 2019 as Document No. 10909500,
m the Register ofDeeds ofMilwaukee County, State ofWisconsm to provide for the
mamtenance reqmrements and specifications for a fountain the property owner has
mstalled on the property

The addendum is bemg recorded to include a fountain that was added to the wet
detention pond located mn Outlot 2, Ryanwood Manor The location 1s 1dent1fied
on the attached Ryanwood Manor Fountam Location map labeled as Exhibit A.
The fountam owner manual mcludmg mamtenance recommendations are attached
as Exh1b1t B. The float for the fountain 1s 1dentrfied on the attached Exhibit C. The
legal descnptton of the land covered by the recorded Mamtenance Agreement and
this Addendum is identified on the attached Exhibit D.

The fountain shall be mspected twice a year and after heavy ramfalls when all the
other stormwater management practices are mspected.

All other terms and conditions as descnbed in Document No 10909500 remam
mplace

NAME AND ADDRESS RETURN
CITY OFFRANKLIN
CIO CITY CLERK
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132

Pin: 934-0034-000
(Parcel Identification number)

OAKWOOD AT RYAN CREEK, LLC

peaau.z1"a orh , 202l

CITY OF FRANKLIN

Dated th1s_day of,20

Signature (print name below)

Steve DeCleene Member

STATE OF WISCONSIN, -'-
COUNTY OF lcasno, )) ss

Signature

S1gnature

(pnnt name below)

(pnnt name below)

Stephen R Olson, Mayor

2HSubscnbed and sworn to (or affi9Ded) before me this __
day of Ah ,2a4

> -,> A
-~--~-----~--~---- (type name below)

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN
COUNTY OF _/)) SS.

Subscnbed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me th1s
day of , _

_____________ (type name below)

Notary Public, State ofWisconsin
My Commtss1on (expires) (1s)



EXHIBIT A
Ryanwood Manor
Fountain Location

Nozzle: Mahogany style (28'x64)

Maximum extension of
pattern (64' diameter)

Fountain Specifications:
5.0 HP J-Series Fountain - includes float, single phase 208-240V
power unit (20 amp), propeller, debris screen, quick disconnect with
cap, 300' cable with flex sleeving and C-95 control panel with GFI and
mechanical timers. Includes 5 patterns and Mahogany nozzle.

A- 1



EXHIBIT B

Kasco
Owners Manual

J Series Fountain
3400JF & 3400HJF
4400JF & 4400HJF

lntertek
3020379

ANSI/UL 778 2016
Ed 6+R.22Feb2017

CSAC222#108 20!4Ed5

Kasco Marine, Inc.
800 Deere Rd.

Prescott, WI 54021
PH (715) 262-4488
FAX (715) 262-4487
www.kascomarine.com

B - 1
Rev 03/2019



2

EXHIBIT B

Table of Contents

Important Safety .
General Instructions .
Cord Gauge Chart .
Unit Specs .
Parts Included .
Tools & Supplies Needed .
Assembly Instructions .
Nozzle Options....
Installation Instructions....
Maintenance Recommendations....
Warranty Pohcy....
Billing. ...
Troubleshooting Tips .
3400J Replacement Parts .
4400J Replacement Parts .

8-2

pg3
pg3
pg4
pg4
pg4
pg5
pg6
pg8
pg8
pg9
pglO
pgl1
pgl2
pgl3
pgl4



EXHIBIT 8
THANKS
We at Kasco Manne, Inc. would lke to both thank and
congratulate you on your purchase of the JF model
aeratmg fountain. We appreciate you choosing Kasco
and for your purchase. The JF model Fountain will
help mmprove water qualty by adding much needed
oxygen and circulation and enhance the aesthetics of
the pond or lake with a beautiful fountain pattern. The
lighting package (af purchased) wll illuminate your
fountain for beauty at night. We thank you for choos
mg Kasco for your fountain needs and want you to be
completely satisfied with your purchase.

Important Safety

Please read and follow these extremely important
safety and handling instructions for your Kasco equip
ment. Following these instructions will help ensure
your safety and the quality performance of your equip
ment.

• Under NO circumstances should anyone enter the
water with the electncal equipment plugged in
and/or in operation. All Kasco equipment is ETL
approved to UL and CSA standards for safety in
water and all fountain models mclude control pan
els with GFI protection. However, it is NEVER
recommended to enter the water with the equip
ment in operation.

• Caution should be used when dealmg with any
electrical equipment with movmg parts.

• NEVER run the umt out of water. It will damage
the seals and create a dangerous situation for the
operator.

• Extreme caution should be used around water,
espec1ally cold water, such as in Spring, Fall, and
Winter, which poses a hazard in and of itself.

• NEVER lift or drag the fountain by the power or
light cord. If you need to pull the unit to the side
of the pond, use the anchoring ropes.

• Do not use waders in deep ponds/lakes or ponds/
lakes with drop-offs, drastic slopes, or soft bottom
material.

• Do not use boats that hp easily for fountain m
stallation, such as a canoe, and follow all boatmg
safety rules and regulations, including wearing a
PFD. (Personal Flotation Device)

• The fountain is supplied with an internal ground
ing conductor and a grounding-type attachment

plug. To reduce the nsk of electncal shock,
be certain that the fountain 1s plugged into the
C-25 Control Box (120V) or C-85 Control Panel
(240/208V) supplied by Kasco and that the C-25
is plugged into a properly grounded, grounding
type receptacle or the C-85 is wred properly. The
GFCI breakers should be tested upon each instal
lation and every month thereafter to ensure proper
operation.

General Instructions

INSPECT THE SHIPMENT
Immediately mspect your Kasco Fountamn shipment
for any visible damages. Also cross reference the
parts supplied with the Parts Included sheet to check
for shortages. Shortages should be reported immedi
ately to your Kasco Marine distributor or representa
tive and damages reported to your earner and Kasco
Marine.

ASSEMBLY & INSTALLATION
Please see the proper Assembly and Installation In
structions enclosed in this manual. Each is specific for
your model and size of Fountain. Note: Use a nylon
tie to help keep the power cords for the umt and hghts
free of the propeller by tying each cord to either side
of the float. If you have a light kit, make sure that the
unit cord 1s tied to one side of the float and the light
cord to the other for balance. Note: It is extremely
important to test the GFI breaker in the control panel
upon each mstallation/reinstallation of the unit to en
sure proper functioning.

USE AND OPERATION
Kasco Fountains are des1gned and engineered for
continuous duty, such as on fish farms or other aqua
culture applications, or on-demand use, as needed mn a
recreational water feature.

During flotation operation, the water 1s pulled from
360° around the unit and from below the umt The
water is pulled upward and thrust through the flotation
collar into the air.

Your Kasco Marine Fountain is ready for immediate
use (after installation). The motor and ball beanngs
are submerged in oil and no further lubncation is
needed. Make sure to keep the motor housing clean

B-3 3



EXHIBIT B
from hard water deposits and/or algae.
(See Maintenance Recommendations.)

It 1s extremely important that proper and sufficient
voltage (120V or 240/208V) 1s supplied to the Foun
tain motor. Each 120V Fountain is supplied with a UL
and CSA approved C-25 GFI Protected Control Box.
The Fountain is to be plugged into the C-25 outlet
labeled "UNIT" and the C-25 plugged into a properly
grounded receptacle (See C-25 Instructions on page
12). Each 240V Fountain is supplied wth a UL and
CSA approved C-85 GFCB Protected Control Panel.
The Fountain is to be hardwired into C-85 panel. The
C-85 must have 4 wire service (LI, L2, neutral, and
ground) installed by a qualified electric1an. (See Wir
ing Instructions). It is extremely important to test the
GFI breaker in the control panel upon each installation
and reinstallation and every month thereafter to ensure
proper operation.

UNIT STORAGE
When storing units during the offseason, it 1s impor
tant to store them upside down if they are going to be
sitting for long periods of time. Units that sit upnght
on a shelf for many months, or even years have a
greater likelihood of seals drying out. Storing upside
down will ensure oil 1s lubricatmng the seals and pre
vent drying.

Cord Gauge Chart
Length Gauge 3400 3400H 4400

4400H
50° 16 X

50° 14 X X

100' 14 X X

100° 12 X

150° 12 X X

150° 10 X

200' 12 X X

200' 10 X

250' 12 X

300' 12 X

400' 12 x

Unit Specs

Parts Included

Model Voltage Amps Lock Control Fountamn
rotor box con- connec
amps nectton t1on

3400JF 110-120 6.7 18 C-25 Plug mnto
plug 1 C-25

3400HJF 208-240 3 3 9 Hardwire plug mto
C-85 or hard-

wre C85
4400JF 110-120 10 7 40 C-25 Plug into

plug mn C-25
4400HJF 208-240 53 20 Hardwire plug mto

C-85 or hard-
ware C85

4

# Item Part# Qty
1 Fountain 1
2 Float 242001 1
3 1/4-20 x 4" Phllips Pan Head 251220 4

Screw
4 1/4" split washers 840537 7
5 1/4" (3/4" OD) Flat Washer 251300 10
6 1/4 -20 x 1-3/4" Hex Head Bolt 475630 3
7 Bottom Screen Sect1on 361540 3
8 1/42-20 Nut 840536 3
9 #8 nut 771034 6
10 #8 flat washer 361543 12
11 #8 lock washer 771033 6
12 #8 x 3/4" screw 361545 6
Mooring ropes 990700 2
cable ties 415038 9

B-4



c!
5

l

L3

EXHIBIT B
Also Included:
• Cord m separate box (1) (dependmg on length of

cord)
• Control Box (C-25 for 120V units in Float box

or C-85 for 240V umts in separate box) (1) (Not
Pictured)

TOOLS & SUPPLIES NEEDED
• Anchors or stakes for instalhng umt (2)
• # 2 Phillips head screw driver
• 120V or 240V Electrical Supply near pond on a

post with room for mounting the C-25 or C-85
• # 10 x 1" long or longer screw(s) for mounting the

C-25 (3)or C-85 (4)
• 7/16" Socket and Ratchet
• 7/16" Wrench
• 11/32" wrench (for #8 fasteners)

Assembly instructions on next page

Set oflnterchangeable Nozzles (4)
# Item Part# Qty
1 Sequoia Nozzle 431230 1
2 Linden Nozzle assembly 431232 1
3 Birch Nozzle 431234 1
4 Cypress Nozzle 431236 1

B-5 5



EXHILII B

4. Tighten down IO 6
places to hold the
screen together.

For quicker assembly:

Use cable tie instead

f I 3-

2 Lock washer goes
between bolt and
flat washer. Tighten
down IO 4 places

Ahgn bolt holes
with holes on

, cone.

3 Turn over. Bring
bottom screen
sections together

Assembly Instructions
1. Rest the float on

the 4 legs of the
housing

5. Secure the bottom screen
to the float IO 3 places.

Make sure cord 1s
sticking out ofnotch

6
B-6



EXHIBIT B
6 Tum upright Secure

power cord to rope hole

7 Choose Nozzle Push
nozzle mto cone and
twist the 3 tabs to lock
into the nozzle plate.

With Stramn Relief

OR

Without Stram Rehef

Shipped with Sequo1a nozzle preinstalled

8 lfready to mstall m the pond, go to Installat10n instructmns Light Kits can
also be installed at thus time, go to Laght kit instructions

B-7
7



EXHIBIT B

Model Height Width
3400JF/HJF 6.5' 21'
4400JF/HJF 9' 31'

Model Height Width
3400JF/HJF 7' 5'
4400JF/HJF 11' 8'

Willow Display:
No nozzle installed

Model Height Width
3400JF/HJF 7' 17'
4400JF/HJF 9' 28'

Model Height Width
3400JF/HJF 13° 8°
4400JF/HJF 18° 11°

Linden Display:
The Linden nozzle

Nozzle Options
NOTE: Pattern s1zes listed are approximate. Vara
tons in voltage caused by regional electrical differenc
es or voltage drop due to long power cords may result
m reduced pattern sizes.

To install, place ormng around outlet and simply twist
the nozzle into the 3 lockmg tabs.

Sequoia Display:

Model Height Width
3400JF/HJF 9' 29°
4400JF/HJF 12° 31'

Cypress Display:

Installation Instructions
Use the ropes to position the Fountamn mn the des1red
location m the pond/lake. Anchor the ropes or secure
them to the shoreline so the ropes are free of slack, but
not tight. To prevent twisting of the unit due to torque,
you should place the anchor at least 3 feet from the
float for each foot of depth (Ex A 6 foot deep pond
would require an anchor 18 feet horizontally from the
float.)

8 B-8



EXHIBIT B

incorrect Anchoring
i
., . .

gr · '

Maintenance Recommendations

Under No Circumstances should anyone enter the
water while a fountain is operatmg. kk

** Please keep the ongmal box for mamtenance ship
ping.**

The followingmaintenance procedures can be utilized
to ensure many years of quality performance from
your Kasco Fountain and reduce the need for more
costly repair work.

OBSERVATION: Operatmg equipment should be
observed on a regular basis (daily, if possible) for any
reduction or variation in performance. If a change
in performance is observed, the equipment should be
disconnected from power andmspected for any ma
terial that may have clogged the system or wrapped
around the shaft of the motor, especially plastic bags
and fishing line. Even though Kasco Aerators and
Fountams are among the most clog-resistant on the
market, it is impossible to protect against all items that
can clog eqmpment and still maintam a flow of water.
These materials can be very damaging to the equip
ment under contmued operation and must be removed
as soon as possible. ALWAYS UNPLUG THE UNIT
BEFORE ATTEMPTING TO REMOVE CLOGS.

PROPER INSTALLATION: Proper mstallat1on of
Kasco equipment will mclude a power source with
ground fault interruption (GFI). For Fountain models,
the C-25 control (120V) or C-85 (240/208V) mcluded
with the unit have built-in ground fault interrup
tion that is sufficient. Ground fault interrupters are
a safety feature that can also alert you to electncal
leaks m the equipment. It is extremely important to
test the GFI upon installation, each remstallation, and
monthly thereafter to ensure proper operation. If you
have repeat, consistent trips on your ground fault, the
equipment should be disconnected and removed from
the water. The power cord should be inspected for
damage and you should call Kasco Marine at 715-262
4488 for further instructions or email Kasco at

··· sales@kascomarine.com.

High Water Level

L.ow Water level

Normal Water Level

ALTERNATE INSTALLATION
In ponds where the water level fluctuates significantly,
you may need to suspend a small weight (12" of 17
galvanize pipe works well) at the mid-point of the
rope to take up any slack as the water level drops. The
weight should be lght enough so the Fountamn can rise
as the water level rises. This can also help hide ropes
by sinking them further below the surface.

WINTER STORAGE: In regions where there is
significant freezmg in the wintertime, the fountams
should be removed from the water to protect them
from the expansion pressure of the ice. In many areas,

B-9 9



EXHIBII B
fountains wll keep some amount of 1ce open through
the winter. However, when the water 1s thrust into
the air, 1t is exposed to the colder air temperatures
longer and can actually make 1ce thicker on the pond/
lake. Storage over wmter is best in a location that is
out of the sun and cool, but above 32°F When storing
umts during the offseason, it is important to store them
upside down if they are going to be sitting for long
penods of time. Umts that sit upright on a shelf for
many months, or even years have a greater likelihood
of seals drying out. Storing ups1de down wall ensure
oil is lubricatmg the seals and prevent drymg.

CLEANING: Fountains should be removed from the
water at least once per year (at the end of the season
in cold climates) to clean the exterior of the system,
especially the stainless steel motor housing (can). The
motor housmg is the surface that dissipates heat into
the water and any algae, calcium, etc. build-up will be
come an insulator that blocks heat transfer. In warmer
regions it 1s recommended that the motor 1s removed
and cleaned at least two to three times per year de
pending on conditions. In most cases a power washer
will be sufficient if the umt and algae are still wet.

SEAL AND OIL REPLACEMENT: This is a sealed
motor assembly and seals will wear out over time
(similar to brake pads on a car) Replacement of the
seals and a change of oil after three years may add
longevity to the operation of the motor, saving you the
cost ofmore expensive repairs. In warmer climates
where the fountain runs most or all of the year, it is
a good idea to replace seals more regularly than you
would need to in colder climates where the unit is
removed from the water for several months.

Seal replacement and all other repair services should
be performed by Kasco Marine or a Kasco tramed
Authorized Repair Center. Any alterations or changes
made to Kasco un1ts by an unauthorzed source will
void the warranty. This includes tampering with the
unit, power cord, and/or control box Please contact
Kasco Marine, Inc. at 715-262-4488 for your nearest
Author1zed Repair Center.

ZINC ANODE: A Sacrificial Zinc Anode is supplied
on the shaft for protection of the eqmpment from cor
ros1on and electrolysis. The zinc anode should be up
dated (replaced) if reduced to half the ongmal size or
if white in color. Corrosion from electrolysis 1s more

commonly associated with saltwater or brackish water,
but as a matter of precaution, it 1s important to periodi
cally check the zmc anode in all mstallations (at least
every two to three months).

Warranty Policy

Warranty Period:
Models:
3400JF, 3400HJF, 4400JF, 4400HJF - 2 years

Kasco Marine, Inc. warrants this Fountain to be free
from defects m matenal or workmanship (except for
the ropes, power cord, and propeller) under normal
use and service. The Kasco Marine, Inc. obligation
under this warranty is limited to replacmg or repainng
free of charge any defective part within the warranty
period from the date of shipment. Customer shall pay
shipping charges for returning the umt to Kasco or an
Authorized Repair Center.

THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER
WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AND
ANY OTHEROBLIGATION OR LIABILITY
WHATEVER ON THE PART OF KASCO MARINE,
INC. AND IN NO EVENT SHALL KASCO MA
RINE, INC. BE LIABLE FORANY SPECIAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

Warranty is void if:

• The Fountam is not maintamed properly accordmg
to the Maintenance Recommendations supplied in
this Owners Manual.

• The Fountain is returned for repair without the
power cord or if the unit, control box, or power
cord are altered in any way from original ship
ment. Cuts in the power cord are not covered
under warranty.

• The Fountain 1s damaged by unauthorized tamper
ing.

• The Sacrificial Zinc Anode around the propeller
shaft shows s1gnifcant deterioration. (The Anode
must be inspected periodically and replaced if
necessary.)

Warranty ClamProcedure:
Check the eleven-digit serial number printed either on
the black cover of the motor or on the blue nameplate
and determine the year ofmanufacture according to

10 B - 10



the serial number scheme below:
EXHIBIT B

claim.

Sample Serial #
70 01 vx 2 1725
The first two digits represent the reverse of the last
two digits of the year of manufacture.

Example: 80 = 2008 model year.
The third and fourth dug1ts represent the week of the
year. (Ex. "01" for 1st week in Jan.) model.

The best method for estabhshing warranty period is by
keeping your original receipt. Also register the Foun
tain online at: www.kascomarine.com
Kasco Marine will have a record of the purchase and
will be able to determine whether or not the unut still
canes warranty coverage.

Once the warranty coverage has been established, the
unit may be sent to any Kasco Authonzed Repair Cen
ter for evaluation and repair. Please call Kasco Marine
at 715-262-4488 prior to shipping.

Kasco Marine, Inc.
800 Deere Rd.
Prescott, WI 54021
Attn: Repairs

Or call Kasco Manne at 715-262-4488 to locate your
nearest Authorized Repair Center. You can also email
Kasco at sales@kascomanne.com

Note: Only complete motor assemblies will be ac
cepted for warranty repair. The power cord and all
other components must be returned with the motor
as originally assembled. Anymissing parts will be
replaced at the customer's expense and, if determined
to have caused the failure, could void the entire war
ranty. Some parts are essential for structural support
during shipping and others, such as the power cord,
are essential to properly diagnose potential causes of
failure. It is not necessary to return the control box or
float with the motor assembly.

Please include the Repair Form received from Kasco
Marmne or your local distributor with the shipment. If
no Repair Form is available, include your name and
physical address for return delivery of the repaired
unit and a daytmme phone number and/or e-mail ad
dress for correspondence regarding the warranty

Any expedited shipping method for the return of the
unit 1s at the customer's expense. Kasco Marine will
return units repaired under warranty at our expense v1a
ground freight within the continental United States.

Other Repairs:
Most failed eqmpment can be repaired at substantially
lower costs than replacement wIth new. Please sh1p
according to the instructions mn the previous sect1on.
Again, it is best to call ahead for a Return Authori
zation Number and/or Repair Form so we know the
repair is coming.

Kasco Marine does estimates on repairs at the request
of the customer. The request for estimate should be
included in the letter that accompanies the returned
unit andmust mclude a daytime phone number and/or
e-mail address. Estimate options are as follows:

We will contact the customer with a total after the unit
has been evaluated, but before the work is performed.
We will repair the unit only if repair costs are under a
stated dollar amount. Example: "Please repair if total
1s under $150.00 before shipping charges."

All estimates that are rejected for repair will be de
stroyed unless otherwise directed by the customer. If
the customer would like the unit returned, the unit will
be restored as closely as possible to the condition in
which it was received and shipped at the customer's
expense for shipping and handling charges.

Billing:

All non-warranty repairs will be returned to the cus
tomer prepaid withVisa or Mastercard or shipped
C.O.D. with C.O.D. charges unless otherwise directed.
Kasco Marine will contact for credit card information
upon completion of the estimate.

All other warranty and repair inqmries should be di
rected to Kasco Marine, Inc. at 715-262-4488 or
sales@kascomarine.com

B -11 11



EXHIBIT B
Troubleshooting Tips

Below are some helpful troubleshooting tips. If a
problem occurs, please double check the assembly and
mstallat1on instructions as well as the mstructlons for
the proper control panel. More troubleshooting tips
can be found at www.kascomarine.com

"My Fountain trips the groundfault interrupter in the
C-25, C-85, or C-95."

This is the most common symptom of several
poss1ble problems. To correctly diagnose the problem,
you will need to collect more information. A Ground
Fault Interrupter (GFI) breaker that trips can in-
dicate an electrical service problem, water contamma
tion mn the unit and/or cord, bad breaker, control
box problems, motor problems, etc. Try to find out the
answers to these questions before you contact
Kasco to narrow down the problem.
• How long does it take to trip the breaker?
• Does it always take the same amount of time to

tnp?
• How many times has 1t tripped?
• Has there been any electrical problems in the area

recently?

"My Fountain seems to run slowly."
This can also be a symptom of several possible

problems. There could be an electrical problem where
the unit 1s not getting the proper voltage. Thus could
also indicate a problem wth the motor of the unit'wh1ch needs to be looked at by an Authorized Repair
Center. Check that the unit is receiving the proper
voltage, and, if so, contact Kasco for further steps.

"My Fountain hums, but wll not start. When I spin
the prop with a stick, it starts up."

This indicated a problem with the Starting
Capac1tor. Each Kasco Fountain 1s equipped with a
Starting Capacitor to get the unit going when it s first
plugged m. If it is operatmg, but not spmmng and can
be started by spinning the prop with a stick, the Start
ing capacitor needs to be replaced by anAuthorized
Repair Center.

"My Fountain turns tselfoffand back on without the
tmer and wthout trppng the GFI breaker "

Each Kasco Fountain has a Thermal Overload
bult in that will tum the unut offwhen 1t overheats.
Once the unit has cooled down, it will start back up. If
12

you are noticing these symptoms, the unit should be
unplugged immediately because the Thermal Overload
wIll continue to turn on and off until 1t burns out and
damages the motor. The unit should be unplugged and
taken out of the water to find the cause of the problem.
The problem could be one ofmany, such as, low water
levels, build-up on the unit to prevent heat diss1pat1on,
something inhibiting the free rotation of the shaft, etc.
If something is caught in the unit or there 1s a build-up
of algae, calcrum or orgamc matter on the unit, remove
the debris and, if caught early enough, the unit should
be fine. Contact a Kasco representative before restart
ing the unit.

"My Fountain flow seems to fluctuate and/or be less
than usual "

Thus can occur because of a few different rea
sons. Most of the time, this symptom is caused from
unit being clogged with debns. A mat of weeds, many
leaves, plastic bags, etc. can clog up the unit and cause
it to be starved of water. If the unit does not have the
proper amount of water, the flow or pattern will fluc
tuate up and down and look sporadic. If you are see
ing these symptoms, unplug the unit and clean away
the debris that is cloggmg up the screen. Another
possibility 1f these symptoms are noticed, 1s a chipped
or damaged prop that is causing the unit to wobble and
not pump properly. When the unit 1s unplugged, check
the prop for damages and replace if damage is found.

"The GFI breaker trips randomly and sporadically
Sometimes t is afew hours ofoperation, other times it
can be days or weeks."

This is referred to as a Nuisance Trip. This
usually occurs where the unit is installed a great
distance from the initial electnc service on the prop
erty where the ground stake is placed. It is caused by
either induced current m the ground wire or a base
voltage difference due to soil pH levels. To resolve
the problem, contact an electrician and install a local
groundmg stake. This may eliminate the induced cur
rent and any base voltage differences. This problem
can also be caused by a bad breaker or receptacle or
having unbalanced mcommg voltage Imes.

B - 12



EXHIBIT B

3400J REPLACEMENT PARTS

eo-%
18 ·..· ..

\

PART NO DESCRIPTION QTY
990275 0 RING,CORD

2 243475 ZINC ASSEMBLY
3 990410 DEBRIS FLINGER, .500 DIA SHAFT 8
4 431100 BASEPLATE, 3400J 4400J
5 431246 ORING, FOR BASE
6 140312 RETAINING CLIP 4
7 475630 1 /4-20 X 1-3/4" BOLT 4
8 840538 NUT, l /4 -20, SERRATED FLANGE 8
9 342058 1/2-20 JAM NUT 1
10 475642 WASHER, 1/2" 2 g°
11 431150 IMPELLER, 3400J 012 431200 CONE 3400J 4400.J %
13 451130 l /4-20x l" HEX HEAD CAPSCREW 4
14 431220 NOZZLE PLATE I
15 431 242 SCREW, #10-14 x¾ PH, 3400J 4400.J 3 @ .,
16 431 248 ORING, FOR NOZZLES, 3400.J 4400.J l %
17 431230 NOZZLE, SEQUOIA
18 431234 NOZZLE, BIRCH
19 431236 NOZZLE, CYPRESS
20 431232 NOZZLE LINDEN ASSEMBLY

B- 13 13



EXHIBIT B

4400J REPLACEMENT PARTS

-2
18

\

1

PART NO DESCRIPTION QTY
990275 ORING CORD

2 243475 ZINC ASSEMBLY
3 990410 DEBRIS FLINGER. .500 DIA SHAFT
4 431100 BASEPLATE. 3400J 4400J
5 431 246 ORING FOR BASE
6 140312 RETAINING CLIP 4
7 475630 1 /4-20 X 1-3/4" BOLT 4
8 840538 NUT, 1 /4 - 20, SERRATED FLANGE B
9 342058 1 /2-20 JAMNUT l
10 475642 WASHER, 1/2" 2 +,11 431170 IMPELLER 4400J l
12 431200 CONE, 3400.J 4400J 1
13 451130 1/4-20 x 1 HEX HEAD CAPSCREW 4
14 431220 NOZZLE PLATE
15 431248 ORING, FOR NOZZLES, 3400J 4400.J

@)
0

16 431242 SCREW #10-14x%PH 3400J 4400J 3
17 431230 NOZZLE, SEQUOIA. 1
18 431 234 NOZZLE BIRCH
19 431236 NOZZLE CYPRESS 884180
20 431232 NOZZLE, LINDEN ASSEMBLY

B- 14



EXHIBIT C

MERCURY DISPLACEMENT INDUSTRIES, INC.
Post Office Box 710-U.S 12 East- Edwardsburg, Michigan 49112-0710

Phone (269) 663-8574- Fax (269) 663-2924
(800) 634-4077

PW2CWSOF1
MECHANICAL FLOAT

120V PIGGYBACK PLUG

SO FEET IN LENGTH

16-2 AWG CORD
BLACKSJOW

2.625

NORMALLY CLOSED
PUMP UP

NARROW ANGLE
WHITE FLOAT SWITCH

1-al(9

OPERATING ANGLE: CONTACTS OPEN @ 25° (OR BEFORE} ABOVE HORIZONTAL
CONTACTS CLOSE @ HORIZONTAL

ELECTRICAL RATINGS: 1 /2 H.P. @ 120/240 VAC
13AMPS @ 120/240 VAC 58.8 LRA

FLOAT MATERIAL: A.B.S.

®• LR-41198 LISTED®93774 J.J.S. April 29, 2020

Contactors - Relays - Switches

http://www mdius.com

C - 1



EXHIBIT D
Legal Description

Ryanwood Manor:
Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 ofthe Southeast 1/4 ofSection 28, Township 5 North,
Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows:
Commencing at the southeast comer ofthe Southeast 1/4 ofsaid Section 28; thence South 88°25'24" West
along the south lune of sad Southeast 1/4, 600.00 feet; thence North 012536° West and then along the
east line ofOutlot 1 ofCertified Survey Map No. 411 0, 80.00 feet to a point on the north right ofway line
West Oakwood Road; thence North 88°25'24" East along said north right ofway line, 90.000 feet to the
point of beginning; Thence North 01925'36" West, 211.61 feet; thence North 88°3424" East, 150.00 feet;
thence North 11 °47'41" West, 234.63 feet; thence North 68°25'55" West, 221.14 feet; thence North
00°21'59" West, 465.00 feet; thence South 89°38'01" West, 700.00 feet to the west line of the East 1/2 of
said Southeast 1/4; thence North 00°21 '59" West along said west line, 898.44 feet; thence North 89°45'49"
East, 779.37 feet; thence South 45°24'34" East, 468.11 feet; thence North 89%45'49" East, 150.00 feet to
the west right of way line South 76th - County Trunk Highway "U"; thence South 00°14'1 l" East along
said west right ofway lme, 343.47 feet; thence South 89°45'49" West, 182.00 feet; thence South 00°14'1 l"
East, 180.00 feet; thence North 89°45'49" East, 182.00 feet to the aforesaid west right ofway line; thence
South 00° 14' 11" East along said west right ofway hne, 20.00 feet; thence South 89°45'49" West, 182.00
feet; thence South 00°14'1 l" East, 180.00 feet to the north line ofCertified Survey Map No. 4108; thence
South 89°45'49" West along said north line, 60.00 feet to northwest comer of said Certified Survey Map
No. 4108; thence South 00°14'1 l" East along the west line ofsaid Certified Survey Map No. 4180, 180.00
feet to the southwest comer of said Certified Survey Map No. 4108; thence South 89°45'49" West, 60.00
feet; thence South 00°01 '32" West, 210.75 feet; thence North 88°33'42" East, 121.03 feet to the northwest
comer ofCertified Survey Map No. 1911; thence South 00°14'1 l" East along the west line ofsaid Certified
Survey Map No. 1911, 239.34 feet to the southwest corner ofsaid Certified Survey Map No. 191; thence
North 88°33'42" East along the south line of said Certified Survey Map No. 1911, 182.00 feet to the
aforesaid west right ofway line; thence South 00°14'11" East along sad west right ofway line, 60.74 feet;
thence South 08° 16'54" West along said west nght ofway lne, 101.50 feet to the north right ofway line of
Oakwood Road; thence South 88°25'24" West along said north right ofway line, 125.00 feet; thence South
77°15'47" West along said north right of way line, 206.66 feet; thence South 88°25'24" West along said
north right ofway line, 109.79 feet to the point ofbeginning. Containing 1,268,627 square feet (29 .1237
acres) ofland.

Ryanwood Manor Addition No. 1:
Being a part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 28, Township 5 North, Range 21 East,
City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsm, more particularly described as follows:
Commencing at the southeast comer ofthe Southeast 1/4 ofsaid Section 28; thence South 88°25'24" West
along the south line of said Southeast 1/4, 600.00 feet; thence North 01 °25'36" West and then along the
east line ofOutlot 1 ofCertified Survey Map No. 4110, 80.00 feet to a point on the north right ofway lmne
West Oakwood Road and the point ofbeginning; Thence continuing North 01°25'36" West along said east
hne, 223.35 feet to the northeast comer of said Certified Survey Map No. 4110; thence South 88°34'23"
West along the north line of Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 4110, the north line of Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No. 4109, the north line ofParcel 1 ofCertified Survey Map No. 2190 and the north
line of Certified Survey Map No. 436, 711.57 feet to the northwest corner of Certified Survey Map No.
436; thence North 00°21'59" West, 783.70 feet to the southwest comer ofRyanwood Manor, a recorded
subdivision; thence North 89°38'01" East along the south hne ofsaid Ryanwood Manor, 700.00 feet to the
west line of said Ryanwood Manor; thence South 00°21'59" East along said west line, 465.00 feet; thence
South 68°25'55" East along said west line, 221.14 feet; thence South 11°47'41" East along said west hne,
234.63 feet; thence South 88°34'24" West along said west line, 150.00 feet; thence South 01 °25'36" East
along said west line, 211.61 feet to the north right of way line of West Oakwood Road; thence South
88°25'24" West along said north right ofway line, 90.00 feet to the pomt ofbeginning. Containmg 624,557
square feet (14.3379 acres) ofland.

D-1



STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCEAGREEMENT

(Addendum to November 22, 2017)
RECORDED DOC. #10813997

Tlus AGREEMENT, made and entered mto tlus 2t day of A , 2021,
by and between TI Investors ofFrankhn Apartments LLC, he rafter called the "O ner", and
the City of Franklin, hereinafter called the "City"

WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following described lands situated 1 the City

of Franklin, County ofMlwaukee, State ofWisconsin, to-wit.

Bemg a part of Lot 2 ofCerb.fied Survey Map Number 7905, located ma part of the Southeast 1/4
of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 12, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, m the City ofFranklm, Milwaukee
County, W1sconsm, now being more particularly bounded and descnbed as follows

Commencmg at the Southeast Comer of the said Northeast 1/4 Section, Thence North 00°00'27"
West along the East hne of the Northeast ¼ of said Section a distance of 664 I7 feet to a pomnt,
Thence South 87°39'42" West 80 07 feet to a pomnt on the Westerly nght-of-way he of "South 27th
Street", sad pomt bemg the Northeast corner of Parcell of Certified Survey Map No 5794 and the
place ofbegmmng oflands heremafter descnbed;

Thence continumg South 87°39'42" West along the North !me of said Certified Survey Map No
5794 a distance of 1241 22 feet to a pomt on the Easterly nght-of-way hne of "South 31st Street",
Thence North 00°00'31" West along said Easterly nght-of-way hne 662 82 feet to a pomt on the
South line of Certified Survey Map No 7807, Thence North 8735259" East along said South lme
and its extension 1073.64 feet to a pomt, Thence South 00°00'27" East 130 00 feet to a pomt, Thence
North 87°35'59" East 149 15 feet to a point on the West nght-of-way !me of"South 27th Street" as
shown on Transportation Project Plat No. 2265-16-20, Thence South 2032'55" West along said
West !me 32 80 feet to a point, thence South 0000'27' East along said West hne 375 00 feet to a
pomt, Thence South 10°18'45° East along said West lme 111 80 feet to a pomt, Thence North
89°59'33" East along said West hne 10 00 feet to a point, Thence South 00%00'27East along said
West !me 17 68 feet to the pomt of beginmng of this description.

The Gross area of said Parcel contams 786,887 Square Feet (or 18 0644 Acres) of land, more or
less The Net area of said Parcel after the Right-of-Way dedication of"Road A" contams 709,500
Square Feet (or 16 2878 Acres) ofland, more or less

Heremafter called the "Property"

WHEREAS, the Owner 1s developmg the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Site Plan/Subdrvs1on (S1te Plan, Spec1al Use, PD.D, CSM or
Subdrv1son) known as 7333S 27 t,Multi-Family heremafter called the "Plan", which
1s expressly made a part hereof, as approved or to be approved by the city, provides for on
site Storm Water Facl1ties wIthmn the confines of the Property, and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, 1ts successors and assigns ("successors and assigns" meaning
to include any homeowners' association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof),
mcludmg any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the residents
of the City ofFranklm, reqmre that on-site StormWater Facilities as defined mn Sect1on 5-8 0600
Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklm be constructed and mamntamed on the
Property, and

WHEREAS, the City reqmres that on-site storm water management practices as shown
on the Plan be constructed and adequately mamtamed by the Owner, Its successors and assigns

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
contamed herem, and the fo\lowmg terms and cond1t1ons, the parties hereto agree as follows

The on-site storm water fac1hties shall be constructed by Owner mn accordance with the
plans and specifications which are 1dentufied as part of the storm water system plan and
erosion control plan approved by the City Engmeer and subnutted as part of the as-built
drawmgs approved by the City Engmeer

2 The Owner, 1ts successors and assigns, shall comply wth the ordmnances and regulations
which require that the Storm Water Faculties shall be regularly inspected and maintained
as often as conditions may require, but mn any event, at least once each year The
Standard Operation and Mamtenance Report attached to this agreement as Exh1b1t "A"
and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular
mspechons of the Storm Water Facilities The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall
keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past mspections, as well as a log of



maintenance actrvty mndcatmng the date and type of mamtenance completed of the Storm
Water Fac1htles The purpose of the mspect10ns 1s to assure safe and proper funct1onmg
of the fac1httes The inspections shall cover all storm water facilities, mcludmg but not
hm1ted to berms, outlet structures, pond areas and access roads Defic1enc1es shall be
noted m the Operation and Maintenance Report. The Reports and maintenance log shall
be made available to the City for review

3. The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permiss10n to the City, its authorized
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to mspect the StormWater Facilities,
whenever the Caty deems necessary. The purpose of mspection 1s to provde penod1c
review by Caty staff, to 1vest1gate reported defic1enc1es and/or to respond to citizen
complamts. The Caty shall provide the Owner, 1ts successors and ass1gns, cop1es of the
inspection findings and a drrective to commence with the repairs 1f necessary.
Corrective actions shall be taken w1thmn a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer

4 The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately mamntamn the Storm Water
Fachutes, Includmng but not limited to all pipes and channels bult to convey storm water
to the fac1hty, as well as all structures, rmprovements, and vegetation provided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water. Adequate maintenance 1s herem defined as
keeping the Storm Water Fachtres m good working condutron so that these storm water
facihtres are performmg their design functions and are in accordance with the Stormwater
Basmn Maintenance Standards as detailed 1 Secton 15 8 0600 of the City of Franklm
Umfied Development Ordinance, and Sect1on 13 12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropohtan
Sewerage Dstrict (MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a part hereof

5 If the Owner, its successors and assigns fails to mamtam the Storm Water Facilities m
good working condition acceptable to the City and does not perform the reqmred
corrective actions m a tline as established by the City Engineer m written notice, the City
may·

a) Issue a crtaton to the Owner, 1ts successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a
volat1on of Section 15.8 0600 of the Umufied Development Ordinance of the Caty of
Franklin. The penalty for such violation of Section 15.8 0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution.
Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the corrective actions identified m the mspection report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns, for the cost of such work. The costofsuch work shall
be specially charged against the Property pursuant to W1sconsm Starutes Sect10n
66.0627. If the facalrties are located on an outlot owned collectively by a homeowners
assoc1aton, the Caty may spec1ally charge each member of the homeowners
assoc1at1on accordmng to the ownership mterest m the facilities located on the property
This provision shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any structure of
permanentnature on the land ofthe Owner outside of the easement for the Storm Water
Fac1hties It is expressly understood and agreed that the City 1s under no oblgat1on
to routinely mamntamn or repair saId storm water management practices and in no
event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such oblgat1on on the City

6 In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and applicable easements performs
work of an emergency nature, or expends any funds mn performance of said work for
labor, use of equipment, supplies, mater1als, and the Ike, the Owner, its successors and
assigns, shall reimburse the City upon demand, within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof for
all actual costs incurred by the City hereunder.

7 This Agreement imposes no lablity of any kand whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to mdemmfy and hold the City harmless from any hab11ity in the event the Storm
Water Factlities fad to operate properly.

8 This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibitto any documentwhich creates a homeowners
assoc1at1on that 1s responsible for mamtenance of the Storm Water Fac1bties and shall be
recorded at the Milwaukee County Register ofDeeds, and shall constitute a covenant running
with the land, and shall be bmndmg on the Owner, Its admmistrators, executors, assigns,
heirs and any other successors mn Interest, mncludmg any homeowners association and all
owners of the property or any portion thereof. The owner shall provide the City with a
copy of any document which creates a homeowners association that 1s responsible for the
Storm Water Facilities

9 The owner, its successors and ass1gs, 1s prohibited from building structures, 1nstalling
play equipment, mstallmg plants, changmg grades or performmg any function that mh1b1ts
care and maintenance of any Storm Water Facilities

10 The owner, tts successor and assigns shall mamntamn, at all times, an 1ndvdual(s) who wll
serve as a contactperson(s)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owner have set forth their hands and seals,
effective the date first above wntten

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF.

.f.
STA E OFWISCONSIN)ss
tlare COUNTY)

, Owner

(Seal)

Personally c, e before me t s_21y or@nuard. ,2021 .de above named
) ,a 1 . ' If ' Inc , to me known to be,;the person who executed the foregomg

mstrument and ac owledged the same m the capacity md1cated

5%3
» 4% 82\ J
% ».wIs

T4gee8

By.
Name· Stephen R Olson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED
By·
Name Sandra L Wesolowski
Title: City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss
M1LWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me this day of , 202_, the above named
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named mumc1pal
corporation, City of Franklm, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said mumcipal
corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregomg mstrument as such officers
as the Deed of sa1d mun1pal corporaton by its authonty and pursuant to the
Resolution File No---~ adopted by its Common Council on thus day of
--------~202

Notary Pubhc, Milwaukee County, WI
My commission expires _

This mstrument was drafted by John M Bennett,
City Engmeer for the City ofFranklm

Form approved:

Jesse A.Wesolowska
City Attorney

CITY OF FRANKLIN

Notary Pubhc, ..Ll/JjJJr;:J!,,ta~_County, WI
My comm1ss10n expires. /I74/

________________{Seal)

________________(Seal)



EXHIBIT"A"

OPERATIONAND MAINTENANCEINSPECTION REPORT
STORMWATERMANAGEMENTPONDS

City ofFranklin
NameofD6Velopment _

Responsible Party Name. _ Address, _

TelephoneNo _ Fax No. _ E-mail _

Inspector Name _ free9fee

TelephoneNo. _ FaxNo _ E-matl

Basmn Locaton General Address Section No, _

Nonna] Pool D Yes D No

Items inspected Checked Maintenance Remades
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

fYes/No/NA)

1. EtubankmentadEmergency spillway
1 Vegetation andornnnd coverlute

2. Embankmentcroaion
3. Ammal bUJTOW8
4 Unauthorized nlant mnos
5 Cracking, bulging, or sliding of dam

1, Unemnenm face
2 Downstream face
3 At or beyond toe
Uostream
Downstream

4. Emeroencv spillwav
6 Pond, toe & chimneydrains

functioning
7. Seeps/leakson downstreamface
, Slopeprotection or riprap failures
9. Emeroecvsoillwav clear ofdebris

10. Other (specify)

2. Riser and principal spillway
Type. Remforced concrete

Conugated metal pipe
PVCIHDPE -
Masonry

1 Low flowonfice/'trash guard obstructed
- l Trash <rua rrl debris removal necessary

2. Primary outletstructure
1. Debris removalnecessarv
2. Conosion control

3 Trash rackmaintenance
1. Debris rem0val necessarv
2 Corroson control

3, Pond bottom
Sediment or debris buildup in lowflow
Pilot channel orbottom (estimatedeoth)



EXHIBIT "A" (Continued)

STORM SEWER SYSTEM
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

INSPECTION
A Frequency

a Inspect catch basins, inlets and manholes at least once per year
b Inspect storm sewer end sections at least twice per year and after major rainfall events

B Inspection
a. Catch Basins, Inlets and Manholes

Inspect for sediment deposition in the bottom of structures
ii Check frames and lids for cracks and wear such as rocking lids or lids moved by traffic

and for shifted frames
iii Check chimneys for cracked mortar, cracked lift rings and spalling
iv Check for leaks at joints
v Check surrounding areas for pollutants such as leaks from dumpsters, minor spills

and oil dumping.
b Storm Sewer End sections

I. Observe for obstructions, accumulation of sediment and trash, undermining and
joint separation

ii Inspect end treatment for settlement, scour and displaced armoring

II STANDARD MAINTENANCE
A Catch Basins, Inlets and Manholes

a. Repair any deterioration threatening structural integrity immediately

b Replace worn or cracked frames and lids Frames that have shifted should be re-centered
and re-set on the structure

c. Repair any spalled or cracked mortar Cracked rings should be repaired or replaced
d Repair leaking joints
e Clean manhole and storm inlet inverts of deposited material. Catch basins should be cleaned

before the sump is 40 percent full.
f Remove potential sources of contamination away from catch basins, inlets and manholes

B Storm Sewer End sections
a End sections should be free flowing, trash, debris and obstructions should be removed to

prevent backups.
b End sections which have separated from the storm sewer pipe shall be reset on firm bedding

and reconnected to the existing storm sewer pipe Restrain joints if necessary
c Scour areas shall be repaired immediately Replace missing soil with clean fill and

replace/install end treatment. Missing armoring will require additional stone, typically one
class larger.

d Excessive material deposited at the storm sewer outfall is indicative of: a disturbed area
upstream draining to the system or a potential failure of a system component Disturbed
areas draining to the system should be stabilized immediately or diverted to drain to a BMP
Potential system failures require non-standard maintenance.

111. NON-STANDARD MAINTENANCE
A Non-standard maintenance includes inspection, repair or replacement of buried structures

a. Televising of buried structures (pipes) should occur when excessive material is found within
the system or at an outfall with no apparent source area visible at the surface, or the system
experiences frequent backups

b Follow the recommendations for the repair and/or replacement of system components
televlsed by a firm specializing in this work



A..

$
aluz«
2:

it:, w
f,-

' 2:t:: 3£9
5 Ci:: fUl al

f,- E-¢ ri
0
f,-
(I'.)

INDICATES PRCll'OS ED
PAVEMENT OVER
PERVIOUS AREA

IND ICATES Rl!MOVAL OF
PAVEMENT CREAllNG

PERVIOUSAREA

•
A

TRIO

REVtslOff ffllTQAY

2 %re±~-- ....,,. ""'.·---~--- ...
DATIS

AI.IGLETIJ 20'2()

.I0 11 NUM l!lt:fll 1

'""'
DESCRIPTION:

EXHl3rT "8·
STDRMWATER

MAIHll;N ANCE MAP

SHEET

B



STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

LOOMIS BUSINESS PARK/RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION
SOUTHEASE CORNER OFLOOMIS ROAD (STH 36) AND RYAN ROAD

Ryan Meadows Outlot 1: 891-1085-000
Ryan Meadows Outlot 2: 891-1086-000
Ryan Meadows Outlot 3: 891-1087-000
Ryan Meadows Outlot 4: 891-1088-000

Tots AGREEMENT, made and entered into thusd ay of20
by and between Mi 11 s Hotel Wyoming, LLC , hereafter called the "Owner", and
the City ofFranklm,here1after called the "City".

WITNESSETII:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the followmg described lands situated mn the City
ofFrankl, County ofMilwaukee, State ofWisconsmn, to-wit

Beg Lot I, Lot 3 and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9095 and additional lands mn
the Southwest¼ and Northwest of the Northeast¼ AND the Northeast¼ of the Southwest¼
AND the Northeast and the Southeast of the Northwest , all 1 Section 30, Township 5
North, Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Hereinafter called the "Property''.

WHEREAS, the Owner 1s developing the Property, and

WHEREAS, the Site Plan/Subdrvsion (Site Plan, Special Use, P.D.D., CSM or Subdivision)
known as LOOMIS BUSINESS PARK /RYAN MEADOWS SUBDMSION heremafter called
the "Plan", which is expressly made a part hereof, as approved or to be approved by the city,
provides for on-sate Storm Water Fachties within the confines of the Property as shown on the
plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and more particularly descnbed on Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, its successors and assigns ("successors and assigns"
meaning to include any homeowners' association and all owners of the property or any portion
thereof), mcluding any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the Caty ofFranklin, require that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined m Section
15-8.0600 Urufied Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin be constructed and
mamtained on the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City reqmres that on-site storm water management practices as shown on
the Plan be constructed and adequately mantamned by the Owner, its successors and assigns.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
contamed herein, and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows·

I. The on-site storm water facilities shall be constructed by Owner in accordance with the
plans and specifications which are identified as part of the storm water system plan and
erosion control plan approved by the City Engineer and submitted as part of the as-built
drawings approved by the City Engineer. Fountains and/or aerators shall not be installed
mn any ponds without pnor wntten approval from the City Engineer.

2. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
which require that the Storm Water Facihties shall be regularly inspected and maintained
as often as conditions may require, but 1n any event, at least once each year. The
Standard Operat10n and Mamtenance Report attached to thus agreement as Exhibit "A"
and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular
inspections of the Storm Water Facilities. The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall
keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past Inspect1ons, as well as a log of
maintenance actrvty 1ducatmng the date and type ofmaintenance completed of the Storm
Water Facihttes The purpose of tlie mspections 1s to assure safe and proper functtorung
of the facilities. The inspections shall cover all storm water facilities, mcludmg but not
limited to open swales (ditches), storm sewers, manholes, 1nlets, berms, outlet structures,
pond areas and access roads. Deficiencies shall be noted m the Operation and
Maintenance Report. The Reports and maintenance log shall be made ava!lable to the
City for review. •

3 The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the City, its authorized
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to inspect the Storm Water
Facilities, whenever the Caty deems necessary The purpose of 1spectron 1s to provide
periodic revew by Caty staff, to mvcst1gate reported deficiencies and/or to respond to
citizen complaints The City shall provde the Owner, 1ts successors and ass1gns, copies

Q-1



of the inspection findings and a directive to commence with the repaITS if necessary
Corrective actions shall be taken within a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer.

4 The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately maintam the Storm Water
Facilities, including butnot limited to all pipes and channels built to convey storm water
to the facility, as well as all structures, improvements, andvegetationprovided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water. Adequate maintenance is herein defined as
keepmg the Storm Water Facilities in good working condition so that these storm water
facilities are performing their design functions and are in accordance with the Stormwater
Basin Maintenance Standards as detailed in Section 15.8.0600 of the City of Franklm
Umfied Development Ordinance, and Section 13.12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District (MMSD) rules, andbythis reference made a parthereof.

5. If the Owner, its successors and assigns fails to maintain the Storm Water Facilities 1n
good working condition acceptable to the City and does not perform the required
correctrve actions 1n a tmme as establishedby the City Engmneer m written notice, the Caty
may:

a) Issue a citation to the Owner, its successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a
violation of Section 15.8.0600 of the Umfied DevelopmentOrdinance of the City of
Franklin. The penalty for such violation of Section 15.8 0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution.
Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the corrective actions identified in the inspection report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns, for the cost of suchwork. The cost ofsuchwork
shall be specially charged against the Property pursuant to W1sconsm Statutes
Section 66.0627. If the fac1ltties are located on an outlot owned collectively by a
homeowners association, the City may specially charge each member of the
homeowners association according to the ownership interestm the facdities located
on the property. This provision shall notbe construed to allow the City to erect any
structure of permanent nature on the land of the Owner outside of the easement for
the Storm Water Facilities. It is expressly understood and agreed that the City is
under no obligation to routmely mamtam or repair said storm water management
practices and mn no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
obligation on the City.

6 In the event the City, pursuant to thisAgreement and applicable easements performs work
of an emergency nature, or expends any funds in performance of said work for labor, use
of equipment, supplies, materials, and the like, the Owner, its successors and assigns,
shall reimburse the City upon demand, withm thirty (30) days of receipt thereof for all
actual costs mcurred by the City hereunder.

7 This Agreement imposes no liability of any kmnd whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability m the event the Storm
Water Facilities fail to operate properly.

8. This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a
homeowners association that 1s responsible for maintenance of the StormWater Facilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, and shall constitute a
covenant running wnth the land, and shall be binding on the Owner, 1ts administrators,
executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors in interest, including anyhomeowners
association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof. The owner shall
provide the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeowners association
that 1s responsible for the StormWater Facilities.

9. The owner, Its successors and assigns, is prohibited from buldmng structures, installing
play eqwpment, mstallmg plants, changing grades or performmg any function that
inh1brts care andmaintenance ofany StormWater Facilities.

10. The owner, 1ts successor and assigns shall mantamn, at all times, an 1ndrvidual(s) who will
serve as a contactperson(s)

Q-2



IN WITNESSWHEREOF, the City and Ownerhave set forth theirhands and seals,
effective the date first above written.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF: /4,(· I/ lLl
a.I4I.u.rI-,Owner

STATEOFWISCONSIN)ss.
eUsHA COUNTY)

Persooav emmebjemeis 23" ayer hgrcl 2ca2dedove
named kpoheun Mall he, to me known to be the person who
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same m the capacity indicated.

2. %it±#.cl.##..E
My commission expires.he, 2

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Name: Stephen R.Olson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED:
By:
Name: Sandra L.Wesolowski
Title: CityClerk

STATEOF WISCONSIN)ss.
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came beforemethisdayof 20, the
above named Stephen R. Olson,Mayor and Sandra L. Wesolowski, CityClerk. ofthe above
namedmunicipal corporation, CityofFranklin, tomeknown to be suchMayor and City
Clerk of said municipal corporation, andacknowledged that they had executed the foregoing
instrumentas suchofficers as theDeed of saidmunicipal corporation by its authority and
pursuant to theResolution FileNo., adoptedby its Common Council on
this day of __.20_.

NotaryPublic, MilwaukeeCounty,WI
My commission expires: _

This instrumentwas drafted by the City Engineer for the CityofFranklin.

Formapproved:

Jesse A.Wesolowski, City Attorney

Q-3

---------'(Seal)

_________(Seal)



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATIONAND MAINTENANCE INSPECTIONREPORT
STORMWATERMANAGEMENT PONDS

City ofFranklin

Name ofDevelopment _

Responsible PartyName. Address

TelephoneNo.FaxNo.E-mail

Inspector Name, _ Address

Telephone No_ Fax No.E -mal

Basin Location General Address SectionNo

Norat Poot [lyes [Jo
Items mspected Checked Mamtenance Remarks

(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed
(Yes/No/NA

1 Embankment and Emergency spillway
1 Vegetation and ground cover adequate
2, Embankment erosion
3 Anunal burrows
4 Unauthorized plantmgs
5 Crackmg, bulging, or sldung ofdam

1 Upstream face
2 Downstream face
3 At or beyond

toeUostream
Downstream

4 Emergency spillway
6 Pond, toechimney dramns
funcuonme:
7 Seeps/leaks on downstream face
8 Slope protection or riprap failures
9 Emergency spillway clear ofdebns

10 Other (speedy)
2 Riser and prncapal spillway
Type: Remforced concrete

Corrugated metal pipe
PVC/HDPE
Masonry

1 Low flow onfice obstructed
2 Pnmary outlet structure

1 Debns removal necessary
2 Corrosion control

3 Trash rack mamtenance
1 Debns removal necessary
2. Corrosion control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debns buildup m low flow
Pilot channel or bottom (estimate denth)

Q-4



EXHIBIT "B"
DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

POi\DS 1-2.-t-6

••-...-'--1r••-a---- _.,. . __,. t-

i •
-JJ!fii. ••·-

. ,I;/ ~- '.. :,,'
7en ..3°±...'-----·"

•

Q-5



EXHIBIT "C"

DESCRIPTION OFEASEMENT AREA

Outlot 1 ofRyanMeadows Subchv1S1on, BeingLot 1, Lot 2 and Lot 3 andOutlot 1 ofCertified
Survey MapNo. 9095 and additional lands in the Southwest¼ andNorthwest¼ of theNortheast
¼ AND theNortheast¼ ofthe Southwest¼ AND theNortheast¼ and the Southeast¼ of the
Northwest ¼ all mn Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 31 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin.

Outlot 2 ofRyanMeadows Subdivs1on, Being Lot 1, Lot2 andLot 3 and Outlot 1 of Certified
SurveyMapNo. 9095 and additional lands in the SouthwestandNorthwest¼ of theNortheast

AND theNortheast¼ ofthe Southwest¼ AND the Northeast¼ and the Southeast¼ of the
Northwest¼ all in Section 30, Townslup 5 North, Range 31 East, City ofFranklm, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin.

Outlot 3 ofRyanMeadows Subdivision, BemgLot 1, Lot2 and Lot 3 and Outlot 1 ofCertified
SurveyMapNo 9095 and additional lands inthe Southwest¼ andNorthwest¼ of theNortheast

AND theNortheastofthe Southwest¼ AND theNortheast and the Southeast¼ of the
Northwest ¼ all 1n Section 30, Township 5North, Range 31 East, City ofFranklm, Milwaukee
County,Wisconsin.

Outlot 4 ofRyanMeadows Subchvis10n, Bemg Lot 1, Lot 2 andJ:,ot3 and Outlot 1 ofCertified
SurveyMapNo 9095 and additional lands in the Southwest andNorthwest oftheNortheast

AND theNortheastofthe Southwest¼ AND theNortheast¼ and the Southeast¼ of the
Northwestall 1n Sect1on30, Township 5 North, Range 31 East, CityofFranklin, Milwaukee
County, WIscons1n.

L:IENGDOCS\Design Standards in Progress 6 20 17)\Design Standards in progress 6 20 17 112\Des ign Standards In Progress 620
2017\2019 Design StandardsAppendix Q Storm Water Faclites Maintenance Agreement #1 S.doc

Q-6



~

blank page



APPROVAL

chr
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

RESULTS OF SURVEY FOR 10570-10961 W. ST. MARTINS ROAD
FOR POTENTIAL SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

MTG.DATE
April 5, 2021

ITEM NO.

,5.

BACKGROUND
On March 2, 2021, Common Council directed Staff to solicit affected homeowners and conduct a
virtual meeting to discuss a potential project to provide sanitary sewer infrastructure for
1057010961 W. St. Martins Road. The surveys were distributed and the virtual meeting was held
on March 17, 2021. A copy of the presentation PowerPoint is attached. Ten ofthe fifteen property
owners returned a survey by the deadline ofMarch 26.

ANALYSIS
Eight respondents are not interested in having sanitary sewer service, two are in favor, and five
did not respond. The No/Yes/None responses for wanting the sewer are as follows:

Response W. St. Martins Owner

one 10609 Reutler
No 10629 Sinner
No 10631 Keske
No 10651 Campion
No 10811 Mandella
No 10825 Robaczek
Yes 10831 Edwards
Yes 10845 Kust
No NIA Indian Comm. School
No NIA Rutkiewicz
None 10941 Neumann
None 10941 Neumann
None 10951 Budzenski
No 10961 Franklin Lions Club
None 10826 Melcher

Note that the two responses in favor of a sewer are not on the eastern end where the sewer could
be incrementally installed.

Received comments (no particular order) included:
• My septic system is workingfine The cost also appears to be 2 to 3 times that ofa new

septic system ifmine has to be replaced.
• We cannot afford to have this done
• Have the ones with afailing septic systems to put in a holding tank like we had to 24 years

ago.
• We do not have a home on the property in questions so no needfor sewer service at this

time
• No thankyou- I do not wish to contract with you. Already harmed by beingforced to pay
for sewer we do not have.

• As a non-profit, this would be an expense not budgetedfor a and would take awayfrom
Franklin community organizations that could use ourfundraising effortsfor better use. Or
would the city ofFranklin havefunds to waive this expense if it movesforward?



• We heard that the person who initiated this effort bought a house on St. Martins Rd that
didn't have city sewer, so he initiated this grass roots effort, and then he sold his house and
moved away. The day he knocked on our door, we told him we didn't want sewer My
husband worked as a sub-contractor on the Milwaukee Deep Tunnel Project, and, working
with the other contractors, discussions came up about ongoing sewer issues, including
grinder pumps. The prevailing opinion was that grinder pumps were known for failing,
backing up, clogging, and not enjoying the longevity one would want in something that
carries your body waste material awayfrom your home. It sounds like the burden would
be on us to handle any breakdowns ourselves, no matter how many times it breaks down
We're not happy about this We don't want to have to bear the burden offinding someone
to work on it- it's notpleasant work and then clean up or payfor a cleanup ofany
damage done We also don't want to have to lookforward to that as a lifestyle for the
balance ofyears thatwe'll be here. For years, our waste system has been working We have
a certain amount ofcontrol over it. We have itpumped out when it needs to be pumped out
We can afford the system we have now. We would like to apply that age-old wisdom to our
current setup "Whyfix it, if it ain't broke?" With installed sewer, we're certain our real
estate taxes will go uppermanently. For us and many others, this will add insult to injury
because we alreadypay extra 'fees" on our taxesfor sewer we don't have. In addition, we
also heard that Waste Management will be adding even morefees to our taxesfor thus We
don't want this to happen, and those taxes andfees will never be dialed back. In the letter
that was sent to us, it says we'll be "given" a grinder pump, then be responsible for its
ownership and maintenance. So, we would have to buy a grinder pump We're told we
could buy one ofour choice Whichever one it would be, we would be worried about how
good is. Would it be prone tofailure? Long or short lifespan? Hard or easy to maintain?
Hard or easy to install or replace when that time comes? These things worry us How much
lift will this pump have? We're talking about lifting heavy, sloggy, smelly material quite a
distance horizontally and vertically. From the little I read about these pumps, a lift of2
feet is significant, but the lift that would be required here seems Herculean We don't trust
it. And, our house is at the lowestpoint alongSt Martins Road When homes on either side
ofus have their pumpfailures, we 're going to be at the bottom ofthese events What if it
doesn't get installed correctly? We've seen lots ofstuff happen in our lives that we never
imagined, so wepreparefor the worst and hopefor the best. Stuffhappens If these things
aren't installed correctly, they're never right. When itfails (and we've been told it's not a
matter of"if, but "when''), what kind ofdamage will happen? How many times will itfail?
Will it be in the wee hours ofthe morning? When we're on vacation? Will it be when we're
hosting a backyardwedding or birthday, afamily reunion or a St. Martins Labor Day Fair
celebraton? Will it be a windy rain storm orfreezing weather with snow and ice covering
everything? We don't want to have to always be dreading that day. We were told if sewer
came in, we would beforced to connect to it. We can't afford this kind ofexpense. The
finances that were estimated are only a startingpoint. We don't want to have to live our
few remainingyears with much ofour retirement savings taken awayfor aproject we don't
need or want This kind ofhome project will never, ever payfor itself And, when we sell
and leave here, we will never get this money returned back to us. In conclusion, we're
against this Project Thankyoufor allowing us to let you know our thoughts andfeelings
about this We do appreciate it



OPTIONS
A. Instruct Staff to prepare construction documents, bid project and prepare an engineer's report

for constructing and assessing this project. Or
B. No-action (place on file). Or
C. Provide further direction to Staff

FISCAL NOTE
There is $500,000 in the 2021 budget for sanitary sewer extensions.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option B) Place on File

Engineering Department: GEM



3/30/2021

Consideration of a Potential
Sanitary Sewer Project
10570 10969 W St Martins Road

WISCONSIN

Aldermen Dan Mayer(2) and John Nelson (6)
MayorSteveOlson

Utility SuperintendentMikeRoberts
Glen E. Morrow, P.E. City Engineer

March 17 2021

re
lfll'Franklin

"
I

,J

---=-!! =i-.
f

"17\

VoursTo Keep, Maintain, Repair and Replace ·

ComPo}et98 $271woo.oo
A•oeuSf\S $ IIM.M

[ · .. )• Sanitary Sewer Connection REQUIRED when Available
• Vacant Land not required to connect
• {fyi Water Connections Not Required)
• Assessment based on

• Width ofProperty ($10 .4k-$56.3k)
• Per Home ($19 Sk)

• Actual S values determined when bids are received
• Historically, City has offered 12-year loans@ 6% for Sewer Projects
• We only finance the Assessible ($10.4k + $19.Sk = $29 9k) ($3.Sk/year)
• You have option of paying up front or financing elsewhere
• You will need to find a plumber and finance the Non-Assessible {$14.Sk
budget) ,-,,,h~

,;,,Franklin
w >I I ~ ·

Financing Facts-• Pu- :,-- u,- - lOTALPH.
fr-._e AIMIi llllnoWW• Al•••falllle _O\lll,lnt

116 la,JMS IUODS 14.'5m $ SUM
1'-lm $ 19 s00 $ 14,900 $
10,,IM $ lt,500 $ H,'5m 4 ,43
lUJJ S lt,500 S 14.'5m $ 96s3
1332 $ 19,900 $ 14,s00 $ $7,3
to.•M ~ lt,500 S 1",'IID $ 4443

10 194M $ 19.900$ 1so0 $ 44M
15,£65 1 $ 19,00 $ 1, 500 $ 49,681
IV,51 5 $ $ IS,t.SI
~•-~_$_ 5 S 10,UI
I0.434 $ S S IQ.4M
I0.41t S 19,500 S 1 .. 500 S M,CM
Jo.4MS t,.51111$ 1,1., 500 $ "U M
.33 $ $ $ $M3
1 1 .650 $ 19,51111 S 1 '- '11111 S 6 1.00

$ es,7oo

Fronklflll on,Cl
Mel<he<

1063
1065 1 n eap4on

1Mandela
IOUS

0
Rob,utk

1031

".•P~!f!dl?'i'~.._H wthsaneo h tot A Con tracto r- Only aGuess
:cammonA$$e pu ntateelerentswith in he. l# oln aypreti nalpo d propertyonesz:::2:z- e
...,,..,_ r~n ta,•n«<:I IOl>e ...~h td••d pe, l01-6 1tw-.. cllu .-- 100 ft ,,,.Franklin
1/alv .. MUl>,·••rif<tdin ,~ ta,10<l!n&ir,.._..,,-. n -10b,H,np leHd lale<

1



Survey 0
• This is a SURVEY not a VOTE

• lam NOT interested in having sewer service from the City of Frankhun
• I am undecided in having sewer service available
• I am definitely interested in having Franklin sewerService

• Include Name & Address
• Return to Engineering Department City Hall

• SelfAddressed Stamped Envelope- or
• Downstairs City Hall
• Email dengineering@franklinwi.gov
• Fax {414) 425-3106- attention 'Debbie'

• Due Friday March 26, 2021
• April 6? Common Council meeting

ma
Franklin

WISCONSIN

Questions?
Glen E Morrow, PE City Engineer

(414) 425-7510
gmorrow@franklinwi.gov

3/30/2021

2



BLANKPAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code
Chapter 80 Animals, to Create Article V

Possession ofWild Animals

MEETING
DATE

April 5, 2021

ITEM NUMBER

G.o,
Attached is a copy of a draft of the above-entitled ordinance. City staff will be present at the meeting for
information purposes.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code Chapter 80 Animals, to Create Article V
Possession ofWild Animals

Legal Services Dept.: jw



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 4/1/21

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 80 ANIMALS, TO
CREATE ARTICLE V POSSESSION OF WILD ANIMALS

WHEREAS, City staff in the Health Department, the Department of City
Development and the Legal Services Department having reviewed the Municipal Code with
regard to the regulation of wild animals, and having recommended the adoption of an
Ordinance to amend Chapter 80 Animals, of the Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, to
create Article V Possession ofwild animals; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such proposed Ordinance and
having determined same to be reasonable and necessary to protect the public health, safety
and welfare.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: Chapter 80 Animals, of the Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, is
hereby amended to create Article V Possession of wild animals, and
§§80-29 through 80-32, to read as follows:

Article V Possession ofwild animals
§80-29 Definitions.
§80-30 Purpose and application.
§80-31 Possession ofwild animals prohibited.
§80-32 Penalty for violation of this Article.

§80-29 Definitions.
"Possess" means to own, possess, keep, harbor, or exercise any care,
custody, or control of an animal.

"Wild animal" means those species of animal that are not typically
domesticated by humans and usually live in nature or outside of one's
residence. Wild animals include, but are not limited to, animals
belonging to any or all of the following orders and families:

A. Class Mammalia.
1. Order Chiroptera (bats).
2. Order Artiodactyla (e.g., hippopotamuses, giraffes, camels,
deer, cattle, swine, sheep, goats, alpaca, and llama).
3. Order Carnivora.



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-
Page 2

a. Family Felidae (e.g., lions, tigers, cougars, leopards,
ocelots, servals), but not domestic cats.
b. Family Ursidae (e.g., bears).
c. Family Mustelidae (e.g., weasels, skunks, martens,
minks, wild ferrets), but not the domestic ferret species,
Mustela putorius furo.
d. Family Procyonidae (e.g., raccoons, coatis).
e. Family Hyaenidae (e.g., hyenas).
f. Family Viverridae (e.g., civets, genets).
g. Family Mephitidae (e.g., skunks).
h. Family Herpestidae (e.g., mongooses).

4. Order Edentata (e.g., anteaters, armadillos, sloths).
5. Order Marsupialia (e.g., opossums, kangaroos, wallabies),
except sugar gliders.
6. Order Perissodactyla (e.g., rhinoceroses, tapirs), except
domestic horses and donkeys.
7. Order Primates (e.g., lemurs, monkeys, chimpanzees,
gorillas), except humans.
8. Order Proboscidea (e.g., elephants).
9. Order Rodentia (e.g., squirrels, beavers, porcupines, prairie
dogs), but not guinea pigs, rats, mice, gerbils, and hamsters.

B. Class Reptilia.
1. Order Squamata.

a. Family Helodermatidae (e.g., Gila monsters and
Mexican beaded lizards).
b. Family Varanidae (e.g., monitor lizard).
c. Family Elapidae (e.g., coral snakes, cobras,
mambas).
d. Family Viperidae (e.g., copperheads, cottonmouths,
rattlesnakes).
e. Subfamily Atractaspidinae (e.g., burrowing asps).

2. Order Crocodilia (e.g., crocodiles, alligators, caimans,
gavials).
3. Any constricting snake greater than four feet in length or
twenty (20) pounds in weight.
4. Any venomous snake.

C. Class Aves.
1. Order Falconiformes (e.g., eagles, hawks, vultures).
2. Order Rheiformes (e.g., rheas).
3. Order Struthioniformes (e.g., ostriches).



ORDINANCE NO. 2021
Page 3

4. Order Casuariiformes (e.g., cassowaries and emus).
5. Order Strigiformes (e.g., owls).
6. Order Galliformes (e.g., turkeys, chickens).
7. Order Anseriformes (e.g., ducks, geese).

D. Class Arachnida.
1. Order Scorpiones.
2. Any of the following members of Order Araneae, Family
Therididae:

a. Argentina red widow spider: Latrodectus coralinus.
b. Brown widow spider: Latrodectus geometricus.
c. Red-black widow: Latrodectus hasselti.
d. Red widow spider: Latrodectus bishop.
e. Black widow spider: Latrodectus mactans.
f. Western widow: Latrodectus Hesperus.

3. Brown recluse spider: Loxosceles reclusa.

E. Class Chilopoda.
1. Any of the following members of Order
Scolopendromorpha, Family Scolopendridae:

a. Amazon giant banded centipede: Scolopendra
giganea.
b. Arizona tiger centipede: Scolopendra viridis.
c. Florida Keys centipede: Scolopendra alternans.

2. Any other venomous chilopoda that is not native to
Wisconsin.

F. Any species of the class Insecta that is not native to Wisconsin.

G. Any federal or state endangered or threatened species.

$80-30 Purpose and application.
The purpose of this chapter is to protect the public against health and
safety risks that wild animals pose to the community. By their very
nature, wild animals are potentially dangerous and do not adjust well to
a captive environment. The provisions of this Article V are subject to
and do not repeal or amend any other provisions of the Municipal Code
specifically pertaining to the animals regulated herein, which
provisions were existing upon 2021, the date of adoption of
this Article V, including, but not limited to this Chapter 80 Animals,
Chapter 183 Orderly Conduct Article III Animals, and Chapter 183



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-
Page 4

Orderly Conduct Article XVI Rural Areas § 183-68 Parking trucks and
raising animals.

§80-31 Possession ofwild animals prohibited.
No person shall possess a wild animal unless one of the exceptions in
subsection A. of this section applies.

A. Exceptions. This subsection shall not apply to wild animals being
kept or harbored on property in compliance with Chapter 80
Animals, Chapter 183 Orderly Conduct Article III Animals, and
Chapter 183 Orderly Conduct Article XVI Rural Areas §183-68
Parking trucks and raising animals of this Municipal Code,
persons who are temporarily exhibiting wild animals in the city
pursuant to a valid license issued by the state of Wisconsin under
Chapter 169, Wisconsin Statutes, institutions accredited by the
American Zoo and Aquarium Association, veterinarians who
possess a valid license from the state of Wisconsin under
Chapter 89, Wisconsin Statutes, state licensed veterinary hospitals
or clinics, state licensed circuses, state licensed or accredited
research or medical institutions, state licensed or accredited
educational institutions, an animal certified as having been
specially trained to assist an individual with a disability, any
government-owned or government-operated facility, volunteers
working on behalf of a government-owned or government
operated facility, a person with a valid federal permit to possess a
particular wild animal, or a person temporarily transporting a wild
animal through the city if the transit time is not more than twenty
four (24) hours and the wild animal is at all times maintained
within a confinement sufficient to prevent the wild animal from
escaping.

B. Registration. Any person that meets the exceptions listed in
subsection A. of this section shall register each wild animal that
he/she possesses within the City of Franklin with the Police
Department. The registration information shall include: the type of
wild animal; a description of the wild animal, including size,
color, and name of the animal; and the name and address of the
wild animal's owner or custodian.

C. Escape.
1. If a wild animal escapes the possession of a person, the
person shall notify the Franklin Police Department immediately



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-
Page 5

of the following information: the type of wild animal; a
description of the wild animal, including size, color, and name
of the animal; the nature of how the wild animal escaped; the
name and address of the wild animal's owner or custodian; and
the location and time where the wild animal was last observed.
If the wild animal returns to the possession of a person after
notification to the Franklin Police Department, the person shall
notify the Franklin Police Department immediately that the wild
animal has returned to the person's possession.
2. Costs. Upon the escape of a wild animal, any person
possessing such wild animal shall be responsible for the costs of
the seizure, detention, and disposal of the wild animal and any
city response to the report of escape.

D. Prohibition Against Release. No person may permit a wild
animal to run at large. Any wild animal running at large shall be
subject to seizure, detention, and disposal.

§80-32 Penalty for violation of this Article.
Any person, firm, partnership, or corporation who violates any part of
this Article shall be subject to the penalty and enforcement provisions
in § 1-19 Penalty provisions, of this Code and any other enforcement
actions available pursuant to law.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2021, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2021.



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-
Page 6

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor



blank page



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AWARD PLEASANT VIEW PARK IMPROVEMENTS TO
WESTERN CONTRACTORS FOR $424,527.00

MTG. DATE
04/05/2021

ITEM NO.
- yc~,, , ...

BACKGROUND
Bids for the Pleasant View Park Improvements were received on March 10, 2021.

ANALYSIS
Five bids were received. The alternate bid considered additional stormwater work that may have
been required but later found to not be needed.

Western Contractors is the apparent low bidder. GRAEF has provided a recommendation of award
with a spreadsheet showing unit prices for all bid items.

Base Bid
$424,527.00
$431,670.72
$490,553.00
$495,640.00
$550,156.00

Alternate Bid
$472,977.00
$516,164.72
$526,053.00
$623,317.00
$639,164.00

Bidder
Western Contractors
Payne & Dolan
The Wanasek Corp
Pablocki Paving
Super Western

This project has an approved budget of $300,000 that includes $141k of park impact fees. There
are not sufficient funds to award this project. Note that the budget was set before the project scope
was set.

Staff has reviewed the bids and propose that the trash containers, benches, picnic tables, and
dumpster pad be removed from the project as we can provide with other funds and/or self-perform
later. This would be a Change Order No. 1 deduction of $28,200 resulting in a project of
$396,327.00. This is still above the appropriation of $300,000. Note that a 15% reduction in
project would be $360,847.95, likewise above the $300,000 appropriation.

OPTIONS
A. Reject all bids, revise the scope and rebid. Or
B. Prepare a resolution to award bid to Western Contractors and make it contingent on

contractor to accept a change order deduction of $28,200. Or
C. Other direction to staff.

FISCAL NOTE
There are not sufficient funds to award this project. Finance will have some suggestions on where
to identify additional resources.

RECOMMENDATION
Action at the will of the Common Council.

Engineering Department: GEM



GR

275 West Wisconsin Avenue Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203
414/2591500
414 / 259 0037 fax
wwwgraef-usa.com-EF

March 31, 2021

Mr. Glen Morrow
Director of Public Works
City of Franklin
9229 W Looms Road
Franklin, WI 53132

SUBJECT: Pleasant View Park Improvements
Recommendation of Award

Dear Mr. Morrow:

GRAEF attended the bid opening for the Pleasant View Park Improvements project on
March 10th. Five bids were received for the project The bids for the base bid ranged In
pnce from $424,527.00 to $550,164 00, with the average bid of $478,510.94 Our
opinion of probable cost for the project was $514,205 00. Western Contractors
submitted a base bd of $424,527.00. This is a reasonable bid for this project The
mandatory alternate bid Is no longer needed as MMSD approved the stormwater
management plan for the project with no stormwater modifications

In summary, GRAEF recommends award of Pleasant View Park Base Bid No. 1 to
Western Contractors for $424,527.00 and reject the Mandatory Alternate bid No 1
Should you have any further questions, please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

Michael N Paulos, P E, LEED AP, CDT
Principal

Enclosure Bid Tabs

2021-0560 01



Bid: Pleasant View Park Improvements
Opening: 3/10/2021, 4:00 p.m.
Place: City of Franklin, Wisconsin

Bid Addendum MandatoryBidders Bond Total Base Bid
(5%) No.1 Alternate Bid

Payne & Dolan X X $431,670 72 $84,494 00

Western Contractors X X $424,527 00 $48,450 00

Poblocki Paving Corporation X X $495,640 00 $127,677 00

The Wanasek Corp. X X $490,553 00 $35,500 00

Super Western X X $550,164 00 $89,000 00



0

5
Zr

E 9r
i ~

I!
l I

~a
~

~ !w
8 ~~
l ~a

I!

j i
!£
3

~
C

5
!
#g
9

l ~
I!

l I
Ii
3
C
ii

~~ ..
j
5
~. I!

! i
"!,
C
ii

5±;
%·~
I!..
l
£
3a
~►gt
%

~
cs
Ca;

1 w

1 ~
~
Ca;

.5
'le
.t
0

£
0



APPROVAL

he
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDERNO. 1 TO
DF TOMASINI CONTRACTORS, INC. FORTHE

CONSTRUCTION OF 2020 MARQUETTE AVENUE ROAD IN
THE AMOUNT OF $103,348.82

MTG. DATE
April 5, 2021

ITEM NO.

3.
BACKGROUND
On November 2, 2020, Common Council awarded a construction contract to DF Tomasini for the
construction ofMarquette Avenue. The notice to proceed was set for April 1, 2021 and ready for
substantial completion on July 31, 2021. Contract documents have subsequently been revised for
additional pedestrian safety and additional earthwork.

ANALYSIS

$737,954.90- Amount of bid awarded to contractor
+$72, 176.82- Roadway construction. Addition to earthwork required but not in contract and

additional sidewalk for pedestrian safety.
+$12,576.00- Addition of storm sewer needed that would be needed for plans during permitting
+$12,591.00- Increasing pipe thickness for sanitary sewer system- requested by Staff due to depth.
+$ 6,005.00- Change in plan quantities for watermain connections.
$841,303.72- Total amount of City's portion of construction costs

Substantial Completion is moved from July 31 to August 20, 2021. This date is still before the
start of the school year.

Another change order will follow to reduce engineering fees from Lynch Engineering of
approximately $58,000.00 to establish a contingency budget. The City will perform inspection
services.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $103,348.82 to DF Tomasini
B. Provide other direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
There is $924,955 available for this project. Considering the reduction ofinspection from Lynch's
contract, there is over $33,000 left for construction contingencies.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Resolution 201-,aresolution to execute Change OrderNo. 1 to DF Tomasini
Contractors, Inc. for the construction of 2020 Marquette Avenue in the amount of $103,348.82
and extend the substantial completion date to August 20, 2021.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2021 ---
RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO

DF TOMASINI CONTRACTORS, INC. FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 2020
MARQUETTE AVENUE ROAD IN THE AMOUNT OF $103,348.82

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin awarded a contract to DF Tomasini Contracotrs, Inc. for
the 2020 Marquette Avenue Road Project; and

WHEREAS, the project was a unit price contract totaling $737,954.90 per the bid
quantities; and

WHEREAS, changes in planned quantities for roadway, storm, sanitary, and watermain
items are needed that result in an increase of $103,348.82; and

WHEREAS, the additional time is needed for permitting and an extended completion date
will still be before the start of the school year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, that a contract Change Order No. 1 be approved to DF Tomasini Contracotrs, Inc. in
the amount of $103,348.82 increase and an additional 20 calendar days for the 2020 Marquette
Avenue Road project.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,202l by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



EJCDC
ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

Change Order No.

Contractor:
Engineer:
Project:

DF Tomasini Contractors, Inc.
Lynch & Associates
Marquette Avenue Road Project

Effective Date: Apnl 5, 2021
Owner's Contract No.:
Contractor's Project No.:
Engineer's Project No.: 20.1013
Contract Name:

Date of Issuance: Apnl 2, 2021
Owner: City of Franklin

The Contract 1s modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:

Description: Plan and quantity changes based on final design. See descnpt1on of changes for a breakdown of
the revisions. The change order includes a time extension to account for the additional permutting time
needed. This add1t1onal time will not affect the start of school in the fall.

Attachments: Description of Changes.

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE

Original Contract Price:

$ 737 954.90

Increase from previously approved Change Orders No. _
to No.-:

$ 0.00

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

$ 737 954.90

Increase of this Change Order:

$ 103 348.82

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:

$841 303.72

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES

Original Contract Tmmes:
Substantial Completion: July 31, 2021

Ready for Final Payment: July 31, 2021

days or dates
[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved
Change Orders No._ to No._:
Substantial Completion: NA
Ready for Final Payment: NA

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
Substantial Completion: July 31, 2021
Ready for Final Payment: July 31, 2021

Increase of this Change Order:
Substantial Completion: 20
Ready for Final Payment: 20

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:
Substantial Completion: August 20, 2021
Ready for Final Payment: August 20, 2021

By:
RECOMMENDED:
-rGg2

Engineer (1f required)
By:

Title:
Date:

ACCEPTED:
By:

Owner (Authorized Signature)
Title:------------
Date:

ACCEPTED:

Contractor (Authorized Signature)
Title: Principal
Date: April 2, 2021

EJCDC" C-941, Change Order.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page 1 of1



Change Order 1: Description of Changes

Final Plan Quantities and Plan Changes

• The final engineering plans included scope and quantity changes to complete Marquette
Avenue. The work associated with the adjacent subdivision rs not included. The following Is a
breakdown of changes by category:

Roadway Construction $72,176.82

Includes additional common excavation based on plan quantity and the addition of
sidewalk, detectable warning fields and a concrete flume.

Storm Sewer $12,576.00

Includes the relay of an existing storm sewer, additional inlets and the associated storm
sewer for the added inlets. Add1t1onal storm sewer to support the combined
development stormwater plan has been added to the plans at the developer's expense.

Sanitary Sewer $12,591.00

Includes a change in pipe material based on depth of sewer. Add1t1onal laterals have
been added to the plans at the developer's expense.

Watermamn $6,005.00

Includes a change mn plan quantities. Additional services have been added to the plans at
the developer's expense.



APPROVAL

3bu;
REPORTS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Common Council Administrative Policies and
Procedures

(Alderwoman Wilhelm)

MEETING
DATE

4/05/2021

ITEM NUMBER

G.9

Alderwoman Wilhelm has requested that an item be placed on this Common Council meeting
agenda for review ofprevious Policies and Procedures. It is common practice to review and update
such adopted actions on a regularly scheduled basis. This is especially important if new laws have
been adopted at the State or local level.

Attached is an index of Administrative Policies and Procedures from 2000 through 2003, with the
source of approval including the Common Council, the Mayor, and the Director of Administration.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As the Common Council deems appropriate.

Alderwoman Wilhelm



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY/PROCEDURES
INDEX

2000
102-00-001

101-00-002

101-01-001

102-02-001

102-02-002

102-03-001

102-03-002

147-03-003

102-03-004

101-03-005

102-03-006

102-03-007

102-03-008

102-03-009

Requests for Information for Elected and Other
City Officials

Aldermen Notification on Seminars

Vacation/Leave Time Notice

Notification to Aldermen of City Development
Activities and Complaints

Common Council Confirmation of Certain City
Appointments

City Cell Phone Use Policy (Approved 5-6-03)

City Newsletter Article Insertion Policy-(lot
adopted yet)

Data Processing Procedures

Inclusion of all Documents for Agenda Items
for City of Franklin Meetings (Approved 5-6-03)

Conference/Seminar Attendance Follow-Up
SummaryReport

Annual Review of Department Head
Performance Evaluations (Approved 6-3-03)

Voucher Payment Approval Policy (Approved 7-1-
03)

Flex-Time Policy (Approved 9-23-03)

Qualifications Determination - Volunteers
(Approved 9-23-03)



APPROVAL

S,
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

APPLICATION FORBLOOMBERG PHILANTHROPIES
ASPHALT ART INITIATIVE

MTG.DATE
April 5, 2021

ITEM NO.

G,I0.
BACKGROUND
The Board of Public Works (BOPW) has been investigating low-cost ways to calm traffic in
Franklin. The methods will be evaluated this year by comparing speed studies before and after
each method is implemented. One item considered at the March meeting was a grant from the
Bloomberg Philanthropies Asphalt Art Initiative. This program "helps cities create arts-driven
street redesigns that can improve traffic safety, develop vibrant public spaces, and engage residents
of their communities." As part of this year's program, Bloomberg Philanthropies will provide as
many as 20 U.S. cities up to $25,000 each for projects that use art and design to improve street
safety, revitalize public spaces, and engage residents of their communities.
https://asphaltart.bloomberg.org/ has more details for the program. The deadline for submission
is Friday, April 30, 2021.

The BOPW decided it was most appropriate to ask the Franklin Public Schools if they would paint
street murals on asphalt in front of each school. The idea would be that each school would be in
competition for school pride. City Staff posed the question to School Staff and per Mr. Milzer,
Director of Business Services, they are only interested in the location of S. 51 st street, in front of
the High School. It is felt that the quality and enthusiasm might be lacking for the lower grades.

ANALYSIS
Franklin could just submit the 51st Street location, or alternate locations may be recommended.
One example might be the St. Martins Fair area (W. St. Martins Road and W. Church Street).
Adding this method to studying effective speed reduction ideas (comparison of speed studies
before and after implementation) could be effective in obtaining a grant.

Staff assumes that each mural would be 10 gallons or less. Using pavement grade paint, this is
approximately $ per location. DPW staffwould donate use of barricades for volunteers
to use when the painting occurs. Staff would also work with the volunteers for detour plans and
any needed waivers for working in the right-of-way.

OPTIONS
A. Instruct Staff to work with the Board of Public Works and submit a grant application for

the following locations: , , and
. Or-------

B. Instruct Staff to not submit a grant application (place on file). Or
C. Provide further direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
A future budget amendment would be needed if a grant is received.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Instruct Staff to work with the Board of Public Works and submit a Bloomberg
Philanthropies Asphalt Art Initiative grant application for the following locations:
_______,. ,and _

Engineering Department: GEM



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

char
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
04/05/2021

RESOLUTION TO SIGN AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL ITEM NO.
COOPERATIONAGREEMNT WITH VILLAGE OF HALES

CORNERS TO RECONSTRUCT A PORTION OF (-,[{
W.COLLEGE AVENUE BETWEEN
S. 108TH STREET (USH45\WI-100)
AND S. 92ND STREET FOR $24,000

BACKGROUND
The Village of Hales Corners is preparing a road reconstruction project for W. College Avenue in
2021. They have solicited contractors and have awarded a contract. Late in the process, it was
observed that a portion of this roadway is within the control of the City of Franklin. Franklin has
already approved the 2021 budget and is in the process of awarding a 2021 Road Program and
2021 funds are not readily available for W. College Avenue.

ANALYSIS
The enclosed DRAFT intergovernmental agreement (IGA) provides that Franklin would reimburse
Hales Corners for the cost of construction. It is expected to be less than $24,000, but it is a unit
price contract and Franklin would pay the actual amount over or under that estimate.

The draft IGA includes language (item 10) that Franklin shall reimburse Hales Corners within 30
days of an invoice. Staff proposes that this clause be negotiated so that payment would be
submitted in 2022.

OPTIONS
A. Sign intergovernmental agreement as drafted; or
B. Authorize IGA if a 2022 payment is negotiated; or
C. Other direction to staff.

FISCAL NOTE
1£ 2022 payment is negotiated, this will be added to the 2022 proposed budget. A 2021 payment
before the actual costs for the Franklin Road Program is completed is not advisable.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option B) instruct Staff to negotiate a clause for 2022 reimbursement then adopt Resolution 2021-
__, a resolution to authorize an agreement with Village of Hales Corners to reconstruct a
portion of W. College Avenue between S. 108th Street (USH45\WI-100) and S. 92nd Street for
$24,000.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2021- ---

RESOLUTION TO SIGN AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMNT WITH
VILLAGE OF HALES CORNERS TO RECONSTRUCT A PORTION OF
W. COLLEGE AVENUE BETWEENS. 108TH STREET (USH45\WI-100)

AND S. 92ND STREET FOR $24,000

WHEREAS, Village of Hales Comers intends to is preparing a road reconstruction project
for W. College Avenue between S. 108th Street (USH45\WI-100) and S. 92nd Street in 2021; and,

WHEREAS, a portion of this project is within the corporate municipal boundaries and
responsibility of the City of Franklin; and,

WHEREAS, the Village of Hales Comers will award and manage a contract to make
improvements for all of the right-of-way; and,

WHEREAS, an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement sets forth the understanding of
both parties for completion of the project and reimbursement procedures.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute an Intergovernmental Cooperation
Agreement authorizing Village of Hales Comers to reconstruct a portion of W. College Avenue
between S. 108th Street (USH45\WI-100) and S. 92nd Street, and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to send the signed agreement
to the Village Manager of the Village ofHales Comers.

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2021.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES--NOES
ABSENT



INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT made and entered into this dayof2021
by and between the VILLAGE OF HALES CORNERS, 5635 South New Berlin Road, Hales Corners, WI
53130 (VOHC) and the CITY OF FRANKLIN, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132 (COF),
municipal corporations organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the constitution and laws
of the State of Wisconsin (collectively, the "PARTIES'):

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, portions ofWest College Avenue between South 108th Street (USH45\I-100) and
South 92nd Street are within both the VOHC and COF; and,

WHEREAS, the PARTIES desire to make certain public improvements in this roadway
(the "PROJECT"); and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this AGREEMENT is to set forth the understanding of the
PARTIES with respect to the PROJECT.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by and between the PARTIES as follows:

1. The PROJECT improvements to be constructed in West College Avenue from a point
approximately 320 feet east ofthe centerline of South 108th Street (STH l 00\USH
45) to a point approximately 2,345 feet east of South 108th Street (STH 100\USH 45)
are as follows:

A. Concrete Milling of the existing 4" of surface

B. Cracking and seating of the remaining 4" of concrete

C. Installation of new asphalt 4" pavement

C. All other items ofwork necessary to construct the PROJECT per plans and
specifications (collectively, the "IMPROVEMENTS").

2. Subject to the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, the VOHC shall be the
lead municipal agency for the design, construction, and inspection of the
IMPROVEMENTS.

3. The VOHC has prepared plans and specifications for the IMPROVEMENTS in a
manner approved by the Board of Trustees of the VOHC; thereafter, and except as
otherwise provided herein, and advertised for bid.

4. The plans and specifications for advertising, taking of bids, award, and construction
improvements are in accordance with standard engineering and public works



practices, and the applicable statutes of the State of Wisconsin.

5. Bids for the IMPROVEMENTS were opened on January 13, 2021 and upon review
were deemed reasonable by the VOHC and awarded the construction agreement to
Payne and Dolan, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder. Construction agreement
approved by Resolution 21-02.

6. The COF shall pay to the VOHC, the COF's share of the actual construction costs of
the IMPROVEMENTS determined to be 9.89% of all road improvements costs and
necessary restoration materials. The schedule of the project costs of the
IMPROVEMENTS and the COF's payment obligation with respect thereto is set
forth on Exhibit 'A', which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
Actual construction costs shall be calculated by the VOHC.

4. Unless otherwise mutually agreed to by VOHC and the COF, the total PROJECT
costs to the COF shall not exceed $25,000 and shall be based upon the actual costs of
the IMPROVEMENTS and necessary restoration materials.

5. The term "actual costs" as used in this AGREEMENT, includes, without limitation
because of enumeration, all contract payments, labor, material and equipment costs,
design, engineering, inspection, administration, legal services, and any other item of
direct or indirect costswhich may reasonably be attributed to the IMPROVEMENTS,
and the costs of any auxiliary work which may, in the judgment of the VOHC, prove
to be necessary in connection therewith.

6. The COF shall he billed for all construction costs at the time that said portion of the
construction costs are due under the construction contract based on contract unit
prices, with a final accounting being done at the end of the PROJECT.

7. If the COF's progress payments as to estimated costs is not sufficient to cover its
share of the actual costs of the IMPROVEMENT(s), the VOHC shall bill the COF
the amount of the insufficiency, and COF shall pay the same within thirty (30) days
of receipt of the bill. If the said payments exceed the COF's share of the actual costs
of the IMPROVEMENT(s), the VOHC shall refund the amount of the excess to the
COF within thirty (30) days of acceptance of the IMPROVEMENT(s) by the VOHC.

8. The IMPROVEMENT(s) shall be constructed in calendar year 2021.
However, no liability whatsoever shall accrue to the COF for delay in the awarding
or completion of contracts for the IMPROVEMENT(s).

9. Ownership and maintenance. AII IMPROVEMENT(s) shall be the property and
maintenance responsibility of the municipality in which they are installed.

10. Payments. All payments due under this AGREEMENT shall be paid within thirty
(30) days after receipt of invoice of same.

11. The VOHC shall request layouts of the COF's underground structures and facilities (if
any exist) before performing work of such a nature that existing underground



facilities must be avoided. The VOHC shall be required to take precautionary
measures to avoid damage to such underground facilities. The VOHC shall supply
the COF with available records ofthe existing underground material structure along
the project route and any changes or revisions thereto as may take place in the future

This contract shall continue and be in force indefinitely unless terminated on a six (6)
month written notice by either ofthe PARTIES to the other.

12. This document may be signed in counterparts all ofwhich, when taken together, shall
constitute one AGREEMENT

13. This AGREEMENT shall be effective only upon approval ofthe respective governing
bodies ofthe VOHC and COF.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have executed and delivered this AGREEMENT under
corporate seal as of the date and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By· _
Steve Olson, Mayor

By: ---'--,--------
Sandra Wesolowski, CityClerk

Approved as to form: _
Jesse Wesolowski
City ofFranklm Attorney
Village ofHales Corners Attorney

VILLAGE OF HALES CORNERS

By: _
Dam1el J. Besson, Village President

By: _
Sandra M Kulik, Village Administrator



EXHIBIT A



t
C
::,
0
E

.E cc
C :2
CU Ill

8

88 g
..... \.0 ,...:
.-< N n'l
"' 0 "'ocf v.. N..
V> V> ...

<I>

88
n'l n'l,.._ .....:.. ~..
V> V>

I e88¢83
NociC.Odci l'd l..0-=t
O'\l"l"'IVOOlJ'llJ'lVt'f'\
Ll"lr---OOt--NU>MVt'f'\•,£ I.D.. \,D.. ,-..... ....... 0.. ,..._.. V). L/l
l"l"IV').lJ'lVl-Vl-r---Vl m
V). V). Vl,V). N

<I>

8 8 8 8
oci ci ci 00
833

....... I.D.. 0.. °'..
Vl- V) N N

V> <I>

888
0 o u
00 0 <7l
00 O t
V). u

V>

8 8
\.0 \0......
N N
N.. N..
V> <I>

N
M
oci
N
"'$
"'

"'"'00 00

"'"'00 00

z z
0 0 ~
I- I-

N ...
mn DO
-=t ~
n'l 00
n'l N
Lfl.. m
n'l N
N <I>
V>

.:.;
;'!
g
C
iii
w
VIcca,

N
C
0
'B
3

z~
'i:..
VI
,;;
C.g...
QJ

"'2
B
.0
::,
VI

C
0
5
QJ
VI

§"
0u
0
!:!.
►a:
~zcc
VI

E
B
VI
,;;
C

£
QJ
VI
s
B
.0::,
VI

C
0z
QJ
VI

, G
Vl 00
00 N
N •co ~
"' IL,,°

C
C a,

?'£
a, >
> "'ii:. Q.

a, ~

-g -e ~
iii ~ :c
•El5le
C C ~
a a ro::5
3
C C a,

E E ~
ill±

~
-0..
0a:
,;;
C
0
5
QJ

"'2
g
.0
::,
VI

E
Ill c:
... 0
b.O ·.;::;
0 l1l

- 50. ~
l1lu
g
l1l

.J;;
.-1 "'(] «
0 "'
N 8

"C
Ill
0a:



±I '

--4'{_ I

1I
I ~

"I
I

,'
I------'

if .•.
;_..,.

el
,;,. i1

I
I
I
I

I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

i'1



APPROVAL

3lo
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

TRANSFERTESS CORNERS CREEK BRIDGE FROMWE
ENERGIES TO CITYOF FRANKLIN

( LOCATEDAPPROXIMATELY 100 FEET WEST OF
W. FOREST HOME AVENUE AND APPROXIMATELY 500 FEET

SOUTH OFW. SUNNYBROOKROAD)

MTG. DATE
April 5, 2021

ITEM NO.

BACKGROUND
Staff was notified by WE Energies that they plan to demolish an old bridge on their property that
crosses over Tess Comers Creek and beneath the City's Hike-Bike Path located approximately
100 feet west of W. Forest Home Avenue and approximately 500 feet south of W. Sunnybrook
Road. WE Energies has determined that their maintenance equipment may not safely pass over
this bridge and it is not needed since their equipment may access the full length of their property
from W. Sunnybrook Road to the north and W. St. Martins Road to the south.

This bridge is a critical need for continued operation of the City's Hike-Bike Trail that was paved
in 2015. Staff was trying to determine how to temporarily reroute the trail to County Road 00
and price out a new bridge with design and permitting. Staff is proposing that the existing bridge
just needs minor patching and is sufficient for our trail needs as bicycles and our snow plow
equipment are light enough for a patched bridge to carry. WE Energies is willing to entertain a
transfer of ownership of this bridge.

ANALYSIS
Staff had a structural engineer look at the bridge and it is his opinion that a sufficient patch project
may be budgeted for about $20,000. This budget is far less than the amount needed for designing,
permitting, and constructing a new bridge at this location.

OPTIONS
A. Instruct Staff to work with WE Energies for transfer of bridge to the City inventory. Or
B. Notify WE Energies that the City is not interested in accepting this bridge. Or
C. Provide further direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
A future bridge rehabilitation project would need to be budgeted in future years.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Instruct Staffto workwithWEEnergies and return to Common Council for transferring
Tess Corners Creek bridge (located approximately 100 feet west ofW. Forest Home Avenue and
approximately 500 feet south ofW. Sunnybrook Road).

Engineering Department: GEM



'vi
Ill
0~u
)
t:l.O Q,J
~ Q,J
• i.
co u
Ill Ill
Q,J • ('(')Q,J'5o C: -...• » ...-i
Q,J 0 IllC: u 0LU ...Ill 0LU Ill ..c:$ ,e 0..



43%7,
%%kt,
•%8,,
'"set:·\:-}}

%
c·

b.O
C:
V,
V,
0
I..u
Q) ..::t:.
b.O Q)
"O Q)
I.. I..cc u
V, V,
Q) I..

Q) M
b.O C: -..I.. I.. N
Q) 0 V,
C: u 0LU +-'V, 0LU n> ,e ..ca..



b.O
C:
V)
V)
0
I,...

u
Q) .::it:.
b.O Q)
"'O Q)
I,... I,...

co u
V) V)
Q) I,...

Q) CV')
b.O C: .........
I,... I,... CV')
Q) 0 V)
C: u 0LU +-'V) 0LU V)z , .r:.

c..



APPROVAL

Sh»
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG.DATE

April 5, 2021

Reports &
Recommendations

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZINGAPPROVAL OF THE
REVISIONS TO THE CITY OF FRANKLIN DESIGN

STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS,
JULY2017

ITEM NO.

[.">, -»
BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications outline requirements for
development in the City of Franklin. The document covers the process from design to construction and as
built documentation. The document was last updated in 2017.

ANALYSIS
Staff desires to make the following changes to the Design Standards and Construction Specifications:

Chapter 2- Construction Plan Requirements and Design Standards
• 2.3.2.F (Page 15) Regarding Storm Sewer Inlets, remove "monolithic 2 inch" and replace with

"PRO-RINGS". Also remove "full bed of mortar" and replace with "manufactured seals or
specific caulking."

• 2.3.2. H (Page 15) Regarding Storm Sewer Inlets, remove "Four" and replace with "Six," and
remove "one foot," and replace with "a minimum 10 feet."

• 2.4. l (Page 16) Regarding Paving Plans, A. Plan Review, 14, Change "under drain" to
"underdrain" and remove "(if required) at the end of this sentence.

Chapter 3- Roadways
• 3.6.3 (Page 30) Regarding RoadwayDrainage System, remove "10 ½" and replaced with "18" and

remove "1 O" and replace it with "18."
• 3.8.3 (Page 32) RegardingConcrete Curb and Gutter, add (See Figure 7A) after that have an island,

remove "6? vertical face" and replace with "mountable." In second sentence remove vertical
face" and replace with mountable and remove"6" and replace with "9" and remove" 14" and replace
with "12." Remove "See concrete curb details for specific measurements" with "See Figure 7.2"

• 3.8.5 (Page 32) Remove "sacks" and replace with "bags."
• 3.8.12 (Page 33) Remove "0.005+ and replace with "0.10" and add at the end of the sentence "not

compromising the minimum 0.75% vertical slope."
• 3.8.13 (Page 33) Remove "dowels" and replace with "rebars."
• 3.9.3 (Page 34) Add this new sentence after the end of the sentence, "The subgrade shall be

thoroughly compacted to receive a minimum two 2) inches of¾ TB to a proper elevation
before the forms are set."

• 3.10.1 (Page 35) Add "minimum" after "constructed on a" and add "es" after inch.
• 3 .10.3 (Page 35 Add "a minimum" before "two."

Chapter 4- Sanitary Sewers:
• 4.2.2 (Page 40) Change in the last two sentences "l foot" to "3 feet."
• 4.2.4 (Page 41) Change "to" in the last sentence to "with 6 inches of bedding and"

Chapter 5 - Water Distribution System:
• S .1.2 (Page 45) Replace "(larger diameter may be required if deemed necessary) Type Kone piece

(non-jomnted) seamless copper tubing and shall conform to ASTM designation B-88." and replace
with "in diameter." Replace "also allowed"with "used." Replace "and shall have outside diameter
dimensions of copper" with "Dimensions."

• 5 .1.8 (Page 46) Add this sentence at the end, "The 6 inches of bedding and 2 feet of cover shall
be compacted."



Chapter 6- Grading and Drainage
• 6.4.5 (Page 54) Remove last sentence, "Easy access is defined as any structure conforming to

File No. 28 ofthe Standard Specifications."
• 6.4.5 (Page 54) Add this sentence at the end, "Inlet with a sump {catch basin) is not permitted."
• 6.4.11 (Page 55) Add 6.4.11 with this paragraph, "All storm sewers and cross culverts that will

be within the City of Franklin right-of-way shall be designed with the appropriate ASTM
Class of reinforced concrete pipe (RCP). 10/21/20

Chapter 7- As-Built RecordDrawings
• 7.4.M (Page 62) Add at the end ofthe sentence "not compromising the minimum 0.75% vertical

slope."

Chapter 10- Materials ofConstruction
• 10.1.3 (Page66) Add at the end of the sentence "18" long" Add second paragraph, "Tie bars

abutting to the existing curb and gutter shall be composed of2 epoxy-coated rebar, 12" long
No. 4 (1/2 inch.) See Figure 8.°

Figures:
• Figure 2 "CROSS SECTION 60' ROW WITH BITUMINOUS CONCRETE PAVEMENT
• Figure 3 "CROSS SECTION 80' ROW WITH BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT"
• Figure 4 "CROSS SECTION 60' ROW W/7" CONCRETE PAVEMENT"
• Figure 7 "TYPICAL SECTION MOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTER"
• Figure 7A "CURB CUT OPENING DETAIL IN ISLAND"
• Figure 10 "INTERIM PAVEMENT/INLET DESIGN"
• Figure 11 "TYPICAL FLARED DRIVEWAY APPROACH VERTICAL FACE C&G"
• Figure 12 "TYPICAL FLARED DRIVEWAY APPROACH MOUNTABLE C&G"
• Figure 13 "TYPICAL FLARED DRIVEWAY APPROACH MOUNTABLE C&G ON CURVE"
• Figure 14 "TYPICAL FLARED DRIVEWAY APPROACH VERTICAL FACE C&G ON

CURVE"
• Figure 16 "STORM SEWER INLETW/DRAIN TILE DETAIL"
• Figure 16A "STORMSEWER INLETDETAILW/DRAIN TILE"
• Figure 21 "DRAIN TILE DETAIL"
• Figure 22 "STANDARD HYDRANT SETTING"
• Figure 29 "CURB RAMP W/CAST IRON DETECTABLE WARNING PLATES"

Once modified, the updated document will replace the previous version on the City website.

FISCAL NOTE
No fiscal impact.

RECOMMENDATION
A resolution authorizing approval of the revisions to the City of Franklin Design Standards and
Construction Specifications, December 2017.

Department ofEngineering GEM



B . Side and rear lot inlets shall be placed so that
no surface water will be conveyed by a swale for a
distance greater than 350 feet.

C. Channelized storm runoff in excess of 0.5 cfs
shall discharge into an inlet before crossing a
sidewalk or overtopping a curb.

D. Inlets shall be a minimum of 4 feet deep unless
authorized by the City Engineer.

E. Standard inlets shall be of
construction and have manufactured
openings for storm pipe connections.

monolithic
or cored

F. Inlet height adjustments shall be made with PRO
RINGS risers set on manufactured seals or specific
caulking. Adjustments shall be done by masons from
the utility contractor. No brick adjustments will
be allowed. Design shall allow for no more than 6
1/2 inches of adjustment.

G. Inlets shall include steps, positioned to allow
for easy access to the structure. Steps shall
conform to the "Wisconsin Standard Specifications
for Sewer and Water Construction".

H. Six inch diameter solid wall perforated P.V.C.
drain with fabric sock and end cap to be installed
3 inches above outlet pipe and extended a minimum
10 feet outside the inlet wall. {See Figure No.
16)

I. Inlet shall be back-filled with half inch washed
stone.

J. Louvered inlet grates shall be used for street
grades exceeding 4%.

K. A detail of "Manhole" inlets will be required for
pipe junctions of three or more 12 inch pipes or
pipes with a diameter greater than 18 inches.

L. Inlet grates in pavements shall be compatible for
bicycle safety.

M. All storm sewer inlets over 6 feet in depth as
measured from the top of the grate to the lowest
sewer invert shall be constructed as precast 42
inch minimum diameter manholes.

15



N. Field inlets shall be constructed using a standard
precast structure. The deck shall be a minimum of
4" thick reinforced concrete with a 26 inch
diameter opening. The frame and grate shall be
Neenah R-2561 or equal. All variations will be
granted by approval of the City Engineer.

0. All field inlets rims shall typically be set 6
inches below the proposed finished ground grade at
that point.

P. In areas where curb and gutter is extended to meet
a rural pavement section inlet shall be
constructed at the cross culvert at mid point on
each curb radius.

Q. Storm sewer inlets located in curb and gutter
streets shall not be constructed with more than
0. 2 foot misalignment. Inlets determined to be
misaligned by greater than 0.2 foot shall be
removed and reconstructed prior to binder paving
to proper alignment.

2.4 PAVING PLANS (Paving and Storm Sewer are normally shown on same
plan sheet

2. 4. 1 Each paving plan and profile sheet shall show the
following:

A. Plan View

1. Right-of-way and its width.
2. Edge of pavement or face and back of curb.
3. Stationing along the centerline of the

roadway.
4. Width of pavement.
5. Lot lines, numbers and frontages.
6. Name of each roadway and any adjoining

roadways.
7. All culvert locations and their sizes and

invert elevations.
8. The limits of any areas which need special

stabilization techniques, if known. (i.e.
stabilization fabric, undercutting. etc.)

9. Radii of all intersections (face of curb).
10. An estimate of quantities to be used in the

construction of the roadway.
11. A north arrow.
12. The stamp of the roadway designer.
13. A title block conforming to Section 2.0.4.
14. Location of 6" underdrain outlet locations.
15. Specific details of all existing roadways

being connected to. Pavement, shoulders,
ditches, curb alignment and grades shall be
shown as needed to adequately make the
transition.

16



3.5.12 Quality Control - Asphalt

Job Mix Certification
At the pre-construction conference, the contractor
shall submit a proposed Job Mix Formula (JMF) for the
City's review.

The contractor shall take samples of JMF. For each mix
(binder or surface) produced, one sample shall be
tested once per day. Each sample shall be tested for
gradation and air voids. The average of all tests
shall comply with the JMF Wisconsin Department of
Transportation specifications as:

Gradation (+/-) 5%
Air Voids (+/-) 2.5- 4.5%

A certified report statement shall be furnished to the
City Engineer.

3.6 ROADWAY DRAINAGE SYSTEM

Install underdrain system, applicable on a project by project
basis as required by City Engineer. This system design will be
required to be shown on a plan and profile sheet.

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

A continuous " diameter perforated or slotted
longitudinal underdrain pipe shall be installed as per
the standard typical section for the City of Franklin.

Pipe perforations may be holes or slots and may be in 3
or 4 lines spaced around the circumference of the pipe
at 120° or 90° respectively.

As shown on Figure No. 21 Geo-textile fabric shall be
used to line the excavation before the underdrain is
installed and backfilled. Enough fabric must be
provided as to cover the trench and overlapped trench
side by a minimum of 4 inches. The fabric shall
consist of either knitted, woven or non-woven fibers of
polyester, polypropylene, stabilized nylons,
polyethylene or polyvinyl Idene chloride. Slit films
or woven fabrics shall not be used for this work. Geo
textile fabrics shall be clearly marked to identify the
type of fabric.

The 6" underdrain shall be laid in an 18" deep by 18"
wide trench and backfilled with open graded base 1"
clear crushed limestone. The trench itself shall be
flat bottom with square sides. Any damaged underdrain
shall be replaced before the open graded stone is to be
installed.

At a maximum of 4 00' intervals, and at all low points
of the road, a 45° wye and bleeder will be installed on

30



3.7.2

3.7.3

3.7.4

3.7.5

Asphalt binder course installation will be permitted if
conditions indicated in 3.8.3, 3.8.4 and 3.8.5 can be
met.

Asphalt binder course installation will not be permitted
unless air temperature is 35° and rising at the start of
paving operations. A Cold Weather Paving Plan meeting
the requirements of FDM Section 450.3.2.1.2 450.3.2.1.2
is required if lower level is to be placed in
temperatures between 35 degrees and 40 degrees.

Asphalt paving will not be permitted on wet stone bases
or in the rain.

No asphalt pavement shall be constructed on a frozen
base.

3.8 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

3. 8. 1

3.8.2

The standard public street cross-section with curb and
gutter shall utilize a 6" vertical face curb and gutter
type that is 30" wide (6" top curb and 24" flange) and
9" deep at the flange and 14" deep at the back of curb.
See Figure No. 8.

The standard private street/driveway or parking lot
cross-section shall conform to 3.8.1 as shown above or
shall conform to minimum design standards in Figure No.
9. No asphalt curb and gutter shall be allowed.

3.8.3 Any cul-de-sacs that have an island (See Figure
the interior shall use a mountable curb and
system for the island. This mountable curb is
the face of curb and 12" at the back of curb.
Figure 7.

7A) in
gutter
9" at

See

3. 8. 4

3.8.5

3. 8.6

All concrete curb construction shall conform to Section
601 of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation
(WDOT) Specifications.

Concrete for curbs shall be grade A, air entrained and
shall conform to Section 501 of the W.D.O.T.
Specifications, and in particular, meet the following
requirements: minimum concrete content, 6.0 bags per
cubic yard; compressive strength after 28 days cured,
3,500 psi; size of course aggregate required, #1 plus
#2; slump, 1"-3"; air content, 3.0%-7.0%. Curing
membrane meeting for requirements for Type 2 of the
W.D.O.T. specifications for liquid membrane performing
compounds for curing concrete AASHTO designation M148
shall be used to cover all finished concrete. Fly ash
as a mix additive may be used between April 15 and
October 15 if approved in writing by the City Engineer.

The curb and gutter and aggregate base shall be
constructed at the locations and grades as shown on the

32



3. 8. 7

3. 8. 8

3. 8. 9

3.8.10

3.8.11

3.8.12

3.8.13

3.8.14

plans. All curb and gutter shall be placed on 5"
crushed limestone base.

Transverse contraction joints for curbs shall be cut or
sawed at maximum 10' intervals. One and one-half inch
expansion joints shall be provided at ends of radii,
points of considerable change in grade and alignment,
at intervals not to exceed 300' and where abutting
existing curb and gutter.

Concrete curb and gutter shall cure a minimum of four
days prior to backfilling and crushed stone base
installation.

Four days after the curbs have been placed and the City
has approved the concrete work, the contractor shall
immediately backfill behind the curbs to preclude any
erosion or undermining.

The City requires three test cylinders per 1,000 lineal
feet to be taken during the course of the curb and
gutter operations. The testing firm, who has been
hired by the Developer, shall pick up the cylinders at
the project site within 24 hours after notification,
break the cylinders at the appropriate time and submit
a test report to the City and the inspection firm.
Paving will not be allowed until the test results are
received.

The City requires an inspector be present for the
placement of concrete curb and gutter. This includes
the inspection of the base under the curb and gutter,
and a check of the alignment and grade of the curb and
gutter.

Curb and gutter and walk elevations will be considered
acceptable if certified elevations are within 0.10 ft.
of design elevations, not compromising the minimum
0.75% vertical slope.

Where connection is made to existing curb, rebars are
required as shown in Figure No. 8. All median islands
shall have a snub-nosed front and rear. See Figure No.
25.

The City will require the presence of an inspector
during string line setting.

3.9 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APPROACH REQUIREMENTS

3.9.1

3.9.2

All driveway approaches, installation and repair pours
require a permit issued by the City of Franklin.

Concrete for approaches shall be grade A, air entrained
and shall conform to Section 501 of the WDOT
Specifications, and in particular, meet the following

33



3.9.3

3. 9.4

3.9.5

3.9.6

3.9.7

3.9.8

3.9.9

requirements: minimum concrete content, 6.0 bags per
cubic yards; compressive strength after 28 days cured,
3,500 psi; maximum amount of water per bag of cement,
6.0 gallons; size of course aggregate required, #1 plus
#2; slump, 1"-3"; air content, 4.5%-7.5%. White curing
membrane meeting the requirements for Type 2 of the
WDOT specifications for liquid membrane performing
compounds for curing concrete AASHTO designation Ml48
shall be used to cover all finished concrete. The use
of fiber mesh to these above specifications will be
allowed.

Drive approach and walk sections of the approach shall
be a minimum of 7 thick. The subgrade shall be
thoroughly compacted to receive a minimum two (2)
inches of h TB to a proper elevation before the forms
are set.

One-half inch (1/2") 7 expansion joint material full
depth shall be placed between the curb and gutter and
the approach or as directed by the City of Franklin
Engineering staff.

Approach grades and configuration shall conform to
these specifications as given in Figures No. 11, No.
12, No. 13 and No. 14.

It is the City's intent to allow the removal of the
existing curb head section of the concrete curb and
gutter to provide an opening to be used for the
installation of the driveway approach. A driveway
approach permit is required for curb head removal and
must be obtained from the Building Inspection Office
prior to starting this work. Complete removal and
replacement of curb sections for drive approach
openings is also allowed, but remaining undisturbed
sections cannot be less than 5' in length.

If abutting asphalt is disturbed it shall be removed to
m1n1mum of 18' wide the entire width of the approach
and replaced in like and kind.

The curb cut shall allow for 1/2" rise from the gutter
to the beginning of the cut of the curb back. The
ascending slope from that rise to the back of the curb
shall be 1 inch.

Existing curb shall be cut with an 18 inch down slope
at each side of the driveway opening.

Existing curb expansion joints shall be a minimum of 6
inches from the down slope on each side of the driveway
opening. Existing curb expansion joints will not be
allowed in either down slope cut. An inspection is
required prior to cutting, certifying proper location.
See Figure No. 11.

34



3.9.10 A special driveway approach has been designed for
commercial and industrial development by the City of
Franklin Engineering Department. This detail is
available through the Engineering Department.

3.10 CONCRETE WALK

3.10.1

3.10.2

3.10.3

3.10.4

Concrete walks shall be constructed on a minimum two
inch bed of 3/4" traffic bond. The walk being five
feet wide and five inches thick and to the line and
grade shown on the plans unless otherwise specified.
Concrete driveways shall be seven inches thick and
shall be built to the width and location directed by
the Engineer. Walk sections shall be 7 thick for the
width of all pre-engineered driveway opening in the
curb and gutter.

Concrete for walk shall be grade A, air entrained and
shall conform to Section 501 of the WDOT
Specifications, and in particular, meet the following
requirements: minimum concrete content, 6. 0 bags per
cubic yard; maximum amount of water per bag of cement,
6.0 gallons; size of course aggregate required, #1 plus
#2; slump, 1"-3"; air content, 4.5%-7.5%. Curing
membrane meeting the requirements for Type 2 of the
standard specifications for liquid membrane performing
compounds for curing concrete AASHTO designation M148
shall be used to cover all finished concrete. Fly ash
as a mix: additive may be used between April 15 and
October 15 if approved in writing by City Engineer.

The subgrade shall be thoroughly compacted to receive a
minimum two (2) inches of 3/4" traffic bond to a proper
elevation before the forms are set. Any soft or spongy
subgrade material shall be removed and replaced with
suitable granular material. Where the walk is to be
poured adjacent to the curb, the backfill material
behind the curb shall be compacted in a manner suitable
to the Engineer.

The forms shall be an approved type of metal form
extending the full depth of the concrete. The forms
shall be set upon the prepared subgrade to proper line
and grade and firmly staked in position. The slope
across the walk shall be 3/16 inch (1.5%) meeting
WISDOT ADA requirements per foot unless otherwise
directed or shown on the plans. Where walk is being
installed on a radius of less than 250 feet, flexible
forms shall be used. The fine grading shall then be
completed and the subgrade thoroughly compacted by a
power roller weighing not less than three tons. Areas
which are inaccessible to the roller shall be compacted
by using an approved mechanical vibratory compactor.
The contact surfaces of the forms shall be clean and
coated with oil. The Contractor must continually have,
in advance of the concrete pour, at least two hundred

35



4.1.9

4 .1.10

4.1. 11

4.1.12

4.1.13

Reconstructed manhole will require the installation of
an external seal. The existing internal seal and bands
shall be removed and become property of Sewer and Water
Utility.

All backfill material around manholes shall be
mechanically compacted in six-inch lifts. In some
cases as required, slurry back fill is to be used.
Flooding of the areas around the manhole will not be
permitted.

All bench troughs shall be extended at ninety degree
bends or for tees. See Figure No. 31.

Manholes placed inside sidewalks, driveways, etc. shall
be set a minimum of 2 1/4" lower than final grade to
allow for frost movement. A two inch cast iron (Neenah
Foundry) riser ring will be installed at the time of the
final surface. This will allow the utility in the
future to make adjustment without having to dig up.

Any removal or additions to manhole barrel sections with
damaged or non-suitable joints will be backfilled,
wrapped, and filled around with 1 bag slurry mixture.

4.2 MAINLINE AND LATERALS

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

Sanitary sewer pipe materials for mainline and laterals
shall be limited to PVC or lined concrete, unless
specifically approved by the City Engineer in writing.
For sewers laid at depths greater than 15 feet, pipe
class determination documentation shall be provided to
City Engineer. Sanitary sewer pipe test reports must
be received and verified prior to the start of any
sanitary sewer construction operation. PVC pipe class
for sanitary sewers shall be the following: 6' to 15',
SDR 35, 15' to 24', SDR 26, greater than 24' and 6'
risers C900.

All laterals shall be 6" in diameter and installed at a
quarter inch per foot gradient unless otherwise noted
on the approved plans, but never less than one-eighth
of an inch per foot. A maple heart shall be installed
at the end of all laterals, and the top 12" shall be
painted orange upon completion of the lateral
installation. All laterals with less than 6.0' of
cover material shall be insulated with 2 1 x 8' x 2"
thick planks of Styrofoam plastic foam (Dow Chemical
Company "Hydrand" or approved equivalent). Place a 12'
maple heart at the end of the lateral extending a
minimum of 3 feet above grade. The top 3 feet shall be
painted orange.

When starting a sewer project, the new incoming line
into the existing manhole shall be plugged and braced,

40



4.2.4

4. 2. 5

4.2. 6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4. 2. 9

4. 2. 10

4.3 TESTING

and this plug shall remain until sewer is accepted by
the City Engineer. If a new manhole is constructed
over an existing line, the pipe shall not be broken out
until the project is completed and the manhole vacuum
test has been completed on the structure.

Crushed stone chips conforming to 10.11.2 in these
specifications shall be used for bedding. Chips shall
encase the pipe with 6 inches of bedding and two (2)
feet above the top of pipe.

Traffic bond (1 1/4") as described in 10.11.3 shall be
used to backfill sanitary sewer trenches located in a
proposed roadways. Also 1 1/4" TB shall be used to
backfill laterals which are below proposed sidewalk.
This backfill shall extend from back of curb to right
of way limits.

All trenches located in a roadway shall be compacted to
95% of modified proctor density.

Care shall be taken not to exert undue stress on the
pipe during a compaction operation. If the trench is
to be mechanically compacted, the initial compacted
lift shall be 2' . Each subsequent compacted lift of
material shall be 18". The contractor shall use
smaller lifts if the required compaction cannot be
obtained.

The trench shall be kept free of visible water during
any backfilling or compaction work.

Only trenches that are located in an off-roadway area
can be backfilled with spoil material. Bedding and
backfill shall be as specified above. The use of
frozen spoil materials for trench backfill will not be
permitted under any conditions.

Existing manholes that do not have an opening for the
new sanitary sewer shall have an opening cored in the
existing manhole to accommodate the new sanitary sewer.
A trough shall be formed in the existing bench to
accept the new pipe.

The material used to backfill sanitary sewer mainline,
lateral or forcemain trenches located in an existing
roadway shall be lean concrete mix backfill conforming
to Section 8.43. 9 of the Standard Specifications for
Sewer and Water Construction in Wisconsin.

It is the intent of this section to confirm that sewer system has
been constructed with a minimum amount of infiltration.

41



5 .1. 2

5.1.3

5 .1.4

5 .1. 5

5.1. 6

All water laterals shall be a minimum of 1-1/4"in
diameter. The plastic pressure class 200 HDPE tubing
conforming to the requirements of AWWA C901 and ASTM
D2737 shall be used. Service pipe shall have an SDR of
9 DIMENSIONS. Coupling and fittings shall be
compression type, insert stiffeners for plastic tubing
shall be AISI type 304 stainless steel. All laterals
shall include a corporation stop, a curb stop and a
curb box most commonly found at the property line.
Pipe saddles will be required for pipe taps 1 inch and
over in PVC pipe. A full face stainless tapping sleeve
shall be used, Smith-Blair Model 372 or equivalent. A
minimum of 6' of cover shall be maintained on all water
laterals. Backfill materials and methods shall be
identical to that specified for the main sewer and
waterlines. A maple heart shall be installed extending
a minimum of 3 feet above grade; the top foot to be
painted orange upon completion of lateral installation.
Tracer wire shall be placed on top of the lateral and
be secured with tape approximately every 5 feet and
shall be wrapped around exterior of the curb box to the
surface.

All corporation stops are to be Ford FB 1000-45 for 1
and, FB 1000-55 for 1-1/4" or A Y McDonald 74701B2. All
curb stops shall be Ford or a seal curb valve No. B-44
555M or A Y McDonald 76104Q. All curb boxes for
services shall be Mueller H-10388 or approved
equivalent. These boxes shall be set to grade with
adjustment at mid-range. Curb boxes shall then be
adjusted to finish grade after topsoil is installed.

Trench insulation where specified or required by
shallow cover shall consist of 2' 8' x 2" thick
planks of Styrofoam plastic foam (Dow Chemical Company
Hybrand or approved equivalent).

All water main trenches located in a proposed roadway
shall be backfilled with 1 1/4 inch TB stone. If the
water main is to be located in an off-road easement
area, the spoil backfill shall be mechanically
compacted. The cover material over the water main pipe
shall be 2 feet and care shall be taken not to exert
undue stress on the pipe during any compaction
operation. No frozen spoil material will be allowed
for backfill material. During the mechanical compaction
of granular material, the first compacted lift shall be
18". The contractor shall use smaller lifts if the
required compaction cannot be obtained. Granular
material shall be compacted to 95% of the modified
proctor density. Open graded, washed crushed stone may
be allowed with permission of the City Engineer.

The material used to backfill water main or water
laterals repair trenches located in an existing roadway
shall be a lean concrete mix backfill (aggregate slurry
backfill) conforming to Section 8. 43. 9 and 10.14.1 of

45



5.1.7

5.1. 8

5 .1. 9

5 .1.10

5 .1.11

5.1.12

5.2 VALVES
5.2.1

these Specifications of Sewer and Water Construction in
Wisconsin, current Edition. Also lateral trenches below
proposed sidewalk shall be backfilled with 1 1/ 4 inch
TB.

During water main installation a watertight plug shall
be installed in the open end(s) between each pipe
installation and at the end of each work period.

Traffic Bond 3/4" for bedding shall be compacted firsts
before laying the pipe. Bedding material shall be
required on all water main installations and shall
extend 2 feet above the pipe as cover. An exception is
in areas around valves and hydrants where graded stone
is required. The 6 inches of bedding and 2 feet of
cover shall be compacted.

Hydrants shall be installed on all water main ends that
have service connections.

Contractor shall obtain a permit from the Franklin
Water Utility for the use of water for the purpose of
obtaining safe water samples. The cost of such water
shall be billed to the contractor based on metered use
or upon approval, a volume based on three (3) times the
total water main on the project. All existing water
utility valves shall be operated by Franklin Utility
personnel only.

Should water main be placed in a casing pipe, approved
casing spacer system shall be used. RACI spacers or
approved equal shall be required.

All new water services shall be relocated out of hard
surface areas, i.e. driveways, sidewalks, etc. as much
as possible.

All gate valves body casting shall be ductile iron or
cast iron. All underground trim (nuts, bolts, etc.)
for valves shall be stainless steel. All gate valves
shall have non-rising stems, turn left ( counter
clockwise) to open, have a 2" square operating nut and
be constructed for a working pressure of 200 p.s.i.
unless otherwise directed in writing by the City
Engineer. Al1 6" through 12" gate valves shall be
resilient seated, conform to A.W.W.A. C509-80, and have
stems sealed by at least two O-rings. All valves 16"
and larger shall be of butterfly-type. Installation of
butterfly valves operator nut shall be either to the
north or east of roadside positioning.

46



6.4.2

bedded1 in 3/8 or 3/4 inch (for pipe larger than 18)
crushed stone chips as described in 10 .11. 2 to 2 feet
above the top of pipe and backfilled with 1 1/4 TB as
described in 10.11.3 of these specifications.

Manholes and inlets shall be designed and constructed
to allow easy access for maintenance and cleaning.

6.4. 3 Endwalls, flared end sections or junction
shall be required at all crossroad culverts
installed through or between homesites.
fabric shall be required at outfalls.

structures
and piped
Riprap on

6.4.4

6.4.5

6. 4. 6

6. 4. 7

6. 4. 8

All precast manhole barrel joints and all chimney
sections shall be mortared and smoothed off inside and
outside.

Inlets shall be of precast design in accordance with
Figure No. 16. Concrete block inlets will only be
allowed with written permission of the City Engineer or
shown as an exception on the approved construction
drawing. Inlet with a sump (catch basin)is not
permitted.

When an inlet is within a driveway, a curbless casting
R-3290-A with Type A will be required or equivalent
roll type inlet frame, grate, curb box.

The inlets are to be set three inches plus or minus
1/4 1ow prior to the curb and gutter construction.
This will allow for the addition of a two-inch
adjusting ring and the necessary mortar and mastic. No
brick adjustments will be allowed. This construction
should allow for the curb and gutter construction with
a curb machine. Type "M" mortar shall be used per
Section 8.37.0 of Standard Specifications.

At time of final lift of asphalt trowelable mastic
shall be used between the top adjusting ring and the
inlet frame. The mastic shall cover the entire top of
the adjusting ring with a 1/2 inch thickness.

The final setting of the inlet frame and grate shall be
completed with the construction of the curb and gutter.
With this method, no tuckpointing beneath the frame
should be required.

In addition to the
construction will be
follows:

above, the staking for inlet
consistent and will be done as

1. Two offset stakes,
centerline of inlet,
of curb and/or inlet
of the inlet.

54

each 10 feet from the
will indicate the face
box and the inside back



6.4.9

6.4.10

2. One offset stake will be set 5' back of the
face of curb and/or inlet box and will be on
the centerline of the inlet perpendicular to
the curb and gutter.

3 • It will be the responsibility of the storm
sewer contractor to protect these stakes to
ensure proper construction.

4. Inlets constructed with improper alignment
(See 2.3.2 Q) will be unacceptable and will
have to be removed and reconstructed.

To set the frame and grate to conform to the slope of
the gutter line (final inch) a heavy duty grate, high
early strength concrete, Quickrete 5000 or equal shall
be used.

A leveling course shall be established with a uniform
lay of quick crete. Wood shims for this adjustment
will not be allowed.

Yard inlet shall be two (2) feet internal diameter.
A beehive grate and frame, R 2564 Neenah or approved
equal shall be used. See Figure No. 33.

Curb and gutter greater in length than 200 feet with
slopes of three ( 3) percent or greater an inlet with
directional grate in frame, Neenah R3246 shall be used.
The precast concrete inlet shall be sized accordingly
to receive the frame.

6.4.11 All storm sewers and cross culverts
the City of Franklin right-of-way
with the appropriate ASTM Class of
pipe (RCP). 10/21/20

that will be within
shall be designed

reinforced concrete

6.5 STORM SEWER LATERALS

6.5.1

6.5.2

All storm sewers constructed will include lateral lines
if required by the development agreement. Laterals
shall be designed to receive storm water runoff from
roof drains, localized areaways, and sump pumps.

Laterals shall meet all the requirements of the storm
sewer system as detailed in this chapter and have a
minimum diameter of six (6) inches.

6.5.3
line.
with

Laterals can be "shelved"
sanitary sewer and water

55

foot of right of way
in the same trench
service laterals.

Laterals will be laid to one (1)



J. Certification for house pad grade/grades shall be between
0.00 ft. and 2.00 ft. lower than final grade shown on
approved master grading plan.

K. Certification grades of top of curb shown at side lot lines
extended to the curb.

L. As-built grades of concrete walks at side lot line extended
to walk.

M. Concrete curb and gutter
acceptable if certified
design elevations, not
vertical slope.

and walk grades will be considered
elevations are within .10 ft. of
compromising the minimum 0.75%

N. Grading certification shall include storm water retention
and detention ponds, and temporary sedimentation basins.
Dimensions shall be given on the certification plan. They
shall show the length and width of berms, pond bottoms,
spillways maintenance access and safety shelves. Elevations
shall be given in a minimum of 50 ft. grid starting at the
outside toe of the berms or if berms are not shown, the grid
shall start at the point of influence of the pond's first
declining elevation. A tighter grid may be required at the
direction of the City Engineer. Elevations will also be
required at storm sewer inlet and outlet pipes, stand pipes,
weirs and spillways. Grid elevations shall be certified to
be correct if they are between 0.1 feet higher to 0.4 feet
lower than grades given on the grading plan.

The Developer is responsible to recertify the pond after the
site is stabilized and prior to the conveyance of the
receiving association (i.e. HOA)



10. 0 GENERAL

10.0.1

10.0.2

10.0.3

CHAPTER 10

MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION

QUALITY. It is the intent of these Specifications to
secure new, first class materials. Only materials
conforming to these specification requirements may be
used. The source of supply of all materials shall be
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. Such
approval may be rescinded at anytime should the source
of supply fail to produce materials of satisfactory
quality or quantity.

SAMPLES and TESTS. All materials required for use on
construction of the work shall be subject to sampling
and testing by the City. The samples required by the
City shall be furnished free of all charges by the
Contractor. All tests will be made by and at the
expense of the City, unless noted otherwise on the
plans or in the Special Provisions. The Engineer
reserves the right to have any load of material
delivered to a truck scale in order to check the weight
of the load. No claim for less or delay will be
allowed on this account.

DELIVERY TICKETS. The Engineer shall be furnished
copies of delivery tickets of materials delivered to
the job unless otherwise specifically allowed. Where
the contract unit prices necessitate payment for
materials on a volume or weight basis, the City will
pay only for the materials for which delivery tickets
have been provided on the job site at the time of
delivery.

10.1 CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT

10.1.1

10.1. 2

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS. Steel bars for concrete
reinforcement shall conform to the Specifications for
Billet-Steel Bars for Concrete Reinforcement, A.S.T.M.
Designation A-15.

GRADE and QUALITY. All concrete reinforcing bars and
rebar bars shall be structural grade steel. The bars
shall be e free of excess rust, oil or other harmful
coatings.

10.1.3 TYPES and SIZES. Tie bars for curb
construction and for all construction
pavements, bases and alleys shall be No. 4
round deformed bars 18" 1ong.

and gutter
joints in
(1/2 inch)

Tie bars abutting to the existing curb and gutter shall
be composed of 2 epoxy-coated rebar, 12" long No. 4
(1/2 inch.) See Figure 8.

66



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTIONNO. 2021 ----
A RESOLUTIONAUTHORIZINGAPPROVAL OF THE REVISIONS TO THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN DESIGN STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS,
JULY2017

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin provides requirements for development within the City
in the City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications; and

WHEREAS, some updates to the 2017 standards are warranted for various reasons; and

WHEREAS, Staff will update the Design Standards and Construction Specifications as
approved by Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVEDby the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, that revisions as presented by Staff to City of Franklin Design Standards and
Construction Specifications be approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed
to authorize approval of the document on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of_2021 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --



APPROVAL

sh»
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE IN STATE CONTRACT
FORPURCHASE OF 2,400 TONS OF SALT ANDAN

ADDITIONAL 480 TONS IN RESERVE

MTG. DATE
April 5, 2021

ITEM NO.

Gt},
BACKGROUND
Each year the State of Wisconsin reports the tonnage of salt that each community wants to have
included in the State contract. In addition to the State contract amount, an additional 20 percent
can be placed in reserve, which is optional for the City to purchase. In addition, Franklin estimates
salt usage and budgets the purchase in annual budgets.

ANALYSIS
In 2020, the price of salt was $73.32/ton. Staff is expecting the 2021 prices to be approximately
$75.52/ton. Staff has received a request to participate in the State Contract for the upcoming year.

In the past, the City has seen benefits ofplanning to have available twice the forecasted amount of
salt for each season. For severe winters- like 2014, many communities could not obtain salt or had
to pay excessive prices to get salt. Franklin had an adequate supply of salt on hand, used "normal
price salt", and saved a significant amount. History indicates that DPW has needed an average of
2,100 tons for a "normal season". Considering the amount and type of streets being added to the
system with the increased use of brine solution, the average need is now considered 2,400 tons.
Two times a normal season is approximately 4,800 tons.

Due to the 2020-2021 season, 550 tons of reserve salt was purchased at $73.32/ton. The
$40,326.00 was taken out of the 2021 salt budget.

After another delivery from the last order is received, the 2021 budget will have approximately
$150,000 for salt. At $75.52/ton, this would purchase just shy of 2,000 tons, therefore, to meet the
2,400 tons needed for the 2021-2022 season, an additional 400 tons will need to be purchased, at
a cost of $75.52/ton, requiring an additional $30,208.00.

At $75.52 per ton, the 400 tons would require a budget amendment of an additional $30,208.00.
Staff understands that the current budget and fund balance is tight and recommends that the 20%
reserve be considered. Note that we do not have to purchase this reserve amount but it is available
for the bid amount if needed.

Staff recommends the following strategy for a 2021-2022 salt order:
2,400 tons regular order (@$75.52/ton = $181,248.00)
480 tons for 20% reserve order (@75.52/ton = $36,249.60)

So, Franklin could place an order for 2,400 tons with an expected cost of $181,248. Subtracting
Franklin's current budget of $150,000, an additional appropriation of $31,248 is needed.

OPTIONS
As past practice, it is important to order the salt with the State contract as our best prices are with
the State contract.

FISCAL NOTES
The finance implications are described in detail above. A budget amendment is needed.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to direct Staff to participate in State contract for purchase of 2,400 tons of salt with a
purchase of an additional 480 tons in reserve.

DPW:KLS/ams



BLANKPAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

hr COUNCIL ACTION 04/05/2021

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing frommeeting of April 5, 2021.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED



9#el
#Franklin
«f

WI S C O NS I N

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda
Alderman's Room

April 5, 2021 - 5:30 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Aoolicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Tve/ Time Aoolicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Class A Combination Nerankar LLC

2020-2021 DBA Mann Liquor & Indian Grocery5:35 p.m. 7158 S 76 St.
Sudeep Singh Mann, Agent

Extraordinary Ballpark Commons-Milkmen Game-Fireworks
Entertainment & Special Person in Charge: Scot JohnsonEvent

5:40 p.m. Location: 7044 S Ballpark Dr
Dates of Event: 05/29, 06/19, 06/26, 08/14 and
08/28/2021 at approximately 9pm;
07/16 and 07/30 at approximately 9:30pm

Extraordinary Neighborhood SK Fun Run
Entertainment & Special Person in Charge: Ashley Cornell & Shari HannemanEvent

5:55: p.m. Location: S 36 St. to 424 St.; Maplecrest Dr., Glenwood
Dr., Franklin Woods/Kayla's Playground Trail
Dates of Event: Saturday June 5, 2021
Time: 8:00am-11:00am

Operator Anglin, Ashley C.
2020-2021 4259 N. 104 St Apt# 8New

Milwaukee, WI 53222
Staybridge Suites

Operator Gutierez, Jacob D
2020-2021 10508 W. Cortez Cir Apt# 10New

Franklin, WI 53132
Walgreens #05459

Operator Michaud, Brandon M.
2020-2021 6930 S. 20 street Apt. #02111New

Oak Creek, WI 53154
The Rock Sports Complex (Blend)

Operator Valadez-Servin, Brenda P.
2020-2021 2270 S. 57% St.New

West Allis, WI 53219
Sendik's Food Market

Operator Bogan, Fontaine A. Sr.
2020-2021 3003 S. 93/4 St.New

Milwaukee, WI 53228
On The Border

Operator Bogan, Fontaine A. Sr.
2021-2022 3003 S. 938 St.Renewal

Milwaukee, WI 53228
On The Border

Operator Burbey, Judith
2020-2021 520 Mill Ave. #205New

Union Grove, WI 53182
Andy's on Ryan



License ommttee Agenda
Alderman's Room
April 5, 2021

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Burbey, Judith
2021-2022 520 Mill Ave. #205Renewal Union Grove, WI 53182

Andy's on Rvan
Police Incident Reports Review of Police Incident Reports from February 2, 2020
from February 2, 2020 thru December 16, 2020 for Class A and B Establishments.thru December 16, 2020

Time
3. Adiournment
Notice 1s grven that a majority of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather 1formation about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council wll not take formal act1on at thus meeting

Page 2 of2



blank page



APPROVAL

%
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
04/06/2021

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated March 12, 2021 through April 1, 2021 Nos. 182457 through Nos. 182650 in
the amount of$ 1,553,465.94. Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos. 4533 through Nos. 4551 Library
vouchers totaling$ 16,793.83, Tourism vouchers totaling$ 1,333.50, Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 15,502.36
and Property Tax refunds totaling $6,190.28. Voided checks in the amount of($ 3,817.25) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated March 12, 2021 through March 31, 2021 in the amount of$ 933,475.58
are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing. These payments
have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920.

The net payroll dated March 26, 2021 is$ 391,038.79, previously estimated at$ 395,000. Payroll deductions
dated March 26, 2021 are$ 420,523.93 previously estimated at$ 431,000.

The estimated payroll for April 9, 2021 is $ 396,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$233,000.

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements EFT's Nos. 370 through Nos. 373 dated March 12, 2021 through
March 30, 2021 in the amount of$ 5,902,373.03. $5,900,000 represents transfers to investment accounts and
$2,373.03 represents refunds. These payments have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following:

• City vouchers with an ending date of April 1, 2021 in the amount of$ 1,553,465.94 and

• Payroll dated March 26, 2021 in the amount of$ 391,038.79 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 420,523.93 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated April 9, 2021 in the amount of$ 396,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 233,000, plus City matching and

• Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of March 30, 2021 in the amount of$ 5,902,373.03.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - KM


	CC Meeting Packet (1 of 3) 4-05-2021
	CC Meeting Packet (2 of 3) 4-05-2021
	CC Meeting Packet (3 of 3) 4-05-2021

